IL.
I1I.
Iv.

VL
VII.
VIII.
IX.

XI.
XII.
XIII.

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

January 14, 2020
9:30 a.m.

REGULAR MEETING

Michael A. Bilandic Building
160 North LaSalle Street
Suite S-1000
Chicago, Illinois 60601

Call to Order & Roll Call

Approval of Agenda

Public Comment

Chairman's Remarks

Message from the Executive Director

Committee Reports

Presentation and Consideration of New Business Items
Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports
Monthly Procurement Report

Correction and Approval of Minutes

Other Business

Closed Session

Adjournment

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 1



Board of Directors
January 14, 2020

Page 2
NEW BUSINESS
CONDUIT FINANCING PROJECTS
Tab Project Name Location Amount New Jobs Const. Jobs Staff
Private Activity Bonds - Revenue Bonds
Preliminary
1 Waste Management, Inc. Statewide $500,000,000 - - RF/BF
Private Activity Bonds - Revenue Bonds
Final
Bensenville (DuPage County),
Arlington Heights, Chicago,
2 Roosevelt University Schaumburg (Cook County), Lockport $15,000,000 N/A N/A RF/BF
(Will County), Peoria (Peoria County),
and Waukegan (Lake County)
TOTAL CONDUIT FINANCING PROJECTS $515,000,000 - -
GRAND TOTAL $515,000,000 - -
RESOLUTIONS
Tab Action Staff
Conduit Financings
Resolution Authorizing and Approving Amendments Related to the Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B
3 (Northwest Community Hospital), Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C (Northwest Community Hospital) and p
Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 (Northwest Community Hospital), the Proceeds of which were Loaned to
Northwest Community Hospital
Resolution Authorizing Amendments Relating to the Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A (Little Company of
4 Mary Hospital and Health Care Centers), the Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B (Little Company of Mary <p
Hospital and Health Care Centers), and the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 (Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health Care
Centers); and Approving Related Matters
Resolution Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a First Amendment to Trust Indenture Relating to the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding]
5 Bonds, Series 2014 (North American Spine Society) to Provide for Certain Amendments Relating to a Conversion to the New Long-Term Rate Period and RF/BF
Certain Other Matters; Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Any Other Documents Necessary or Appropriate to Effect the Matters Set Forth in Such
First Amendment; and Authorizing and Approving Related Matters
Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Execution and Delivery of a First Amendment to the Bond and Loan Agreement Dated as of December 1, 2011
6 with The British Home for Retired Men and Women and First Midwest Bank and Approving the Execution of an Amended Bond and Certain Other RF/BF
Agreements Relating Thereto; and Related Matters
Resolution Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of (i) a First Amendment to Bond and Loan Agreement Relating to the Illinois Finance Authority
Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2017A (Museum of Science and Industry) and (ii) a First Amendment to Bond and Loan Agreement Relating to the Illing
7 Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2017B (Museum of Science and Industry), in Each Case, to Provide for Certain Amendments Relating| RF/BF

to the Interest Rate Determination and Certain Other Matters; Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Any Other Documents Necessary or Appropriate
Effect the Matters Set Forth in Such First Amendments; and Authorizing and Approving Related Matters

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 2




Board of Directors
January 14, 2020

Page 3
NEW BUSINESS
SUBJECT MATTER-ONLY
Tab Action Staff

Conduit Financings

8 Illinois Finance Authority Comments on S&P Global Ratings Proposed Methodology IS
9 Recent Report Regarding Taxable Municipal Bonds in 2020 JS/SP
10  |Rules, Regulation, and Transparency in the Municipal Securities Market SP

Direct and Alternative Financings

11  |Transformation Initiative: Update to Senate Bill 1300 WA

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 3



160 North LaSalle Street

[FA

™

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY ‘ Suite $-1000
Chicago, IL 60601
312-651-1300
312-651-1350 fax
www.il-fa.com
Date: January 14, 2020
To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman Roxanne Nava
Michael W. Goetz, Vice Chairman George Obernagel
James J. Fuentes Terrence M. O’Brien
William Hobert Roger Poole
Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Beth Smoots
Lerry Knox Randal Wexler
Lyle McCoy Bradley A. Zeller
Roxanne Nava
From: Christopher B. Meister, Executive Director
Subject: Message from the Executive Director

Dear Member of the Authority:
Welcome Waste Management, Inc.

The Authority again welcomes Waste Management, Inc. to this month’s agenda. Waste Management,
Inc. is the leading comprehensive waste management environmental service in North America. The
company has been a long-time borrower of the Authority and its predecessors. Your consideration of this
Inducement Resolution will continue the longstanding partnership between Waste Management, Inc. and
the Authority that advances environmental quality in Illinois through federally tax-exempt conduit
financing.

Roosevelt University — Continuing its Plan for the Future

Roosevelt University returns this month for consideration of its Final Bond Resolution as part of its plan
to integrate Robert Morris University into its organization. The Authority is pleased to have a role in
advancing Roosevelt University’s plan for a sustainable future within non-profit higher education in
[linois.

Borrower Amendments

The Authority will also consider a number of amendments on behalf of long-time federally tax-exempt
conduit borrowers: Northwest Community Hospital; OSF Healthcare System in connection with its
affiliation with the Little Company of Mary; North American Spine Society; The British Home for
Retired Men and Women; and Museum of Science and Industry.

Authority Fiscal Year-to-Date Budget
Through the first half of Fiscal Year 2020, the Authority has posted net income of approximately $491
thousand. Through December 31, 2019, total operating and non-operating revenues are approximately

$154 thousand or 6.4%, higher than budgeted. The Authority posted operating expenses during the 6-
month period of $337 thousand or 14.1% lower than anticipated.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 4



% ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

As always, I look forward to continuing to work with you in support of jobs and financing capital
expansion projects throughout our state.

Respectfully,

Christopher B. Meister
Executive Director

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 5



PN

% ILLINOQIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

January 14, 2020

CONDUIT

$500,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Waste Management, Inc.
(and its affiliates)

REQUEST — APPROVAL OF
A PRELIMINARY BOND
RESOLUTION

Purpose: The Bonds will be issued in one or more series and the proceeds will be loaned to
Waste Management, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“WM”, the “Borrower” or the
“Corporation”), in order to assist the Corporation in providing all or a portion of the funds that
will enable the Borrower to finance certain solid waste disposal facilities, including, but not
limited to the following: (a) improvements to existing landfill facilities, including (i)
construction of new disposal cells and liners within currently permitted acreage, (ii) additions
and improvements to the leachate collection and treatment systems, including leachate
trenching, (iii) additions and improvements to the methane gas systems, including collection,
processing and treatment systems for the capture, conversion and/or distribution of landfill gas,
(iv) installation of new liners for intermittent and final closure of completed sections of the
landfill facilities, (v) site improvements, (vi) acquisition of equipment to be used at the landfill
facilities, and (vii) acquisition of other equipment and assets (including, but not limited to,
land) necessary to support the foregoing improvements and to place them into service, and (b)
improvements to existing collection (hauling) and transfer station facilities, including (i)
acquisition of solid waste disposal and recycling trucks and support vehicles, (ii) acquisition of
solid waste disposal and recycling containers and related equipment, (iii) acquisition of solid
waste sorting and processing and recycling equipment, (iv) site improvements, and (V)
acquisition of other equipment and assets (including, but not limited to, land) necessary to
support the foregoing improvements and place them into service all to be located within the
State (collectively, the “Project”); and (c) pay all or for a portion, if any, of the costs of
issuance of the Bonds, all as permitted by the Illinois Finance Authority Act (the “IFA Act”)
or the Illinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act (the “Environmental Act” and
together with the IFA Act, the “Acts” ) (collectively, the “Financing Purposes”).

Program: Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds issued pursuant to IFA’s powers under the
Acts.

IRS Section 146 Volume Cap required: Yes. Future bond issues undertaken pursuant to this
Preliminary Bond Resolution are expected to be originated in multiple issuances of at least $50
million and originated over several years. IFA will allocate available prior year Solid Waste
Disposal Revenue Bond Carryforward Volume Cap and supplement with current year Volume
Cap at the time of issuance, if necessary.

No IFA Funds at risk. No State Funds at risk.

BOARD ACTION

Preliminary Bond Resolution requested

This is the first time this request has been presented to the IFA Board of Directors

JOB DATA

550  Current jobs-IL **TBD New jobs projected (will be
estimated as specific projects are
identified in connection with
future Bond Resolutions)

N/A  Retained jobs **TBD Construction jobs projected (will
(at risk jobs) be estimated as specific projects
are identified in connection with

future Bond Resolutions)

**Note: Will be reported at the time for the Illinois project sites that use IFA bond proceeds.

BORROWER
DESCRIPTION

e Type of business: WM is North America’s leading provider of comprehensive waste
management environmental services. WM works with its residential, commercial, industrial
and municipal customers and the communities served to manage and reduce waste at each
stage from collection to disposal, while recovering valuable resources and creating clean,
renewable energy.

e Locations: This Preliminary Bond Resolution is intended to cover all WM operating
facilities in Illinois.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 6



Waste Management, Inc. Project Summary Report for Preliminary Bond Resolution

Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 2 Rich Frampton and Brad Fletcher
CREDIT INDICATORS e Waste Management, Inc. (“Borrower” or “WM”) currently has an S&P long-term debt

rating of ‘A-’ (assigned as of 5/16/2019 with stable outlook) and an S&P short-term rating of
‘A-2’ (affirmed as of 5/16/2019 with Stable outlook). As presently contemplated, the
future IFA Bonds that would be documented, and subsequently authorized and issued
for the purposes identified herein would be sold by the Underwriter based on WM’s

S&P ratings.

o Waste Management Holdings, Inc. (“Guarantor” or “WM Holdings”) currently has a
long-term debt rating of ‘A-’ from S&P (affirmed as of 5/16/2019 with a Stable outlook).

e Note: Although WM and WM Holdings have also been assigned investment grade ratings by
Moody’s and Fitch in connection with other unrelated long-term and short-term debt
offerings, as of the 1/7/2020 preparation date of this report, the Borrower currently plans to
only apply for ratings on the future IFA Bonds from S&P.

STRUCTURE e Term: 30-years (anticipated)

o Interest Rate: Bond documents will allow for a multi-modal structure. Based on the
Guarantor’s underlying A-/A-2 long-term/short-term ratings from S&P Global Ratings, the
Borrower and Underwriter/Remarketing Agent (i.e., BofA Securities, Inc.) will evaluate the
optimal initial terms and interest rate mode(s) based at the time of pricing (and as
subsequently evaluated in advance of any interest rate reset date).

SOURCES AND USES; Sources: Uses:

PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT

TO CHANGE IFA Bonds —multiple series $500,000,000 Project Costs $550,000,000
Equity 54,500,000 *¥**Costs of Issuance 4,500,000
Total $554,500,000 Total $554,500,000

***NOTE: WM intends to pay all Costs of Issuance with Borrower equity (i.e., no IFA
Bond Proceeds will be used to pay bond issuance costs). The costs of issuance reported
above are a preliminary estimate, subject to change.

RECOMMENDATION Project Review Committee recommends approval.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 7



Waste Management, Inc. Project Summary Report for Preliminary Bond Resolution
Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 3 Rich Frampton and Brad Fletcher

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
PROJECT SUMMARY REPORT
January 14, 2020

INFORMATIONAL - PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE

Project: Waste Management, Inc.
(and its affiliates)

STATISTICS
IFA Project: 12472 Amount: $500,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Type: Solid Waste Disposal
Revenue Bonds IFA Staff:  Rich Frampton and Brad Fletcher
Location: Multiple/Statewide Counties/

Region: Multiple/Statewide

BOARD ACTION

Preliminary Bond Resolution (“Inducement Resolution” for reimbursement in one or more future tax-exempt bond
issues)

Conduit Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds No IFA funds at risk

Project Review Committee recommends approval ~ No extraordinary conditions

VOTING RECORD

This is the first time this Project has been presented to the IFA Board for consideration.

PURPOSE

Bond proceeds will be used to finance landfill and transfer station improvements and to purchase containers,
transportation equipment, and equipment for use at WM’s solid waste disposal facilities statewide.

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION

The Authority’s Solid Waste Disposal Facility Revenue Bond Program provides tax-exempt financing for qualifying
projects that treat, transport, landfill or otherwise dispose of qualified solid waste as allowed under the Internal
Revenue Code.

These Bonds will be issued under powers authorized under the Illinois Finance Authority Act and the Illinois
Environmental Facilities Financing Act, as applicable. The Illinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act has a
$2.5 billion debt limit (which is distinct from the aggregate debt limit of $28.15 billion under IFA’s Act) specific to
project bonds issued under the Illinois Environmental Facilities Finance Act. Prior Final Bond Resolutions for IFA
Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds have delegated authority to the Executive Director to determine whether to
issue the Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds under (i) the Illinois Finance Authority Act or (ii) the Illinois
Environmental Facilities Financing Act.

VOLUME CAP

This project will use unallocated IFA Carryforward Volume Cap designated by IFA for Solid Waste Disposal
Revenue Bond projects, and to the extent necessary, current year Volume Cap designated for use for Solid
Waste Disposal Revenue Bond financings in an allocation award by the Governor’s Office of Management
and Budget.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 8



Waste Management, Inc. Project Summary Report for Preliminary Bond Resolution
Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020

Page 4

Rich Frampton and Brad Fletcher

The proposed $500 million Inducement Resolution under consideration in connection with this request is
expected to be originated in a series of discrete financings that would be originated over the next 5 to 10

years.
FINANCING SUMMARY

Bondholder

Security: Bonds will be sold based on the underlying long-term and short-term ratings in effect at the time
of issuance as assigned by S&P Global Ratings to Waste Management, Inc. Waste Management’s
long-term debt is currently rated (‘A-") and short-term debt is currently rated (‘A-2”) by S&P.
Additionally, Bondholders will be further secured by a Guaranty from Waste Management
Holdings, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary of Waste Management, Inc. (“WM Holdings”). As
described in Note 21 to Waste Management, Inc.’s 2018 Annual Financial Statements (presented
in the Company Form 10-K Filing dated as of 12/31/2018), WM and WM Holdings cross-
guarantee the debt of the other affiliate pursuant to a Guaranty Agreement. WM Holdings
currently has a long-term debt rating of ‘A-’ from S&P.

Structure: Multi-modal bonds (including both variable rate and fixed rate options). The initial interest rate
mode(s) will be determined at the time of pricing when originated based on market conditions
(and Waste Management’s debt ratings at the time of issuance).

Maturity: Not to exceed 30 years from the date of issuance

Underlying

Debt Ratings: Waste Management, Inc. (the “Borrower” or “WM”) currently has an S&P long-term debt rating of

‘A-’ and an S&P short-term rating of ‘A-2’ (assigned/affirmed as of 5/16/2019 with Stable outlooks).
It is anticipated that the future bonds anticipated pursuant to this Preliminary Bond Resolution
will be initially sold and remarketed based on WM’s S&P ratings in effect at the time of pricing
for each future bond issue.
Waste Management Holdings, Inc. (“Guarantor” or “WM Holdings”) currently has a long-term
debt rating of ‘A-’ from S&P (affirmed as of 5/16/2019 with a Stable outlook).

Anticipated

Timing: Note: There will be staged originations over several years as presently contemplated.

BUSINESS SUMMARY

About Waste

Management,

Inc. and

Waste Management

Holdings, Inc.:

Waste Management, Inc. (“WM” or the “Borrower” or the “Corporation”) is a holding
company and all operations are conducted by its subsidiaries. When the term “WM” is used
herein, WM specifically references Waste Management, Inc., the parent holding company.

0 WM was incorporated in Oklahoma in 1987 under the name “USA Waste Services, Inc.”
and was reincorporated as a Delaware company in 1995.

0 Ina 1998 merger, the Illinois-based waste services company formerly known as Waste
Management, Inc. became a wholly-owned subsidiary of WM and changed its name to
Waste Management Holdings, Inc. (“WM Holdings”). Like WM, WM Holdings is a
holding company for certain operating units -- all operations are conducted by operating
subsidiaries of each holding company.

o0 Pursuant to a Guaranty Agreement, WM Holdings is the corporate guarantor on all
debt issued or incurred by WM.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 9



Waste Management, Inc. Project Summary Report for Preliminary Bond Resolution
Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020

Page 5

About WM’s
Illinois
Operations:

Rationale:

Rich Frampton and Brad Fletcher

0 Concurrent with the 1998 merger, the parent holding company changed its name from
USA Waste Services to Waste Management, Inc. (i.e., WM).

WM'’s principal executive offices are located at 1001 Fannin Street, Houston, Texas 77002. WM’s
principal telephone number is (713) 512-6200 and WM’s website address is www.wm.com.

WM’s annual reports on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, and current reports on Form
8-K are all available to the public, free of charge, on WM’s website as soon as practicable after
WM files any of these reports with the SEC. WM’s stock is traded on the New York Stock

Exchange under the symbol “WM.”

WM is North America’s leading provider of comprehensive waste management environmental
services. WM works with its residential, commercial, industrial and municipal customers and the
communities served to manage and reduce waste at each stage from collection to disposal, while
recovering valuable resources and creating clean, renewable energy. WM’s “Solid Waste”
business is operated and managed locally by its subsidiaries that focus on distinct geographic areas
and provides collection, transfer, disposal, and recycling and resource recovery services.

WM and its affiliates had approximately 43,700 employees as of December 31, 2018.

WM owns or operates 252 landfill sites, which the Corporation reports is the largest network of
landfills in North America. In order to make disposal more practical for larger urban markets
(where the distance to landfills is typically farther) WM manages 314 solid waste transfer stations
that consolidate, compact and transport waste efficiently and economically.

WM is a leading recycler in North America, handling materials that include paper, cardboard,
glass, plastic, and metal. WM provides cost-efficient, environmentally sound recycling programs
for municipalities, businesses and households across the U.S. and Canada as well as other services
that supplement its Traditional Solid Waste business. Through its subsidiaries, WM is also a
leading developer, operator and owner of landfill gas-to-energy facilities in the United States.

WM’s operations in Illinois are conducted through several operating subsidiaries. WM’s Illinois
operations comprise 11 disposal locations, 14 transfer stations, and 15 collection facilities.

WM employs approximately 550 people in Illinois.

IFA and its predecessors have closed on eight prior bond issues totaling over $377 million with
WM and its affiliates/predecessors since 1978, with the most recent closing in November 2019
($50 million). All payments on the prior WM Bonds issued by IFA and IDFA have been paid as
scheduled.

The subject Bonds will enable WM to finance the subject projects at the lowest possible interest

rate. Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds are authorized under Section 142(a)(6) of the Internal
Revenue Code.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 10



Waste Management, Inc. Project Summary Report for Preliminary Bond Resolution
Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 6 Rich Frampton and Brad Fletcher

PROJECT SUMMARY (FOR PRELIMINARY BOND RESOLUTION)

The Bonds will be issued in one or more series and the proceeds will be loaned to Waste Management, Inc., a Delaware
corporation (“WM?”, the “Borrower” or the “Corporation”), in order to assist the Corporation in providing all or a
portion of the funds that will enable the Borrower to finance certain solid waste disposal facilities, including, but not
limited to the following: (a) improvements to existing landfill facilities, including (i) construction of new disposal cells
and liners within currently permitted acreage, (ii) additions and improvements to the leachate collection and treatment
systems, including leachate trenching, (iii) additions and improvements to the methane gas systems, including collection,
processing and treatment systems for the capture, conversion and/or distribution of landfill gas, (iv) installation of new
liners for intermittent and final closure of completed sections of the landfill facilities, (v) site improvements, (vi)
acquisition of equipment to be used at the landfill facilities, and (vii) acquisition of other equipment and assets (including,
but not limited to, land) necessary to support the foregoing improvements and to place them into service, and (b)
improvements to existing collection (hauling) and transfer station facilities, including (i) acquisition of solid waste
disposal and recycling trucks and support vehicles, (ii) acquisition of solid waste disposal and recycling containers and
related equipment, (iii) acquisition of solid waste sorting and processing and recycling equipment, (iv) site improvements,
and (v) acquisition of other equipment and assets (including, but not limited to, land) necessary to support the foregoing
improvements and place them into service all to be located within the State (collectively, the “Project”); and (c) pay all or
for a portion, if any, of the costs of issuance of the Bonds, all as permitted by the Illinois Finance Authority Act (the
“Act”) or the Illinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act (the “Environmental Act” and together with the IFA Act,
the “Acts” ) (collectively, the “Financing Purposes”).

Waste Management Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation, (the “WM Holdings” or the “Guarantor”) is expected to
be the Corporate Guarantor of future IFA Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds that are issued using this Preliminary
Bond Resolution to provide for reimbursement under the Internal Revenue Code.

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Applicant/

Contacts: Waste Management, Inc. (Contact: Mr. Jeff Bennett, Assistant Treasurer — Waste Management,
Inc., 1001 Fannin, Suite 4000, Houston, Texas 77002; (T) 713.394.5262; E-mail:
jbennet6(@wm.com)

Project Name: =~ Waste Management, Inc. (IFA Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds, Waste
Management, Inc. Project)

Project
Locations: Potentially, all qualified WM-owned facilities in Illinois (as described immediately above in the

Project Summary for “Preliminary Bond Resolution™)

Land Owner: The subject properties are all owned by Waste Management, Inc. or its subsidiaries (including
Waste Management of Illinois, Inc.).
Borrower: Corporate Guarantor:
Waste Management, Inc. Waste Management Holdings, Inc.

Organization: ~ Corporation Corporation

State: Delaware Delaware

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 11



Waste Management, Inc. Project Summary Report for Preliminary Bond Resolution
Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 7 Rich Frampton and Brad Fletcher

5.0% or Greater

Beneficial
Ownership of
Common Stock: Waste Management, Inc.
e The Vanguard Group, Inc.: 8.33% (institutional) — as reported by WM
455 Devon Park Dr., Wayne, PA 198087-1815 (or P.O. Box 1101, Valley Forge, PA
19482-1101): manages and advises various Vanguard-branded mutual funds and
exchange-traded funds (ETFs). www.investor.vanguard.com/corporate
e BlackRock, Inc.: 5.76% (NYSE: BLK) (institutional) — as reported by WM
40 E. 52nd St., New York, NY 10022; manages and advises BlackRock-branded
Mutual Funds and Closed-end Fund, as well as and iShares-branded ETFs.
www.blackrock.com
PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL (PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE)
Borrower’s Counsel: Locke Lord LLP Boston, MA Stephanie Massey
External Auditor: Ernst & Young LLP Houston, TX
Underwriter: BofA Securities, Inc. San Francisco, CA Lawrence Tonomura
Chicago, IL John Emerson
Bond Counsel: Locke Lord LLP Boston, MA Jennifer Mendonca
Underwriter’s Counsel: ~ Norton Rose Fulbright US LLP New York, NY James Marlin,
Anna Lee
Patrick Alvarez
Trustee: U.S. Bank, National Association
IFA Counsel: To be determined (to be assigned upon initiation of bond documentation)
IFA Financial Advisor:  Sycamore Advisors, LLC Chicago, IL Courtney Tobin,

Justin O’Shea

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK]

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 12



ILLINOQIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

&

January 14, 2020

CONDUIT

$15,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Roosevelt University

REQUEST — APPROVAL OF
THE FINAL BOND
RESOLUTION (THE FINAL
BOND RESOLUTION IS
PRESENTED UNDER
SEPARATE COVER)

Purpose: Roosevelt University, an Illinois not for profit corporation (the “University” or “Roosevelt”),
has requested that the Authority issue not-to-exceed $15,000,000 (excluding original issue discount and
premium, if any) in aggregate principal amount of revenue bonds consisting of (i) one or more series or
subseries of Revenue Bonds (Roosevelt University) Series 2020A initially bearing interest at fixed, tax-
exempt rates (the “Series 2020A Bonds”) and (ii) one or more series or subseries of Revenue Bonds
(Roosevelt University) Series 2020B initially bearing interest at fixed, taxable rates (the “Series 2020B
Bonds” and together with the Series 2020A Bonds, the “Series 2020 Bonds”) in providing all or some
of the funds necessary to do any or all of the following: (i) pay or reimburse the University for the
payment of the costs of acquiring certain assets of Robert Morris University, an Illinois not for profit
corporation (“RMU”); (ii) pay or reimburse the University for the payment of the costs of acquiring
fixtures, furniture and equipment, making improvements to leased and/or owned facilities and relocating
staff and programs, (iii) fund capitalized interest, (iv) fund one or more debt service reserve funds for the
benefit of the Series 2020 Bonds, if deemed necessary or desirable by the University, and (v) paying
certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds, all as permitted by
the Illinois Finance Authority Act (the “Act”, and (i)-(v), collectively, the “Financing Purposes”).

The educational facilities to be financed from the proceeds of the Bonds are or will be (i) owned and
operated by Roosevelt; (ii) located on land owned by Roosevelt at or near 421-425 South Wabash
Avenue, Chicago, Illinois; 430 South Michigan Avenue, Chicago, Illinois; 509 South Wabash Avenue,
Chicago, Illinois and 1400 North Roosevelt Boulevard, Schaumburg, Illinois; and (iii) located on land
leased to RMU (which leases will be assigned to Roosevelt) at or near 1507 Waukegan Road,
Waukegan, Illinois; 206 SW Adams Street, Peoria, Illinois; 2121 South Goebertt Road, Arlington
Heights, Illinois; 12 South Center Street, Bensenville, Illinois; and 17130 Prime Boulevard, Lockport,
Illinois.

Program: 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds (Tax-Exempt and Taxable)

Extraordinary Conditions: None.

No IFA Funds at risk. No State Funds at risk.

BOARD ACTION

Final Bond Resolution

Preliminary Bond Resolution approved December 10, 2019 by the following vote: Yeas: 13; Nays:
0; Abstentions: 0; Absent: 2 (Poole; Zeller); Vacancies: 0

MATERIAL CHANGES

Wells Fargo Securities, LLC has been selected as Underwriter for this private placement sale to Preston
Hollow Capital, LLC. Funding of a Debt Service Reserve Fund has been added to the scope of
prospective uses of bond proceeds.

JOB DATA

(AS REPORTED IN THE
UNIVERSITY’S 2018 EMMA
FILING POSTED IN FEBRUARY
2019 AND AS UPDATED IN THE
UNIVERSITY’S OCTOBER 7, 2019
WEBSITE “FACTS AT A GLANCE”
POSTING)

201 Faculty  Current jobs
(Full-time)

379 Staff
(Full-time)

N/A  New jobs projected

Not Construction Jobs

Determined

Jobs Retained Not
available

yet

BORROWER DESCRIPTION

e Locations: Chicago, Arlington Heights, and Schaumburg (Cook County/Northeast Region);
Bensenville (DuPage County/Northeast Region); Lockport (Will County/Northeast Region); Peoria
(Peoria County/ North Central Region); Waukegan (Lake County / Northeast Region)

e Type of entity: Roosevelt University is a private co-educational, non-sectarian higher education
institution established in 1945.

® Roosevelt enrolled approximately 4,329 students (undergraduate and graduate) at its campuses in
Chicago and Schaumburg in Fall 2018 (FY 2019). Approximately 78.2% of FY 2018 credit hours
reflected enrollment at its Loop Campus. The Schaumburg campus is home to the University’s School
of Pharmacy and its doctoral program in Industrial-Organizational Psychology.

e Robert Morris University enrolled approximately 1,889 students at its Illinois campuses as of Fall
2018 (FY 2019). Robert Morris offers instruction at five (5) Illinois campus locations (Arlington
Heights, Bensenville, Lockport, Peoria, and Waukegan).

CREDIT INDICATORS

® Roosevelt’s outstanding debt is currently rated by Moody’s and Fitch. The University’s IFA Series
2007 Bonds are currently rated ‘B1’° / ‘BB-" (Moody’s/Fitch) as of 1/7/2020. Fitch downgraded
Roosevelt’s Series 2007 Bonds from ‘BB’ (Stable Outlook) to ‘BB-’ (Stable Outlook) as assigned as of
3/28/2019. Moody’s most recent ratings action occurred as of 6/29/2018 when Moody’s downgraded

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 13



Roosevelt University
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds
Page 2

Project Summary Report —

Background Information for Final Bond Resolution
January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher

CREDIT INDICATORS
(COoNT’D.)

Roosevelt’s long-term rating on the Series 2007 Bonds from ‘Ba2’ (Negative Outlook) to ‘B1’
(Negative Outlook). (Robert Morris University is a non-rated institution.)

e The IFA Series 2020 Bonds will be on parity with the IFA Series 2018A/2018B/2019A Bonds and are
expected to have materially the same covenants and restrictions.

o As with the University’s outstanding IFA Series 2018A, 2018B, and 2019A Bonds, the Series 2020
Bonds will be a general obligation of the University. Additionally, it is anticipated that the Series 2020
bondholders will participate on a parri passu (i.e., pro rata allocation) basis in the mortgage security
offered to the existing IFA Series 2018A/2018B/2019A bondholders.

e Pledged mortgage collateral consists of all real property owned by Roosevelt University and
consisting of (i) its flagship 32-story 425 S. Wabash Building (the “Wabash Building”) office-
administration/classroom/student residences) which opened in 2012, (ii) its 501 S. Wabash (“Goodman
Center”) Athletic/Recreation Center which opened in 2012, (iii) 430 S. Michigan Ave., Chicago, IL
60605 (“Auditorium Theatre Building”), and (iv) its Schaumburg (Robin) Campus at 1400 N. Roosevelt
Blvd., Schaumburg, IL, 60173 (renovated in 1995). (According to the Official Statement for the IFA
Series 2019A Bonds, the combined appraised value of the four mortgaged properties totals
approximately $368.8 million (based on appraisal reports dated as of August 2018 and March 2019).)

STRUCTURE

e The IFA Series 2020 Bonds, as contemplated, will be initially privately placed on a non-rated basis by
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as Underwriter, for this financing. The initial private placement purchaser
pursuant to this private placement will be Preston Hollow Capital, LLC of Dallas, TX. Sale of the
privately placed IFA Series 2020 Bonds will be limited to Accredited Investors (“Als”) and/or Qualified
Institutional Buyers (“QIBs”) in minimum denominations of $100,000 (and would thereby be sold in a
manner consistent with existing IFA Bond Handbook requirements).

o Note: The non-rated Series 2020 Bonds will be sold pursuant to Bond Purchase Agreements and
Investor Letters that will satisfy all existing IFA Bond Program Handbook policies applicable to the sale
of non-rated bonds (i.e., Bonds will be sold in minimum denominations of $100,000). Accordingly, no
policy exceptions regarding IFA’s minimum bond denomination policy will be necessary. Additional
information describing Roosevelt’s credit rating history is presented on p. 5.

o Interest Rate: It is contemplated that the Series 2020A-B Bonds may be each issued in one or more
series or subseries and shall bear interest at fixed tax-exempt or taxable interest rates featuring maturities
of up to 40 years. The Final Bond Resolution establishes interest rate parameters not to exceed (i)
6.00% on the Series 2020A (Tax-Exempt) Bonds and (ii) 10.00% on the Series 2020B (Taxable) Bonds.
e Maturity: no later than 40 years after the date of issuance (maximum parameter established by the
Final Bond Resolution)

SOURCES AND USES
(PRELIMINARY ESTIMATES —
SUBJECT TO CHANGE)

Sources: Uses:
Series 2020 Bonds $15,000,000 Capital Expenditures (including $15,000,000
paying or reimbursing the University
for the payment of, the costs of
acquiring certain assets of Robert
Morris University)
Equity: 450,000 **Costs of Issuance 450,000
Total $15,450,000 Total $15,450,000

*%*Costs of issuance are expected to be paid from borrower equity (preliminary, subject to
change).

RECOMMENDATION The Project Review Committee recommends approval of a Final Bond Resolution for this
financing (in substantially the form presented to the IFA Board under separate cover).

EXTRAORDINARY This financing will return to the Board for a separate Resolution that would authorize

CONDITION: distribution of an Official Statement for the Series 2020 Bonds, thereby enabling potential

resale of the Series 2020 Bonds in the secondary market subject to satisfying IFA Bond
Handbook requirements.

More specifically, as long as the IFA Series 2020 Bonds remain non-rated, secondary market
resale of the Series 2020 Bonds would be limited to Accredited Investors and Qualified
Institutional Buyers (as consistent with IFA Bond Handbook requirements).

This subsequent IFA Board Resolution (and the accompanying Official Statement) would not
be presented for consideration until after Roosevelt receives all necessary regulatory
approvals (i.e., Higher Learning Commission and Illinois Board of Higher Education) and
has closed on its asset purchase of Robert Morris University.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 14



Roosevelt University Project Summary Report —
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds Background Information for Final Bond Resolution
Page 3 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
PROJECT SUMMARY REPORT
January 14, 2020

INFORMATIONAL — CONTENT IS PRELIMINARY, SUBJECT TO CHANGE

Project: Roosevelt University
STATISTICS

IFA Project: 12438 Amount: $15,000,000 (not-to-exceed amount)
Type: 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds IFA Staff:  Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher
Locations: Chicago, Arlington Heights Counties/

Bensenville, Schaumburg, Regions: Cook, Du Page, Lake, Will / Northeast; Peoria /

Lockport, Peoria, Waukegan North Central

BOARD ACTION

Final Bond Resolution
Conduit 501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds
No IFA funds at risk

The Project Review Committee recommends approval of a Final Bond Resolution (in substantially the form
presented to the IFA Board under separate cover).

Extraordinary Condition (also described on p. 2,): Roosevelt will be returning to the IFA Board, subject to
Roosevelt closing on its proposed Robert Morris University (Illinois) asset purchase, for consideration of a
Resolution that would authorize distribution of an Official Statement which would include (directly or in appendices
to the Official Statement) (i) Roosevelt’s FYE 8/31/2019 audit report, (ii) Roosevelt’s 8/31/2019 financial and
operational management narrative, and (iii) a description of its acquisition and integration of RMU into Roosevelt.
Roosevelt does not plan to request consideration of this Resolution authorizing distribution of an Official Statement
until after it closes on the Roosevelt University acquisition.

VOTING RECORD

Preliminary Bond Resolution approved December 10, 2019 by the following vote: Yeas: 13; Nays: 0;
Abstentions: 0; Absent: 2 (Poole; Zeller); Vacancies: 0

PURPOSE

The Borrower and financing team currently anticipate that the Series 2020 Bonds will be issued for the purpose of
(1) paying or reimbursing the University for the payment of the costs of acquiring certain assets of Robert Morris
University (“RMU”); (ii) paying or reimbursing the University for payment of the costs of acquiring fixtures,
furniture and equipment, making improvements to leased and/or owned facilities and relocating staff and programs
and (iii) paying certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Bonds, all as permitted by the Act
(collectively, the “Financing Purposes™).

IFA PROGRAM AND CONTRIBUTION

501(c)(3) Bonds are municipal bonds authorized under the Internal Revenue Code that enable 501(c)(3) corporations
to finance capital projects furthering support of their mission. The IFA’s issuance of these Bonds will convey
federal tax-exempt status on interest paid to bondholders, thereby enabling bondholders to accept a below market
interest rate that is passed through to the borrower.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 15



Roosevelt University Project Summary Report —
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds Background Information for Final Bond Resolution
Page 4 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher

VOLUME CAP

501(c)(3) Bonds do not require Volume Cap.

FINANCING SUMMARY

Structure — Private

Placement;

Investor Letter;

Restrictions on

Transfers: It is anticipated that the Series 2020 Bonds will be underwritten by Wells Fargo Securities, LLC
and sold on a private placement basis (pursuant to one or more Purchase Contracts) to Preston
Hollow Capital, LLC of Dallas, Texas.

Preston Hollow Capital, LLC, as the initial purchaser, will be required to deliver an investor
letter to the Authority for each series of Bonds (in the form approved by counsel to the
Authority and consistent with the Authority’s Bond Handbook requirements, as amended
and supplemented) stating, among other things, that Preston Hollow satisfies the specified ‘tests’
for being considered (i) an institutional “Accredited Investor” (“Al”) within the meaning of
Regulation D, Sections 501 through 506, or (ii) a “Qualified Institutional Buyer” (“QIB”) within
the meaning of Rule 144A, under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended.

Additionally, the Bond Indentures shall contain such restrictions, as counsel to the Authority shall
reasonably determine are necessary or advisable, on the transfer of the Series 2020 Bonds by the
Purchaser or by any Accredited Investor or Qualified Institutional Buyer to which the Purchaser
transfers the Series 2020 Bonds.

Note: No exception to any IFA Bond Handbook provision is being requested at this time.
Nevertheless, in the event the Series 2020A-B Bonds are subsequently rated and assigned an
investment grade rating, the Loan Agreements have been drafted to provide appropriate covenants
that would permit the Series 2020 Bonds to be sold to non-institutional (i.e., non-Al, non-QIB)
investors under appropriate specified conditions.

Official
Statement (to
be released after

closing of

RMU asset

Acquisition): Subsequent to closing on the acquisition of Robert Morris University assets (which is subject to
Higher Learning Commission and Illinois Board of Higher Education approval), Roosevelt plans
to return to the IFA Board for consideration of a subsequent Resolution to authorize the
distribution and release of an Official Statement relating to the Series 2020 Bonds. (The IFA
Board will have access to the Official Statement and Appendix A information as well as the
updated FYE 8/31/2019 audit report and management’s financial and operational narrative (which
Roosevelt expects to post on EMMA next month).)

Bondholder

Security: The Series 2020 Bonds will be secured by (i) a general unrestricted revenue pledge of the

University and (ii) a mortgage on Roosevelt University’s real estate holdings, including
substantially all of the University’s real estate holdings located in Chicago and Schaumburg.

Interest Rate: The Series 2020A (Tax-Exempt) and Series 2020B (Taxable) Bonds shall initially bear interest at
one or more fixed interest rates and may be sold in maturities of up to 40 years. The Bond
Resolution establishes not-to-exceed interest rate parameters of (i) 6.00% fixed on the Series
2020A (Tax-Exempt) Bonds, and (ii) 10.00% fixed on the Series 2020B (Taxable) Bonds.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 16



Roosevelt University
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds

Page 5

Maturity:

Ratings:

Estimated
Closing Date:

Rationale:

The Bonds shall mature no later than 40 years after their date of issuance. Both the Series 2020A
(Tax-Exempt) Bonds and the Series 2020B Bonds (Taxable) shall be subject to mandatory sinking
fund provisions as provided in their respective Indentures. Both the Series 2020A and Series
2020B Bonds shall be subject to optional and extraordinary redemption and be payable as set forth
in their respective Indentures.

Although the Series 2020 Bonds will be sold on a non-rated basis with initial sale and secondary
market resale restricted to Accredited Investors and Qualified Institutional Buyers consistent with
IFA Bond Handbook requirements), the University will continue to maintain its Moody’s and
Fitch debt ratings on its Series 2007 Bonds (approximately $30 million outstanding) through the
scheduled final maturity date of 4/1/2037.

Below are the University’s current ratings on its IFA Series 2007 Bonds.

Current Long-Term Debt/Issue Ratings and most recently reported ratings actions for the
IFA Series 2007 Bonds (Roosevelt University) — as of 1/7/2020:

IFA Series 2007 Bonds:
e Moody’s: ‘BI’
0 Moody’s downgraded from ‘Ba2’ (Negative Outlook) to ‘B1’ (Negative
Outlook) effective 6/29/2018
e Fitch: ‘BB-’
o0 Fitch downgraded the University’s long-term debt rating from ‘BB’ (Stable
Outlook) to ‘BB-’ (Stable Outlook) as of 3/28/2019.

Links to EMMA Disclosures on Roosevelt University’s Debt Ratings History and filings
related to its Series 2007 Bonds:

Series 2007 Bonds: https://emma.msrb.org/IssueView/Details/MS176228

Note: Unlike the proposed IFA Series 2020 Bonds, and the outstanding IFA Series 2018A-B and
IFA Series 2019A Bonds, the Series 2007 Bonds are not secured by Mortgages on the
University’s real estate holdings (nor are the Series 2007 Bonds supported by a Debt Service
Reserve Fund).

February 2020 (The Bonds will close prior to regulatory approvals to provide for reimbursement
of certain renovation expenditures already incurred. The Bonds will be structured as draw down
bonds. Accordingly, in the event that the acquisition is not approved by regulators, Roosevelt is
likely to cease drawing proceeds. Nevertheless, Roosevelt would, of course, remain obligated to
repay any draws of Series 2020 proceeds.).

The tax-exempt status of the proposed IFA Series 2020 Bonds will be integral in helping
Roosevelt reduce its borrowing costs, thereby enabling the University to maintain affordable
tuition, maintain its infrastructure, provide new course offerings, and accelerate integration of
Robert Morris University’s operations into Roosevelt University in order to accomplish the
announced objectives of Roosevelt University’s asset acquisition of Robert Morris University.

Background —
Roosevelt Univ.:

BUSINESS SUMMARY

Roosevelt University (“Roosevelt” or the “University”) is a private, non-sectarian, Illinois not-
for-profit institution of higher education with campuses located in downtown Chicago and in
Schaumburg (located SW of the 1-290/1-90 (Jane Adams Tollway) interchange). The University
was established in 1945 and was named in honor of both former President Franklin D. Roosevelt
and First Lady Eleanor Roosevelt. The University is incorporated as a 501(c)(3) corporation for
federal income tax purposes.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 17

Project Summary Report —

Background Information for Final Bond Resolution
January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher



Roosevelt University Project Summary Report —
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds Background Information for Final Bond Resolution
Page 6 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher

Pursuant to the form of draft Final Bond Resolution as of 1/7/2020, bond proceeds may also used
by Roosevelt in connection with capital expenditures undertaken by Roosevelt University at five
leased facilities where operations of Robert Morris University may be continued (with Roosevelt
assuming the leases) subsequent to the RMU acquisition, including: 1507 Waukegan Road in
Waukegan, IL; 206 SW Adams Street in Peoria, IL; 2121 South Goebertt Road in Arlington
Heights, IL; 12 South Center Street in Bensenville, IL; and, 17130 Prime Boulevard in Lockport,
IL.

Roosevelt University is governed by a 31-member Board of Trustees (see pp. 11-12).
Additionally, there are 7 Life Trustees and 3 Honorary Trustees.

There is one additional organizational unit (The Auditorium Theatre of Roosevelt University, Inc.
or “The Auditorium Theatre”, and Illinois not-for-profit corporation) whose financial results are
consolidated with Roosevelt University.

As presented in Roosevelt University’s most recent EMMA-posted financial statements (audit
report for FYE 8/31/2019), unrestricted operating revenues of the Auditorium Theatre comprised
less than 1.5% of the Unrestricted Consolidated Operating Revenues of Roosevelt University and
its affiliates.

Description —

Roosevelt Univ.: Roosevelt University was initially chartered as Thomas Jefferson College on March 28, 1945 and
had financial backing from Marshall Field III, the Julius Rosenwald Foundation, the International
Ladies' Garment Workers Union, and numerous others. Two weeks later, President Franklin D.
Roosevelt died. The college obtained his widow Eleanor's permission to rename the institution as
Roosevelt College in President Roosevelt’s memory (the College was later rededicated to both
Franklin and Eleanor Roosevelt in 1959).

The University is a four-year university with campuses in the Loop and Schaumburg. The
University’s stated mission has been “to make higher education available to all academically
qualified students regardless of their background”.

Roosevelt University - Facilities and Physical Expansion:

e In 1947, Roosevelt purchased the historic Auditorium Building at 430 S. Michigan
Ave. which has housed the University’s Chicago classes since that time, numerous
administrative offices, and the Auditorium Theatre of Roosevelt University.

e In August 1996, the University opened its 225,000 SF Albert A. Robin Campus in
Schaumburg which is located on approximately 27 acres of land and repurposed a
portion of the former regional headquarters facility of the Union Qil Company of
California. The Schaumburg campus is home to the University’s Doctor of Pharmacy
program, which accepted its inaugural class in July 2011 and received full accreditation
in 2014. The Schaumburg campus is also home to the University’s Industrial-
Organizational Psychology Ph.D. program. (Following the proposed acquisition of
Robert Morris, Roosevelt intends to relocate RMU’s nursing and allied health programs
to renovated space at the Schaumburg campus.)

e In 2007, the University expanded its downtown Chicago footprint by acquiring
approximately 126,000 SF of office condominium space in the Gage Building located
at 18-28 S. Michigan Avenue. Roosevelt sold this Gage Building office condominium
space to National Louis University in December 2018 (see p. 7 for Strategic Real Estate
Divestitures).

e In 2012, the University opened the Lillian and Larry Goodman Center (the
“Goodman Center” is located at 501 S. Wabash Ave., (SE corner of E. Ida B. Wells
Dr. and S. Wabash Ave). The Goodman Center is a two-story, 27,834-gross-square-foot
athletic facility field house featuring a multi-purpose gymnasium on the second floor and
first-floor space containing offices, meeting rooms, a team lounge, locker rooms, an

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 18



Roosevelt University Project Summary Report —
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds Background Information for Final Bond Resolution
Page 7 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher

athletic training room, and a strength and conditioning center which is also home to
Roosevelt’s indoor intercollegiate athletic teams.

e In 2012, the University opened its new, 32-story downtown campus facility at 421-
425 S. Wabash Avenue, known as the “Wabash Building”. The Wabash Building is
the second-tallest higher education building in the U.S. and the sixth tallest in the world.
The Wabash Building serves as a “vertical campus” and is a multi-purpose building
hosting (i) classrooms, (ii) science labs, (iii) administrative offices, and (iv)
approximately 600 beds of student residences (located on floors 14-32), with shared
lounges overlooking Lake Michigan on each floor). The Wabash Building was partially
financed (development cost of approximately $123MM according to published reports)
with a portion of the proceeds of an approximately $183.64MM IFA bond issue (issued
December 9, 2009).

Roosevelt University - Strategic Real Estate Divestitures:

e In August 2017, the University sold its ownership interest in the Educational
Advancement Fund, Inc., a 1,729-bed University Center Chicago student housing
facility. (The University Center Chicago project was owned by the Educational
Advancement Fund, Inc. (“EAF”), a joint venture special purpose corporation that was
co-owned by Roosevelt University, DePaul University, and Columbia College Chicago to
construct, own, and operate the University Center Chicago facility.) The University
continues to lease space in the building for its students under a long-term agreement.

e In December 2018, Roosevelt sold 100% of the Gage Building office space
(comprising administrative and faculty offices and classroom space) to National
Louis University. In advance of this divestiture, Roosevelt had relocated offices and
moved classes previously located at the Gage Building to its Wabash Building (421-425
S. Wabash) and Auditorium Building (430 S. Michigan Ave.). (IFA issued $26.5 million
of Bonds on behalf of National Louis University in early 2019, with a portion of the
proceeds to be applied to finance renovations of the Gage Building condominium space
to enable relocation and consolidation of Kendall College into National Louis
University.)

Recent Development — October 7, 2019 — Announcement of Merger/Integration of Robert
Morris University (Illinois) into Roosevelt University:

On October 7, 2019, Roosevelt University and Robert Morris University (Illinois) announced
submission of an application by Roosevelt University to the Higher Learning Commission to make
Robert Morris University a part of Roosevelt (with a decision anticipated in Spring 2020). The
new university would continue to be named Roosevelt University. Roosevelt is planning to create
a new college within the University, the Robert Morris Experiential College, in which Robert
Morris programs not currently offered by Roosevelt would reside (e.g., nursing, allied health, and
culinary programs). The integration of Robert Morris University’s nursing program and associate
degree programs in allied health would increase facility utilization at Roosevelt’s Schaumburg
campus (where Roosevelt’s Pharmacy College is located) and complement Roosevelt’s
baccalaureate programs in biology, biochemistry, allied health, and health science administration.
Certain Robert Morris programs would be offered at Roosevelt’s Chicago campus and online.

According to Roosevelt’s website blog on the RMU acquisition and integration plan, the

acquisition will help Roosevelt achieve its key strategic initiatives, which include (i)
improving (i.e., increasing) enrollments; (ii) increasing revenues; and (iii) reducing expenses.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 19



Roosevelt University Project Summary Report —
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds Background Information for Final Bond Resolution
Page 8 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher

Public Information on Roosevelt University’s Acquisition of Robert Morris University:

NOTE: The joint Roosevelt University/Robert Morris University Press Release announcing
the Roosevelt acquisition together with key excerpts from Roosevelt’s publicly posted
Roosevelt/Robert Morris Merger Blog (which is hyperlinked within Roosevelt’s EMMA -
posted 10/7/2019 press release) are attached as Appendix A to this report.

e Roosevelt University’s 10/7/2019 public announcement link is here (this was posted on
EMMA as of 10/8/2019):
https://emma.msrb.org/ER1261582-ER985524-ER 1387605.pdf

e The link to the Roosevelt’s public blog site regarding the RMU acquisition and
integration plan is here: http://blogs.roosevelt.edu/stronger

Academics, Faculty, and Student Body — Roosevelt University:

Roosevelt University currently offers undergraduate (64 majors and 38 minors) and graduate
degrees (54 graduate programs and 3 doctoral programs) through five colleges: the College of
Arts and Sciences, the Heller College of Business, the Chicago College of Performing Arts, the
College of Education, and the College of Pharmacy.

e Roosevelt University’s top 5 undergraduate majors according to US News and World
Report (2018) were: Psychology; Biology; Hospitality Administration/Management;
Management Science; and Accounting.

e The 10 most popular degree programs for Graduate Students in recent years have been:
MBA, Pharmacy (PharmD), Clinical Psychology (MA); Clinical Psychology (PsyD);
Industrial/Organizational Psychology (MA); Human Resources Management (MSHRM);
Computer Science (MS); Clinical Mental Health Counseling (MA); Accounting (MSA);
and, Integrated Marketing Communications (MS).

According to the University’s most recent public postings (including its annual Financial
Disclosure posting on EMMA in February 2019, which included its 8/31/2018 audited financial
statements), Roosevelt’s publicly disseminated enrollment information and facts for academic year
2018-2019 included the following:

e  Enrollment (headcount) of 4,329 as of Fall 2018 (FY 2019), comprised of 2,419
undergraduate students and 1,910 graduate and doctoral students;

o 213 full-time faculty, with 87% of full-time faculty holding a Ph.D. degree or equivalent;

e A student/faculty ratio of 10:1; and

e An average class size of approximately 18.

Accreditation:

The University is accredited as a Higher Education University by the Higher Learning
Commission of the North Central Association of Colleges and Schools (the “Higher Learning
Commission” or “HLC”).

Additionally, specialized academic programs have also received program-specific accreditation
focusing on the curriculum, faculty resources, and specific methods of assessment for a specific
academic and/or professional discipline. Currently held professional accreditations include:

Accreditation Council for Pharmacy Education (ACPE)
American Bar Association

American Chemical Society

American Psychological Association (PSYD)
Association of Collegiate Business Schools and Programs

Council for Accreditation of Counseling and Related Education Programs
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 20



Roosevelt University Project Summary Report —
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds Background Information for Final Bond Resolution
Page 9 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher

e  Council for the Accreditation of Educator Preparation
e Illinois Veterans Commission
e  National Association of Schools of Music

NOTE: The HLC will be reviewing Roosevelt’s application to acquire Robert Morris University
and presenting to the HLC Board for consideration. HLC Board approval of Roosevelt’s
application to acquire RMU will be necessary (along with approval by the Illinois Board of
Higher Education) before Roosevelt University may proceed to close on the acquisition.
According to Roosevelt’s blog site, HLC Board consideration is contemplated in early 2020.

Press Recognition of Roosevelt’s Campus Diversity:

Roosevelt was ranked as the third most diverse higher education institution in the Midwest in the
2018 edition of the U.S. News & World Report Annual Guide to Colleges while Niche.com ranked
Roosevelt the 4™ best college location in Illinois in 2019 with the sixth-best residence hall in
[linois.

Key Management: About Roosevelt’s (1) President (Dr. Ali R. Malekzadeh) and (2) Chief
Financial Officer (Mr. Andrew Harris):

e Dr. Ali R. Malekzadeh (Ph.D.) — President: Since becoming Roosevelt’s President in
2015, Malekzadeh has worked to raise over $37 million for student scholarships and
grants, and continues to stabilize enrollments. He is a strong advocate for faculty research
and innovation, established a Professional Mentoring Program for students, and created a
Chicago-area council for diversity and inclusion. Under Malekzadeh’s leadership,
Roosevelt has expanded services for veterans and students with disabilities, and focused
on new programs for multicultural students. Prior to Roosevelt, Malekzadeh served as the
Edgerley Family Dean of the College of Business Administration at Kansas State
University, where he increased annual fundraising from an average of $2 million to more
than $40 million, and led the business college in raising funding for a new business
education building.

Dr. Malekzadeh earned his doctorate in business administration with an emphasis on
strategic management from the University of Utah, and a bachelor’s in management and
Masters in Business Administration from the University of Denver.

e  Mr. Andrew Harris — Vice President and Chief Financial Officer: Mr. Harris joined
Roosevelt as Chief Financial Officer on June 1, 2018. Mr. Harris is a senior financial and
operational leader with more than 25 years in the higher education, non-profit and
government sectors, including both higher education and the U.S. military. Mr. Harris
has served public and private universities at the vice president level in finance, budgeting,
treasury/cash operations, technology and general administration. Mr. Harris’ higher
education career began in Boston University (“BU”), where he worked 14 years and
assisted in the transformation of BU from a commuter school to a comprehensive
university with membership in the Association of American Universities. Subsequently,
Mr. Harris joined the University of Chicago (“UofC”) as associate vice president and
university budget director, where he was also involved in bond issues to fund expansion
of the UofC’s physical plant.

Mr. Harris’ UofC tenure was punctuated by an overseas tour of duty with his military
unit, the first of two deployments in his career. Mr. Harris ultimately attained the rank of
colonel, commanded an infantry brigade combat team, and recently retired from the
Vermont Army National Guard for which he last served as chief of staff.

Following his military deployment, Mr. Harris joined the University of North Texas
(“UNT”), where he served in a dual role as (1) vice chancellor for finance of the UNT
System and (2) vice president for finance and administration at the flagship campus,

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 21



Roosevelt University Project Summary Report —
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds Background Information for Final Bond Resolution
Page 10 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher

where he had regular and sustained interaction with governing boards, legislative bodies
and a variety of external entities important to public higher education in Texas.

During Mr. Harris’ nearly 6'2-year tenure at UNT and UNT System his accomplishments
included (1) attaining a double upgrade of UNT’s bond rating from ‘A1’ to ‘Aa2’
(Moody’s); (2) securing financing large-scale campus building projects including: (a) a
football stadium, (b) business school, (c) student union, and (d) other campus
infrastructure projects; and (3) implementing a long-term investment pool that added
millions in unrestricted cash to the operating budget of UNT.

Mr. Harris is a graduate of the Boston University Questrom School of Business and the
U.S. Army War College, having earned an MBA and a Master’s degree in strategic
studies.

PROJECT SUMMARY (FOR FINAL BOND RESOLUTION)

Roosevelt University, an Illinois not for profit corporation (the “University” or “Roosevelt”), has requested that the
Authority issue not-to-exceed $15,000,000 (excluding original issue discount and premium, if any) in aggregate
principal amount of revenue bonds consisting of (i) one or more series or subseries of Revenue Bonds (Roosevelt
University) Series 2020A initially bearing interest at fixed, tax-exempt rates (the “Series 2020A Bonds”) and (ii)
one or more series or subseries of Revenue Bonds (Roosevelt University) Series 2020B initially bearing interest at
fixed, taxable rates (the “Series 2020B Bonds” and together with the Series 2020A Bonds, the “Series 2020
Bonds”) in providing all or some of the funds necessary to do any or all of the following: (i) pay or reimburse the
University for the payment of the costs of acquiring certain assets of Robert Morris University, an Illinois not for
profit corporation (“RMU”); (ii) pay or reimburse the University for the payment of the costs of acquiring fixtures,
furniture and equipment, making improvements to leased and/or owned facilities and relocating staff and programs,
(iii) fund capitalized interest, (iv) fund one or more debt service reserve funds for the benefit of the Series 2020
Bonds, if deemed necessary or desirable by the University, and (v) paying certain expenses incurred in connection
with the issuance of the Series 2020 Bonds, all as permitted by the Illinois Finance Authority Act (the “Act”, and
(1)-(v), collectively, the “Financing Purposes”).

The educational facilities to be financed from the proceeds of the Bonds are or will be (i) owned and operated by
Roosevelt; (ii) located on land owned by Roosevelt at or near 421-425 South Wabash Avenue, Chicago, Illinois; 430
South Michigan Avenue, Chicago, Illinois; 509 South Wabash Avenue, Chicago, Illinois and 1400 North Roosevelt
Boulevard, Schaumburg, Illinois; and (iii) located on land leased to RMU (which leases will be assigned to
Roosevelt) at or near 1507 Waukegan Road, Waukegan, Illinois; 206 SW Adams Street, Peoria, Illinois; 2121 South
Goebertt Road, Arlington Heights, Illinois; 12 South Center Street, Bensenville, Illinois; and 17130 Prime
Boulevard, Lockport, Illinois.

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Applicant: Roosevelt University, 430 S. Michigan Ave. Chicago, IL 60605

Contact: Mr. Andrew Harris, CFO, 430 S. Michigan Ave. Chicago, IL 60605; (T) 312.341.3583 email:
aharris52@roosevelt.edu

Applicant

Website: http://www.roosevelt.edu

Project name:  Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2020 (Roosevelt University Project)

Locations —

Prospective

Project Sites: Proceeds may be used at the following locations: 421-425 South Wabash Avenue, Chicago,
[llinois (Wabash Building); 430 South Michigan Avenue, Chicago, Illinois (Auditorium Building);
501 South Wabash Avenue, Chicago, Illinois 60605 (Goodman Center); 1400 North Roosevelt
Boulevard, Schaumburg, Illinois 60173 (Schaumburg Campus); 1507 Waukegan Road,
Waukegan, IL; 206 SW Adams Street, Peoria, IL; 2121 South Goebertt Road, Arlington Heights,
IL; 12 South Center Street, Bensenville, IL; and, 17130 Prime Boulevard, Lockport, IL.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 22



Roosevelt University Project Summary Report —

501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds Background Information for Final Bond Resolution

Page 11 January 14, 2020
Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher

Organization:  Illinois not-for-profit corporation; incorporated as a 501(c)(3) not-for-profit corporation for federal

income tax purposes

Roosevelt

University’s

Board of

Trustees: Roosevelt University’s Board of Trustees (as posted on the University’s website as of

11/14/2019):

Chair/Vice Chair/Officers — Roosevelt University Board of Trustees:
Chair
e  Patricia Harris (BGS, ’80) — Global Chief Diversity Officer and VP of Global
Community Engagement, McDonald’s Corporation
Senior Vice Chairs
e Melvin L. Katten, Senior Counsel, Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP
e Robert Mednick (BS, ’62), Retired Managing Partner, Andersen Worldwide
o Kenneth L. Tucker (BS, ’54), Principal, Kenneth L. Tucker Company
Vice Chair
e  Susan T. Bart, Partner, Schiff Hardin LLP
Secretary to the Board
e Bruce A. Crown, Chairman, BevBar, Inc.

Public Members — Roosevelt University Board of Trustees:
e Steven H. Abbey, Senior Vice President, Huntington Bank
e  Marian Azzaro, Faculty Trustee (Associate Professor of Integrated Marketing, Roosevelt
University)
Tom Balanoff, President, SEIU Local 1
Stephen Cerrone, Chief Human Resources Officer, SunEdison
e  Mark Crayton, Faculty Trustee (Lecturer Voice — Chicago College of Performing Arts,
Roosevelt University)
e  Maureen A. Ehrenberg, Jones Lang LaSalle
e Gerald W. Fogelson, President, The Fogelson Properties, Inc.
e Ann Ford, Chief Ethics and Compliance Officer — Privacy Officer; Medline Industries,
Inc.
e Viki Fuller (BSBA, ’79), Former Chief Investment Officer, NYS Common Retirement
Fund
e Thomas Gladden, Founder, Macrosight LLC
John R. Hall, IIT, Ed.D., CEO, Edugaged, LLC
Gregory Hauser, Faculty Trustee (Professor of Education Leadership)
Larissa Herczeg, Managing Director, CIO, Oak Street Real Estate Capital
Meme Hopmayer
Abby Kahaleh, Faculty Trustee (Associate Professor of Pharmacy Administration,
Roosevelt University)
e John O. Keshner, Managing Director — Endowments and Foundations, The Northern
Trust
e William J. Kirby, Retired, FMC Corporation
e Ron Kubit, CCO, Sopris Health
Robert Y. Paddock, Executive Vice President and Vice Chairman, Paddock Publications,
Inc.
Joseph A. Pasquinelli, Foundation Principal Archideas
Terry Peterson, VP — Government Affairs, Rush University Medical Center
Maurice Smith, President, Health Care Service Corporation
Marek A. Wierzba, Partner — Assurance & Advisory Business Services, Ernst & Young
Robert L. Wieseneck (BS, ’58), Retired, SPS Payment Systems, Inc.
e Carolyn Wiley, Faculty Trustee (Professor of Management, Roosevelt University)

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 23



Roosevelt University

501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds

Project Summary Report —
Background Information for Final Bond Resolution

Page 12 January 14, 2020
Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher
Life Trustees — Roosevelt University Board of Trustees:
e Charles R. Gardner, Manager, CDCT Land Company LLC
e Joe F. Hanauer, Principal Combined Investments LLC
e David Hiller, President & Chief Executive Officer, Robert R. McCormick Foundation
e Donald S. Hunt, Retired President & COO, Harris Trust and Savings Bank (BMO Harris)
e Robert Johnson, Retired — Johnson Bryce, Inc.
e Anthony R. Pasquinelli, Vice President, BnA Homes LLC
e Anna Eleanor Roosevelt, CEO, Goodwill Industries of Northern New England
e Manfred Steinfeld, Retired — The Steinfeld Consultancy LLC
Honorary Trustees — Roosevelt University Board of Trustees:
e Frederick S. Addy (Chairman Emeritus)
e Barbara T. Bowman
e Charles R. Middleton (President Emeritus)
PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL
Auditor: Crowe Horwath LLP Chicago, IL
Borrower’s Counsel: Chuhak & Tecson Chicago, IL Andrew Tecson
Financial Advisor to
Borrower: Columbia Capital Management, = Chicago, IL Jeff White
LLC Overland Park, KS Adam Pope
Bond Counsel: Katten Muchin Rosenman LLP Chicago, IL Janet Hoffman
Chad Doobay
Underwriter: Well Fargo Securities, LLC Chicago, IL
Underwriter’s Counsel: ~ Mayer Brown LLP Chicago, IL David Narefsky,
Jeremy Cannon
Initial Investor/Bond Purchaser (via
Private Placement): Preston Hollow Capital, LLC Dallas, TX Charlie Visconsi
Investor’s Counsel: Squire Patton Boggs LLP Columbus, OH Greg Daniels
Bond Trustee: BNY Mellon Chicago, IL Eydie Wrobel,
Robert Hardy
IFA Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL David Kates,
Sharone Levy
IFA Financial Advisor:  Acacia Financial Group, Inc. Chicago, IL Phoebe Selden,
Brittany Whelen
LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS
RU-Loop RU-Schaumburg Arlington
Campus Campus  Waukegan Peoria Heights Bensenville Lockport
Congressional: 7 8 10 17 8 8 3
State Senate: 3 28 30 46 27 39 19
State House: 5 55 59 92 53 77 37

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 24



Project Summary Report —

Background Information for Final Bond Resolution
January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton and Brad R. Fletcher

Roosevelt University
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds
Page 13

SITE MAPS (Source: Bing Maps)

1. Roosevelt University —properties subject to Mortgage which secure the IFA Series 2018A-B, IFA
Series 2019A, and the proposed IFA Series 2020 Bonds.

Glenview  Wilmette
R/ Mount Prospect Evarston
1400 N Roosevelt Blvd, pes plaines
Schaumburg, IL 60173 Niles = Skokie
Bartlett 390) 50
754) 401 S Michigan Ave,

Carol Stream Chicago, IL 60605
Elmhurst

& Oak Park

Wheaton - Lombard Ju ) 425 S Wabash Ave,

o Cicero Chicago, IL 60605
110 Berwyn

P Q_‘Q‘{
Downers Grove &P
&

Naperville o}

(Note: Chicago campus also includes 501 S. Wabash (Goodman Center))

2. Leased Facilities identified in IFA Bond Resolution for prospective use by the Robert Morris Experiential
College at Roosevelt University (5 Locations):

Racine

1507 Waukegan Rd,
Waukegan, IL 60085

o Qo

ke . Belvidere
Freeport Rockford 50

2121 S Goebbert Rd, l =
Arlington Heights, IL 60005 °

12 S Center 5t,
Bensenville, IL 60106

Janesville ___ "._2'
L 43

Woodstock

n i 51 3
6 Aurara iﬁ Mic
4 50 Portage
17130 Prime Bivd, g =
Lockpeort, IL 60441 ~
6 Vvalpar:
@
55 [ 55 Kankakee
51 55 )
72} { 55 Pontiac {57
A Watseka
206 SW Adams St,
Peoria, IL 61602
& Bloomington

g

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 25



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum
To: IFA Board of Directors
From: Sara Perugini
Date:  January 14, 2020
Re: Assist Northwest Community Hospital with amendments related to the Illinois Finance Authority

Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B, Series 2008C and Series 2011 (Northwest
Community Hospital)
IFA 2011 File Number H-HO-TE-CD-8477

On October 17, 2008, the Illinois Finance Authority (the *““Authority”) issued its (i) Illinois Finance
Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B (Northwest Community Hospital) (the *““Series
2008B Bonds™), currently outstanding in the aggregate principal amount of $26,785,000, pursuant to a Bond
Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 2008 (the *“Original 2008B Bond Indenture’’), between the Authority
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as bond trustee (the “Bond Trustee”), and (ii) Illinois Finance
Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C (Northwest Community Hospital) (the ““Series
2008C Bonds™ and, together with the Series 2008B Bonds, the “Series 2008 Bonds™), currently outstanding in
the aggregate principal amount of $26,785,000, pursuant to a Bond Trust Indenture dated as of September 1,
2008 (the ““Original 2008C Bond Indenture” and, together with the Original 2008B Bond Indenture, the
“Original 2008 Bond Indentures’), between the Authority and the Bond Trustee. The proceeds of the Series
2008 Bonds were loaned to Northwest Community Hospital, an Illinois not for profit corporation (the
“Hospital’”), pursuant to two Loan Agreements each dated as of September 1, 2008, between the Authority
and the Hospital.

On December 1, 2011, the Authority issued its Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand
Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 (Northwest Community Hospital) (the *““Series 2011 Bonds™ and, together with
the Series 2008 Bonds, the “Series 2008/2011 Bonds™), currently outstanding in the aggregate principal
amount of $39,500,000, pursuant to a Bond Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 2011 (the “Original 2011
Bond Indenture” and, together with the Original 2008 Bond Indentures, the “Original Bond Indentures™)
between the Authority and the Bond Trustee. The proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds were loaned to the
Hospital pursuant to the Loan Agreement dated as of December 1, 2011 between the Authority and the
Hospital.

The Hospital desires to convert each series of the Series 2008/2011 Bonds to bear interest at fixed
rates in accordance with the provisions of the applicable Original Bond Indenture (such conversions being
referred to herein as the “Conversion”).

To accomplish the foregoing, each series of the Series 2008/2011 Bonds will be subject to mandatory
tender on the date of the Conversion and remarketed to and purchased by JPMorgan Chase Bank, National
Association (““JPMorgan’”), DNT Asset Trust, a wholly owned subsidiary of JPMorgan or another affiliate of
JPMorgan (the ““Purchaser™), on a direct purchase basis.

The Hospital and the Purchaser desire to make certain amendments to each Original Bond Indenture in
connection with the Conversion to provide for (i) a cross-default to the supplemental bondholder’s agreements

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 26



Northwest Community Hospital Resolution for Bond Indenture Amendments
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 2 Sara Perugini

to be executed between the Hospital and the Purchaser with respect to each series of Series 2008/2011 Bonds,
and (ii) a new form of each series of Series 2008/2011 Bond be executed and delivered on the date of the
Conversion (collectively, the “Purchaser-Requested Bond Indenture Amendments”).

In order to have the Series 2008/Series 2011 Bonds comply with the Authority’s requirements for
nonrated bonds and to conform to the current provisions of the Authority’s Bond Program Handbook, the
Authority has requested certain amendments to each Original Bond Indenture in connection with the
Conversion to provide for (i) the Series 2008/2011 Bonds to be in minimum denominations of $100,000 and
$5,000 multiples in excess thereof while bearing interest at fixed rates and (ii) the Executive Director of the
Authority and certain other persons to execute the Series 2008/2011 Bonds (collectively, the “Authority-
Requested Bond Indenture Amendments” and, together with the Purchaser-Requested Bond Indenture
Amendments, the “Bond Indenture Amendments’”).

The Hospital has requested that the Authority authorize and approve certain of its Members and
officers to execute supplements to the Original Bond Indentures to effectuate the Bond Indenture
Amendments; as well as execute, authorize and/or approve any other supplements, documents, certificates or
undertakings as deemed necessary or required in connection with carrying out and complying with the matters
set forth above and in the Resolution.

The amendments to the Original Series 2008 Bond Indentures are authorized by the existing terms of
those documents, and will be consented to by the Purchaser. The amendments to the Original Series 2011
Bond Indenture will be consented to by the Purchaser. Chapman and Cutler LLP is expected to provide an
opinion that the Conversion and the Bond Indenture Amendments will not adversely affect the tax-exempt
status of any of the bonds.

IFA staff recommends the approval of the accompanying resolution.

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Borrower’s Financial

Advisor: Kaufman Hall Chicago, IL Glenn Wagner
Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL David Kates
Bond Purchaser: JP Morgan Chicago, IL Luke Kowal
Bank Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL David Field
Issuer’s Counsel: Foley & Lardner LLP Chicago, IL Laura Bilas
IFA Financial

Advisor: Acacia Financial Group, Inc. Chicago, IL Phoebe Selden

Brittany Whalen

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

The Board of Directors for the Hospital is listed below:

Diane G. Hill

Mary R. Sheahen, M.S., R.N.
Craig E. Christell

Jay S. Cowen, M.D.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 27



Northwest Community Hospital
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds
Page 3

Guy W. Eisenhuth

Ann K. Ford

John L. Gatta

Marla F. Glabe

Richard D. Hoffman
Thomas P. MacCarthy
E. Quinn Regan, M.D.
Stephen O. Scogna
Kenneth Spero, M.D.
Thomas G. Wischhusen

Resolution for Bond Indenture Amendments

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 28

January 14, 2020
Sara Perugini



Northwest Community Hospital Resolution for Bond Indenture Amendments
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 4 Sara Perugini

RESOLUTION 2020-0114-CF__

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING AMENDMENTS RELATED
TO THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY VARIABLE RATE DEMAND
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2008B (NORTHWEST COMMUNITY
HOSPITAL), ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY VARIABLE RATE
DEMAND REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2008C (NORTHWEST
COMMUNITY HOSPITAL) AND ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
VARIABLE RATE DEMAND REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2011
(NORTHWEST COMMUNITY HOSPITAL), THE PROCEEDS OF WHICH
WERE LOANED TO NORTHWEST COMMUNITY HOSPITAL.

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the *““Authority’”) has been created by, and
exists under, the Illinois Finance Authority Act, as amended; and

WHEREAS, on October 17, 2008, the Authority issued its (i) Illinois Finance Authority
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B (Northwest Community Hospital) (the
“Series 2008B Bonds™) pursuant to a Bond Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 2008 (the
“Original 2008B Bond Indenture”), between the Authority and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as bond trustee (the “Bond Trustee™), and (ii) Illinois Finance Authority Variable
Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008C (Northwest Community Hospital) (the *““Series
2008C Bonds™ and, together with the Series 2008B Bonds, the “Series 2008 Bonds™) pursuant to
a Bond Trust Indenture dated as of September 1, 2008 (the “Original 2008C Bond Indenture”
and, together with the Original 2008B Bond Indenture, the “Original 2008 Bond Indentures™),
between the Authority and the Bond Trustee; and

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Series 2008 Bonds were loaned to Northwest Community
Hospital, an Illinois not for profit corporation (the ““Hospital’”), pursuant to two separate Loan
Agreements each dated as of September 1, 2008, between the Authority and the Hospital; and

WHEREAS, on December 1, 2011, the Authority issued its Illinois Finance Authority
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2011 (Northwest Community Hospital) (the
“Series 2011 Bonds™ and, together with the Series 2008 Bonds, the “Series 2008/2011 Bonds™)
pursuant to a Bond Trust Indenture dated as of December 1, 2011 (the *““Original 2011 Bond
Indenture” and, together with the Original 2008 Bond Indentures, the “Original Bond
Indentures™) between the Authority and the Bond Trustee; and

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Series 2011 Bonds were loaned to the Hospital pursuant to
the Loan Agreement dated as of December 1, 2011 between the Authority and the Hospital; and

WHEREAS, the Hospital desires to convert each series of the Series 2008/2011 Bonds to

bear interest at fixed rates in accordance with the provisions of the applicable Original Bond
Indenture (such conversions being referred to herein as the ““Conversion’); and

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 29



Northwest Community Hospital Resolution for Bond Indenture Amendments
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 5 Sara Perugini

WHEREAS, to accomplish the foregoing, each series of the Series 2008/2011 Bonds will
be subject to mandatory tender on the date of the Conversion and remarketed to and purchased
by JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association (“‘JPMorgan’), DNT Asset Trust, a wholly
owned subsidiary of JPMorgan or another affiliate of JPMorgan (the ““Purchaser’), on a direct
purchase basis; and

WHEREAS, the Hospital and the Purchaser desire to make certain amendments to each
Original Bond Indenture in connection with the Conversion to provide for certain additional
events of default, changes to the authorized denominations for the Series 2008/2011 Bonds while
bearing interest at fixed rates and certain other amendments (collectively, the “Bond Indenture
Amendments”); and

WHEREAS, a draft of the First Supplemental Bond Trust Indentures each between the
Authority and the Bond Trustee (the “First Supplemental Bond Indentures” and, together with
the Original Bond Indentures, the “Bond Indentures™) describing the Bond Indenture
Amendments has been previously provided to the Authority and is on file with the Authority;
and

WHEREAS, in connection with the Conversion, the following additional documents may
be executed and delivered by parties other than the Authority (collectively, the “Additional
Transaction Documents™):

(1) a Second Supplemental Master Trust Indenture among the Hospital,
Northwest Community Healthcare, an Illinois not for profit corporation (the “Parent”),
and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as master trustee, providing for, among
other things, the issuance of the Bank Obligations (as hereinafter defined);

(i) a separate Supplemental Bondholder’s Agreement each among the
Hospital, the Parent and the Purchaser, related to each series of Series 2008/2011 Bonds
(collectively, the ““Supplemental Bondholder’s Agreements™ and, each, a “Supplemental
Bondholder’s Agreement”);

(iii)  a Direct Note Obligation, Series 2008B (DNT Asset Trust) (the “Series
2008B Bank Obligation”), which will be pledged to the Purchaser as security for the
Supplemental Bondholder’s Agreement related to the Series 2008B Bonds;

(iv)  a Direct Note Obligation, Series 2008C (DNT Asset Trust) (the “Series
2008C Bank Obligation’”), which will be pledged to the Purchaser as security for the
Supplemental Bondholder’s Agreement related to the Series 2008C Bonds; and

(v)  a Direct Note Obligation, Series 2011A-2 (DNT Asset Trust) (the ““Series
2011 Bank Obligation” and, together with the Series 2008B Bank Obligation and the
Series 2008C Bank Obligation, the ““Bank Obligations’), which will be pledged to the
Purchaser as security for the Supplemental Bondholder’s Agreement related to the Series
2011 Bonds;

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 30



Northwest Community Hospital Resolution for Bond Indenture Amendments
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 6 Sara Perugini

Now THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Illinois Finance Authority as follows:

Section 1.  Approval of the Conversion and the Bond Indenture Amendments. The
Authority hereby approves the Conversion and the Bond Indenture Amendments.

Section 2. First Supplemental Bond Indentures. The Authority does hereby authorize
and approve the execution by its Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Executive Director, or General
Counsel, or any person duly appointed by the Members to serve in such offices on an interim
basis (each an “Authorized Officer’) and the delivery of the First Supplemental Bond Indentures.
The First Supplemental Bond Indentures shall be substantially in the form on file with the
Authority and hereby approved, or with such changes therein as shall be approved by the
Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the same, with such execution to constitute
conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s approval of any
changes or revisions therein from such form of the First Supplemental Bond Indentures, and to
constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s
approval thereof.

Section 3. New Bonds. In order to carry out the remarketing of the Series 2008/2011
Bonds to the Purchaser and the effectiveness of the Bond Indenture Amendments, the Authority
hereby authorizes and approves the execution and delivery to the Purchaser of a new and
amended bond with respect to each series of the Series 2008/2011 Bonds (each, a “New Bond”
and, together, the “New Bonds™), in substantially the form attached to the related First
Supplemental Bond Indenture as Exhibit A and previously provided to and on file with the
Authority or with such changes therein as any Authorized Officer shall approve, the execution
thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval of any and all changes or revisions
therein from such form. Such New Bonds shall be executed in the name, for and on behalf of the
Authority with the manual or facsimile signature of its Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or its
Executive Director and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Executive Director,
Secretary or any Assistant Secretary, or any person duly appointed by the Members of the
Authority to serve in such office on an interim basis, and may have the corporate seal of the
Authority impressed manually or printed by facsimile thereon. The Chairman, Vice Chairman,
Executive Director or any other office of the Authority shall cause the New Bonds, as so
executed and attested, to be delivered to the Bond Trustee, as bond registrar, for authentication.
When such New Bonds are executed on behalf of the Authority in the manner contemplated by
the Bond Indentures and this Resolution, they shall represent the approved forms of such New
Bonds.

Section 4.  Tax Agreements. The Authority is hereby authorized to enter into one or
more Tax Exemption Certificates and Agreements (together, the “Tax Agreements’) with the
Hospital, the Parent and the Bond Trustee in the form to be approved by bond counsel, by
counsel for the Hospital and the Parent and by counsel to the Authority; the Authorized Officers
of the Authority be, and each of them hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to execute
and deliver the Tax Agreements as so approved; when such Tax Agreements are executed and
delivered on behalf of the Authority as herein provided, such Tax Agreements will be binding on
the Authority; and from and after the execution and delivery of such Tax Agreements, the

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 31



Northwest Community Hospital Resolution for Bond Indenture Amendments
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 7 Sara Perugini

officers, employees and agents of the Authority are hereby authorized, empowered and directed
to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary or desirable
to carry out and comply with the provisions of such Tax Agreements as executed.

Section 5.  Direct Placement; Investor Letter; Restrictions on Transfers. The
Authority hereby authorizes the execution and delivery of the New Bonds to the Purchaser on a
direct purchase basis pursuant to the Bond Indentures; the Purchaser shall deliver an investment
letter to the Authority (in the form approved by counsel to the Authority and consistent with the
Authority’s Bond Program Handbook) stating, among other things, that the Purchaser is either an
institutional “accredited investor” within the meaning of Regulation D, Sections 501 through 506
or a “qualified institutional buyer” within the meaning of Rule 144A, under the Securities Act of
1933, as amended; and each such investor letter shall contain such restrictions as counsel to the
Authority shall reasonably determine are necessary or advisable, on the transfer of the New
Bonds by the Purchaser or by any accredited investor or qualified institutional buyer to which the
Purchaser transfers any of the New Bonds. Based on the fact that the Hospital reasonably
expects that the New Bonds will be sold to the Purchaser, who is a qualified institutional buyer
or accredited investor, in a private placement in minimum denominations of at least $100,000,
the Authority finds that the issuance of the New Bonds complies with the Authority’s policy
regarding unrated bonds.

Section 6.  Additional Transaction Documents. The Authority does hereby approve the
execution and delivery of the Additional Transaction Documents. The Additional Transaction
Documents shall be in substantially the forms previously provided to and on file with the
Authority and hereby approved, with such changes therein as shall be approved by, or in such
final forms as are approved by, the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the First
Supplemental Bond Indentures, with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such
Authorized Officer’s approval and the Authority’s approval of the final forms of the Additional
Transaction Documents or any changes or revisions therein from such forms of the Additional
Transaction Documents.

Section 7. Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts. The Members, officers,
agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such acts and
things and to execute, approve and/or accept, as applicable, all such agreements, certificates,
instruments and documents (including, without limitation, the execution and delivery of one or
more IRS Forms 8038 and one or more supplemental loan agreements) as may be necessary to
carry out and comply with the provisions of these resolutions, the First Supplemental Bond
Indentures and the Bond Indenture Amendments, and all of the acts and doings of the Members,
officers, agents and employees of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent and
purposes of these resolutions and within the parameters set forth herein, whether heretofore or
hereafter taken or done, shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved.

Section 8.  Severability. The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
separable, and if any section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be
invalid, such declaration shall not affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and
provisions of this Resolution.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 32



Northwest Community Hospital Resolution for Bond Indenture Amendments
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 8 Sara Perugini

Section 9.  Conflicts. All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith
are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict.

Section 10.  Effectiveness. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately
upon its passage, as by law provided.

Approved and effective this 14th day of January, 2020 by vote as follows:
Ayes:

Nays:

Abstain:

Absent:

Vacant:
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

By

Executive Director
ATTEST:

Assistant Secretary

[SEAL]

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 33



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum
To: IFA Board of Directors
From: Sara Perugini
Date:  January 14, 2020
Re: Resolution Authorizing Amendments Relating to the Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate

Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 A (Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health Care Centers),
the Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B (Little Company
of Mary Hospital and Health Care Centers), and the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Series
2015 (Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health Care Centers); and Approving Related Matters
IFA 2015 File Number: H-HO-TE-CD-8479

The Illinois Finance Authority (“IFA”) has previously issued three series of bonds for the benefit
Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health Care Centers (“LCOM”): (i) the $67,170,000 Illinois Finance
Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008 A (Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health
Care Centers) (the “Series 2008A Bonds”), of which $42,240,000 are currently outstanding, (ii) the
$67,170,000 Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B (Little Company
of Mary Hospital and Health Care Centers) (the “Series 2008B Bonds” and, together with the Series 2008 A
Bonds, the “Series 2008 Bonds”), of which $42,220,000 are currently outstanding and (iii) the $102,000,000
[llinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 (Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health Care
Centers) (the “Series 2015 Bonds” and, together with the Series 2008 Bonds, the “Bonds”), of which
$102,000,000 are currently outstanding.

LCOM and OSF Healthcare System (“OSF”), have entered into an Affiliation Agreement dated
October 7, 2019 under the terms of which LCOM will merge into OSF on or about February 1, 2020 (the
“Transaction”). The master trust indenture relating to LCOM will be terminated and the obligations issued
thereunder securing the Bonds will be cancelled and exchanged for obligations issued pursuant to the OSF
master trust indenture (the “MTI Note Exchange”). OSF and LCOM have requested that the IFA execute
supplements and amendments to documents relating to the Bonds, and certain other documents, which may be
necessary to reflect the assumption by OSF of the obligations of LCOM with respect to the Bonds as a result of
the Transaction and the MTI Note Exchange, and to provide any necessary waivers, consents or approvals in
connection with the Transaction and MTI Note Exchange.

The Series 2008 Bonds are secured by letters of credit issued by Barclays Bank PLC (the “Bank”), and
the terms of such bond trust indentures permit the Bank to consent to amendments to the LCOM master trust
indenture and bond documents relating to the Series 2008 Bonds. The Series 2015 Bonds were private placed
and are currently owned by DNT Asset Trust (the “Series 2015 Bondholder” and a wholly-owned subsidiary of
JPMorgan Chase Bank, National Association), and the Series 2015 Bondholder has the authority to consent to
amendments to the LCOM master trust indenture and bond documents relating to the Series 2015 Bonds. The
Transaction and the MTI Note Exchange will not be completed until the requisite consents have been obtained.
Chapman and Cutler LLP is expected to provide an opinion that the Transaction and MTI Note Exchange will
not adversely affect the tax-exempt status of the Bonds.

The IFA resolution approves the execution of supplements and amendments to documents relating to
the Bonds, and certain other documents, which may be necessary to reflect the assumption by OSF of the
obligations of LCOM as a result of the Transaction and MTI Note Exchange, and to provide any necessary
waivers, consents or approvals in connection with the Transaction and MTI Note Exchange.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 34



OSF Healthcare System Resolution Authorizing Amendments
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 2 Sara Perugini

IFA staff recommends the approval of the accompanying resolution.

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL John Bibby
Megan Rudd

Borrower’s Counsel: Foley & Lardner Chicago, IL Laura Bilas

Borrower’s Financial

Advisor: Kaufman Hall Chicago, IL Matt Robbins

Bank Counsel: Nixon Peabody LLP Chicago, IL Julie Seymour

Issuer’s Counsel: Quarles & Brady LLP Chicago, IL Mary Ann Murray

IFA Financial

Adpvisor: Sycamore Advisors LLC Chicago, IL Diana Hamilton

Courtney Tobin

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT
The Board of Directors for OSF is listed below:

Sister Judith Ann, O.S.F.
Sister Diane Marie, O.S.F.
Sister Agnes Joseph, O.S.F
Sister Theresa Ann, O.S.F.
Sister Rose Therese, O.S.F.
Sister M. Mikela, F.S.G.M.
Robert Sehring

Gerald McShane, MD
Brian Silverstein, MD

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 35



OSF Healthcare System Resolution Authorizing Amendments
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 3 Sara Perugini

RESOLUTION 2020-0114-CF _

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS RELATING TO THE ILLINOIS
FINANCE AUTHORITY VARIABLE RATE DEMAND REVENUE BONDS, SERIES
2008A (LITTLE COMPANY OF MARY HOSPITAL AND HEALTH CARE
CENTERS), ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY VARIABLE RATE DEMAND
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2008B (LITTLE COMPANY OF MARY HOSPITAL
AND HEALTH CARE CENTERS), AND THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2015 (LITTLE COMPANY OF MARY HOSPITAL AND
HEALTH CARE CENTERS); AND APPROVING RELATED MATTERS

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”’) has been created by, and
exists under, the Illinois Finance Authority Act (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously issued its (i) Illinois Finance Authority
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008A (Little Company of Mary Hospital and
Health Care Centers) (the “Series 2008A Bonds™), (ii) Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate
Demand Revenue Bonds, Series 2008B (Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health Care
Centers) (the “Series 2008B Bonds” and, together with the Series 2008 A Bonds, the ““Series
2008 Bonds™) and (iii) Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bonds, Series 2015 (Little Company
of Mary Hospital and Health Care Centers) (the “Series 2015 Bonds” and, together with the
Series 2008 Bonds, the “Bonds”) for the benefit of Little Company of Mary Hospital and Health
Care Centers, an Illinois not for profit corporation (“LCOM”); and

WHEREAS, the Series 2008 Bonds are secured by letters of credit issued by Barclays
Bank PLC (the “Bank’) and the terms of the bond trust indentures pursuant to which the Series
2008A Bonds and the Series 2008B Bonds were issued (the ““Series 2008 Bond Indentures™)
permit the Bank to consent to amendments to the LCOM Master Indenture (described below),
the Series 2008 Bond Indentures and the loan agreements pursuant to which the Authority loaned
the proceeds of the Series 2008 Bonds to LCOM (the ““Series 2008 Loan Agreements’”) on behalf
of the owners of the Series 2008 Bonds; and

WHEREAS, all of the Series 2015 Bonds were privately placed and are currently owned
by DNT Asset Trust (the “Series 2015 Bondholder’”) and, as the owner of the Series 2015
Bonds, has the authority to consent to certain amendments to the LCOM Master Indenture, the
bond trust indenture pursuant to which the Series 2015 Bonds were issued (the *““Series 2015
Bond Indenture’) and the loan agreement pursuant which the Authority loaned the proceeds of
the Series 2015 Bonds to LCOM (the ““Series 2015 Loan Agreement’’); and

WHEREAS, LCOM and OSF Healthcare System, an Illinois not for profit corporation
(“OSF”), have entered into an Affiliation Agreement dated October 7, 2019 under the terms of
which LCOM will merge into OSF on or about February 1, 2020 (the “Transaction”); and

WHEREAS, LCOM has previously executed a Master Trust Indenture dated as of April
15, 2008, as amended (the “LCOM Master Indenture’”), with U.S. Bank, National Association,
as master trustee (the “LCOM Master Trustee’), under which LCOM has issued certain
obligations (the “LCOM Obligations™) securing the Bonds; and
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 36



OSF Healthcare System Resolution Authorizing Amendments
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 4 Sara Perugini

WHEREAS, OSF has previously executed a Third Amended and Restated Master Trust
Indenture dated as of October 1, 2018, as amended (the “OSF Master Indenture”), among OSF
and certain other members of an Obligated Group created thereunder (the “OSF Obligated
Group”), and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as master trustee (the “OSF Master
Trustee™); and

WHEREAS, LCOM and OSF will solicit the consent of the Bank and the Series 2015
Bondholder to amend or waive certain provisions of (i) the LCOM Master Indenture, (ii) the
Series 2008 Bond Indentures and the Series 2015 Bond Indenture (together, the “LCOM Bond
Indentures™), (iii) the Series 2008 Loan Agreements and the Series 2015 Loan Agreement
(together, the “LCOM Loan Agreements”), to permit the termination of the LCOM Master
Indenture and the cancelation of the LCOM Obligations in exchange for obligations of OSF
issued pursuant to the OSF Master Indenture (the “OSF Replacement Obligations™) as security
for the Bonds (referred to herein as the “MTI Note Exchange”); and

WHEREAS, LCOM and OSF have requested that the Authority execute such
supplements and amendments to the LCOM Bond Indentures, the LCOM Loan Agreements, or
any other documents executed by the Authority in connection with the issuance of the Series
2008 Bonds and the Series 2015 Bonds (the “LCOM Bond Documents’) which may be necessary
in order to reflect the assumption by OSF of the obligations of LCOM under such Bond
Documents as a result of the Transaction and the MTI Note Exchange and to provide any
necessary waivers, consents or approvals as may be necessary under the LCOM Bond
Documents in connection with Transaction and the MTI Note Exchange;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as follows:

Section 1.  Approval of Documents. The Authority does hereby authorize and approve
the execution by its Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Executive Director, General Counsel or any
Assistant Executive Director of the Authority, or any person duly appointed by the Members of
the Authority to serve in such offices on an interim basis (each an “Authorized Officer”) and the
delivery and use of such supplements and amendments to the LCOM Bond Documents as may
be required in order to reflect the assumption by OSF of the obligations of LCOM under such
LCOM Bond Documents as a result of the Transaction and to evidence the the MTI Note
Exchange (as determined by an Authorized Officer). Such amendments and supplements shall
be substantially in the forms approved by the Authorized Officer of the Authority executing the
same, with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such Authorized Officer’s
approval and the Authority’s approval of the forms of such documents.

Section 2.  Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts. The Members,
officers, agents and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such
acts and things and to execute or accept all such documents (including, without limitation,
providing any necessary waivers, consents or approvals as may be necessary under the LCOM
Bond Documents in connection with Transaction and the MTI Note Exchange) as may be
necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of these resolutions, and all of the acts and
doings of the Members, officers, agents and employees of the Authority which are in conformity
with the intent and purposes of these resolutions, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done,
shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified, confirmed and approved. Unless otherwise provided
therein, wherever in any document executed pursuant hereto it is provided that an action shall be

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 37



OSF Healthcare System Resolution Authorizing Amendments
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds January 14, 2020
Page 5 Sara Perugini

taken by the Authority, such action shall be taken by an Authorized Officer of the Authority, or
in the event of the unavailability, inability or refusal of an Authorized Officer to act, any two
Members of the Authority, each of whom is hereby authorized, empowered, delegated the power
and duty and directed to take such action on behalf of the Authority, all within the parameters set
forth herein and in the applicable document.

Section 3.  Conflicts. All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith
are hereby superseded to the extent of such conflict.

Adopted and effective this 14th day of January 2020:
Ayes:
Nays:
Abstain:
Absent:

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

By

Executive Director

ATTEST:

Assistant Secretary

[SEAL]

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 38



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum
To: IFA Board of Directors
From: Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher
Date:  January 14, 2020
Re: Resolution Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of a First Amendment to Trust Indenture Relating to

the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 (North American Spine Society) to
Provide for Certain Amendments Relating to a Conversion to the New Long-Term Rate Period and Certain
Other Matters; Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Any Other Documents Necessary or Appropriate
to Effect the Matters Set Forth in Such First Amendment; and Authorizing and Approving Related Matters
IFA 2014 File Number: N-NP-TE-CD-8672

Request:

North American Spine Society, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Borrower”) and BMO Harris Bank
N.A. (the “Bond Purchaser” or “Bank”), are requesting approval of a Resolution to (i) authorize the execution and
delivery of a First Amendment to Trust Indenture and (ii) approve related documents to effectuate a change in the
interest rate formula relating to the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 (North
American Spine Society) (the “Series 2014 Bond”).

On February 26, 2014, the Authority issued the Series 2014 Bond in the original principal amount of $8,860,000
which was purchased by the Bank in order to fully redeem the outstanding Illinois Finance Authority Variable Rate
Demand Revenue Bonds (North American Spine Society) Series 2007 (the “Prior Bonds”). The Prior Bonds were
secured by a direct-pay letter of credit from the Bank which was otherwise scheduled to expire.

Currently, the Series 2014 Bond is bearing a variable rate of interest based on LIBOR during the Index Rate Period
for an initial term of approximately 7 years otherwise ending February 26, 2021, with a final maturity date of
December 1,2031. The outstanding principal amount of the Series 2014 Bond was approximately $5,500,000 as of
January 1, 2020.

Impact:

Approval of this Resolution will provide consent to changes as agreed to by the Borrower and the Bank concerning
the Series 2014 Bond. Specifically, the Borrower and the Bank desire to convert the Series 2014 Bond from the
Index Rate to a Long-Term Rate and extend the initial term approximately 9 and 6 months to July 1, 2029. The
effective interest rate borne on the Series 2014 Bond during the Long-Term Rate Period will be subject to certain
calculations as provided for in Section 2.06 of the Trust Indenture and performed by the Bank in its capacity as
Remarketing Agent.

Bond counsel has determined that a new public hearing on the project (i.e., “TEFRA Hearing” as defined by
Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) will not be required.

Background:

Proceeds of the Series 2014 Bond were loaned to North American Spine Society in order to provide the Borrower
with all or a portion of the funds necessary to (i) refund the outstanding Prior Bonds and (ii) pay certain costs and
expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Series 2014 Bond and the refunding of the Prior Bonds.

Proceeds of the Prior Bonds (Series 2007) were loaned to North American Spine Society to provide the funds
necessary to (a) pay or reimburse, the costs of acquiring, constructing, renovating, remodeling, and equipping
improvements to an approximately 38,230 gross square foot facility to house a bio-skills laboratory, classrooms,
offices, a multi-media center and a spine care museum, and all necessary and attendant facilities, land, equipment,
site work, and utilities related thereto (the “Project”), (b) pay a portion of the interest accruing on the Prior Bonds
during the period of construction of the Project, (c) fund a debt service reserve fund, (d) fund working capital for the
Project, and (e) pay certain expenses incurred in connection with the issuance of the Prior Bonds.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 39



North American Spine Society Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds to Trust Indenture
Page 2 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

All scheduled payments relating to the Series 2014 Bond were current as of 1/1/2020 and have been paid as
scheduled.

As a conduit bond issue, BMO Harris Bank, N.A., as the Bond Purchaser is assuming 100% of the borrower default
risk on the Series 2014 Bond.

Recommendation:

The Project Review Committee recommends approval.

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

The Board of Directors for the Borrower is listed below:

William Sullivan Paul Arnold
Eeric Truumees Charles Cho
Edward Dohring Jonathan Grauer
Jeffrey Wang Christopher Kauffman
John Finkenberg William Mitchell
David O'Brien Thomas Mroz
Zoher Ghogawala Donna Ohnmeiss
Patrick Hsieh Richard Skolasky
Scott Kreiner Karin Swartz
Mitchell Reiter Michael Fehlings
Charles Reitman Donna Lahey
Philip Schneider Eric Muehlbauer

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Borrower’s Counsel: ~ Polsinelli P.C. Chicago, IL Janet Zeigler

Bond Counsel: Nixon Peabody LLP Chicago, IL Julie Seymour
Barry Carrigan

Bond Purchaser: BMO Harris Bank, N.A. Chicago, IL Kyle Suddarth
Mitchell Krafcheck

Bank Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL Carol Thompson

Issuer’s Counsel: Sanchez Daniels & Hoffman LLP Chicago, IL Heather Erickson

IFA Financial

Advisor: Acacia Financial Group, Inc. Chicago, IL Phoebe Selden

Brittany Whalen

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 40



North American Spine Society Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds to Trust Indenture
Page 2 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

RESOLUTION No. 2020-0114-CF

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FIRST
AMENDMENT TO TRUST INDENTURE RELATING TO THE ILLINOIS FINANCE
AUTHORITY REVENUE REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2014 (NORTH AMERICAN
SPINE SOCIETY) TO PROVIDE FOR CERTAIN AMENDMENTS RELATING TO A
CONVERSION TO THE NEW LONG-TERM RATE PERIOD AND CERTAIN OTHER
MATTERS; AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ANY OTHER
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY OR APPROPRIATE TO EFFECT THE MATTERS SET FORTH IN
SUCH FIRST AMENDMENT; AND AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING RELATED
MATTERS.

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has been created by, and exists under, the
[llinois Finance Authority Act, as amended (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously issued its $8,860,000 original aggregate principal amount Illinois
Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 (North American Spine Society), $5,500,000 of which
remain outstanding (the “Series 2014 Bonds”); and

WHEREAS, the Series 2014 Bonds were issued pursuant to that certain Trust Indenture dated as of February
1, 2014 (the “Original Indenture”) between the Authority and U.S. Bank National Association, as Trustee (the
“Trustee”); and

WHEREAS, the Series 2014 Bonds were sold on a private placement basis to BMO Harris Bank N.A. (the
“Purchaser”) and the proceeds from the sale thereof were loaned to North American Spine Society (the “Borrower”)
pursuant to that certain Loan Agreement dated as of February 1, 2014 between the Authority and the Borrower; and

WHEREAS, under the terms of the Original Indenture, the Series 2014 Bonds currently bear interest at the
“Index Rate” (as defined in the Original Indenture); and

WHEREAS, the Borrower has notified the Authority, the Trustee and the Purchaser of its desire to (1) cause
a conversion of the Series 2014 Bonds to bear interest at a “Long-Term Rate” (as defined in the Original Indenture)
on February 3, 2020 (the “Conversion Date”), and (2) amend the provisions of the Original Indenture regarding
setting the “Long-Term Rate” (as defined in the Original Indenture) (collectively, the “Bond Document
Amendments”); and

WHEREAS, the Long-Term Rate will commence on the Conversion Date and end on July 1, 2029; and

WHEREAS, the parties desire to amend the Original Indenture with the consent of the Purchaser to reflect
the conversion of the Series 2014 Bonds to bear interest at the Long-Term Rate; and

WHEREAS, in order to effect such Bond Document Amendments, the Borrower has requested that the
Authority and the Trustee execute and deliver a First Amendment to Trust Indenture (the “First Amendment”)
between the Authority and the Trustee, supplementing and amending the Original Indenture, (ii) an amended and
restated Series 2014 Bond (the “New Bond”), and (iii) such other documents as may be necessary to effect the
provisions of the Bond Document Amendments; and

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 41



North American Spine Society Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds to Trust Indenture
Page 3 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

WHEREAS, the Borrower has informed the Authority, based upon the advice of bond counsel to the
Authority (“Bond Counsel”), that such Bond Document Amendments may result in the Series 2014 Bonds being
treated as “reissued” or “currently refunded” for federal income tax purposes; and

WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested that the Authority authorize and approve the Bond Document
Amendments and authorize and approve the execution and delivery of the First Amendment, the New Bond and the
execution and delivery of all other documentation deemed necessary or appropriate in connection therewith; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to authorize and approve the Bond Document Amendments and to
authorize and approve the execution and delivery of the First Amendment, the New Bond and any other necessary or
appropriate documentation to effect all of the foregoing;

Now THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority, as follows:

Section 1. Approval of Bond Document Amendments. The Authority hereby authorizes and approves
the Bond Document Amendments; and that the Authority hereby acknowledges, based upon the advice of Bond
Counsel, that the Bond Document Amendments and the execution and delivery of the First Amendment and the
delivery of the New Bond may constitute a “sale” or “exchange” of the Bond under Section 1.1001-3 of the
Treasury Regulations, which is more commonly known as a “reissuance” or “current refunding” of the Bond for
federal income tax purposes.

Section 2. First Amendment. The Authority is hereby authorized to enter into the First Amendment to
effect the Bond Document Amendments; the form, terms and provisions of the First Amendment shall be, and
hereby are, in all respects approved; each of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Executive Director or General
Counsel (and, for purposes of this Resolution, any person duly appointed to any such office on an acting or an
interim basis or otherwise authorized to act as provided by resolutions of the Authority) (each, an “Authorized
Officer”) shall be, and each of them hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver, and the
Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority shall be and each of them hereby is, authorized, empowered
and directed to attest and to affix the official seal of the Authority to, the First Amendment in the name, for and on
behalf of the Authority, such First Amendment to be in substantially the same form of the First Amendment
previously provided to and on file with the Authority or with such changes therein as any Authorized Officer shall
approve, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval of any and all changes or revisions
therein from such form; and that from and after the execution and delivery of the First Amendment, the officers,
employees and agents of the Authority are hereby also authorized, empowered and directed to do all such acts and
things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and comply with the provisions of the
First Amendment as executed; and that the First Amendment shall constitute, and hereby is made, a part of this
Resolution, and a copy of the First Amendment shall be placed in the official records of the Authority and shall be
available for public inspection at the office of the Authority.

Section 3. New Series 2014 Bond. In order to carry out the effectiveness of the Bond Document
Amendments, the Authority hereby authorizes and approves the execution and delivery to the Purchaser of the New
Bond, such New Bond to be in substantially the form attached to the First Amendment as Exhibit A and previously
provided to and on file with the Authority or with such changes therein as any Authorized Officer shall approve, the
execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from
such form; such New Bond shall be executed on behalf of the Authority with the manual or facsimile signature of its
Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or Executive Director (and for purposes of this Resolution, any person duly
appointed to any such office on an acting or an interim basis or otherwise authorized to act as provided by

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 42



North American Spine Society Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds to Trust Indenture
Page 4 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

resolutions of the Authority) and attested with the manual or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary and the corporate seal of the Authority shall be impressed or imprinted thereon; the Authority shall cause
the New Bond, as so executed by the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Executive Director or any person duly
appointed to any such office on an acting or an interim basis or otherwise authorized to act as provided by
resolutions of the Authority and attested by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary, to be delivered to the Trustee for
authentication; and when such New Bond is executed on behalf of the Authority in the manner contemplated by the
Original Indenture, as supplemented and amended by the First Amendment, and this Resolution, it shall represent
the approved form of such New Bond.

Section 4.  Tax Agreement. The Authority is hereby authorized to enter into a Tax Exemption and
Certificate Agreement (the “Tax Agreement”) with the Borrower, if deemed necessary by Bond Counsel, in the form
to be approved by Bond Counsel, the Borrower and by General Counsel to the Authority; the Authorized Officers of
the Authority be, and each of them hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to execute and deliver the Tax
Agreement as so approved; when such Tax Agreement is executed and delivered on behalf of the Authority as
herein provided, such Tax Agreement will be binding on the Authority; and from and after the execution and
delivery of such Tax Agreement, the officers, employees and agents of the Authority are hereby authorized,
empowered and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary or
desirable to carry out and comply with the provisions of such Tax Agreement as executed.

Section 5.  Other Documents. The Authorized Officers shall be, and each of them hereby is,
authorized to (i) execute and deliver such documents, certificates and undertakings of the Authority to effect the
Bond Document Amendments and the foregoing described matters, including but not limited to, if necessary, the
execution and delivery of one or more IRS Forms 8038 (collectively, the “Other Documents™), (ii) approve the
execution and delivery of such other documents, certificates and undertakings of other parties, including, without
limitation, the Borrower and the Purchaser, and (iii) take such other actions as may be necessary or required in
connection with carrying out and complying with this Resolution, effecting the Bond Document Amendments and
the foregoing described matters and/or the execution, delivery and performance of the First Amendment, the New
Bond, the Tax Agreement and the Other Documents; and all of the acts and doings of the Authorized Officers which
are in conformity with the intent and purposes of this Resolution, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done,
shall be and hereby are authorized, ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 6. Other Acts. All acts of the officers, employees and agents of the Authority which are in
conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution be, and the same hereby are, in all respects, ratified,
approved and confirmed.

Section 7. Severability. The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable, and if
any section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such declaration shall not

affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions of this Resolution.

Section 8.  No Conflict. All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are hereby
superseded to the extent of such conflict.

Section 9. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect
immediately upon its passage, as by law provided.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 43



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum
To: IFA Board of Directors
From: Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher
Date:  January 14, 2020
Re: Resolution Authorizing and Approving the Execution and Delivery of a First Amendment to the Bond and

Loan Agreement Dated as of December 1, 2011 with The British Home for Retired Men and Women and
First Midwest Bank and Approving the Execution of an Amended Bond and Certain Other Agreements
Relating Thereto; and Related Matters

IFA Series 2011 File Number: N-NP-TE-CD-8507

Request:

The British Home for Retired Men and Women doing business as Cantana Adult Life Services and Cantana at
Home (the “Borrower”), an Illinois not for profit corporation, and First Midwest Bank, N.A. (the “Bank” or
“Bond Purchaser”) are requesting approval of a Resolution to (i) authorize the execution and delivery of a First
Amendment to Bond and Loan Agreement and (ii) approve related documents to effectuate a change in the interest
rate formula borne on the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Bond (The British Home for Retired Men and Women
Project), Series 2011 (the “Series 2011 Bond”).

In 2001, the Illinois Development Finance Authority issued its $9,500,000 Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds
(The British Home for Retired Men and Women Project), Series 2001 (the “Prior Bonds”) secured by a direct-pay
letter of credit from Bank of America, N.A., as successor to LaSalle Bank, N.A., which were 7-day floating rate
bonds that were privately placed by LaSalle Capital Markets.

In 2011, the Authority issued the Series 2011 Bond in the approximate amount of $7,778,845 which was purchased
in whole by First Midwest Bank, N.A. in order to:

e  Refund the Prior Bonds in the approximate amount of $6,090,205 and convert the debt from a
direct-pay letter of credit structure to a bank direct-purchase structure;

e Refinance taxable debt in the approximate amount of $1,576,390 as tax-exempt debt; and

e Pay cost of issuance in the approximate amount of $112,250.

Currently, the Series 2011 Bond is bearing a fixed rate of interest for an initial term of approximately 10 years
otherwise ending December 1, 2021, with a final maturity date of December 1, 2031. The outstanding principal
amount of the Series 2011 Bond was approximately $4,667,307 as of January 1, 2020.

Impact:

Approval of this Resolution will provide consent to changes as agreed to by the Borrower and the Bank concerning
the Series 2011 Bond. Specifically, the Borrower and the Bank desire to decrease the effective interest rate borne on
the Series 2011 Bond by approximately 15 basis points and extend the initial term by approximately 9 years. The
interest rate borne on the Series 2011 Bond will now be based on LIBOR but synthetically fixed.

Bond counsel has determined that a new public hearing on the project (i.e., “TEFRA Hearing” as defined by
Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) will not be required.

Background:

Together with other funds available to the Borrower, Series 2011 Bond proceeds were loaned to the Borrower to
provide the funds necessary to (i) refund or refinance (the "Refunding") (a) the outstanding amount of Illinois

Development Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (The British Home for Retired Men and
Women Project), Series 2001 (the "Prior Bonds") and (b) an existing real estate loan previously used to construct
and equip the Project (the "Prior Loan"), and (ii) pay all or a portion of the costs of issuing the Bonds. The Prior

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 44



The British Home for Retired Men and Women Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bond to Bond and Loan Agreement
Page 2 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

Bonds and the Prior Loan financed the costs of the construction and equipping of an assisted living facility located at
8700 West 31st Street in Brookfield, Illinois, owned and operated by the Borrower and related costs of issuance.

All payments relating to the Series 2011 Bond are current and have been paid as scheduled.

As a conduit bond issue, First Midwest Bank, N.A. as the Bond Purchaser is assuming 100% of the borrower default
risk on the Series 2011 Bond.

Recommendation:

The Project Review Committee recommends approval.

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

The Board of Directors and Officers for the Borrower are listed below:

Name Title
Andy Jaworski Director
Barbara Bond Director

Ellen Hoye-Cortopassi  Director

Jeanne Fournier Director
Karen Garrison President
Lorna Bennett Director
Pat Pike Director
Paul Mc Allister Treasurer
Susanne Vogel Director
Bruce Jablonski Secretary
Marlene Ricca Director
Elisa Robinson Director
John Larson CEO
Kevin Heraty CDO

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Bond Counsel: Ice Miller LLP Chicago, IL Jim Snyder
Austin Root
Bond Purchaser: First Midwest Bank Chicago, IL Mary Byker
Bank Counsel: Vedder Price P.C. Chicago, IL Matthew T. O’Connor
Issuer’s Counsel: Greenberg Traurig LLP Chicago, IL Lorraine Tyson
IFA Financial
Advisor: Sycamore Advisors LLC Chicago, IL Courtney Tobin

Justin O’Shea

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 45



The British Home for Retired Men and Women Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bond to Bond and Loan Agreement
Page 3 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

RESOLUTION No. 2020-0114-CF

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FIRST
AMENDMENT TO THE BOND AND LOAN AGREEMENT DATED AS OF DECEMBER 1, 2011 AMONG
ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY, THE BRITISH HOME FOR RETIRED MEN AND WOMEN AND FIRST
MIDWEST BANK AND APPROVING THE EXECUTION OF AN AMENDED BOND AND CERTAIN OTHER
AGREEMENTS RELATING THERETO; AND RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, the ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY (the “Authority”) a body politic and corporate
duly organized and validly existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Illinois (the “State”), including,
without limitation the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1, as supplemented and amended (the
“Act”), is authorized by the laws of the State, including, without limitation, the Act, to issue its bonds for the
purpose set forth in the Act and to permit the expenditure of the proceeds thereof to defray, among other things, the
cost of the acquisition and improvement of “projects” as defined in the Act; and

WHEREAS, THE BRITISH HOME FOR RETIRED MEN AND WOMEN, an Illinois not-for-profit
corporation (the “Borrower”), has requested that the Authority amend its Revenue Bonds (The British Home for
Retired Men and Women Project), Series 2011 (the “Bond”), issued in the original principal amount of
$7,778,845.51, of which an aggregate of not more than $4,667,307 remains outstanding, for the purpose of assisting
the Borrower in providing all or a portion of the funds necessary to: (i) refinance or refund (a) the outstanding
amount of Illinois Development Finance Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (The British Home for
Retired Men and Women Project), Series 2001 (the “Prior Bonds”) and (b) an existing real estate loan previously
used to construct and equip the hereinafter defined Prior Project (the “Prior Loan”), and (ii) pay all or a portion of
the costs of issuance for the Bonds, all as permitted by the Act (collectively, the “Financing Purposes”); and

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Prior Bonds and the Prior Loan were used to finance the costs of the
construction and equipping of an assisted living facility located at 8700 West 31st Street in in Brookfield, Illinois,
owned and operated by the Borrower (the “Prior Project”); and

WHEREAS, the Bond was sold to First Midwest Bank, an Illinois banking corporation (the “Purchaser’)
in whole; and

WHEREAS, a draft of the document entitled “First Amendment to Bond and Loan Agreement and Related
Documents” is hereby presented to the Authority at this meeting (the “Authority Document”) and is attached hereto
as Exhibit A; and

WHEREAS, the Authority Document is substantially in a form approved by the Authority and on file with
the Authority; and

WHEREAS, under the Authority Document, the Authority, the Borrower and the Purchaser agree to
amend the Interest Rate on the Bond and certain other amendments, all as more fully described in the Authority
Document.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Illinois Finance Authority as follows:

Section 1. Findings. Based solely on the representations made by the Borrower, the Authority
hereby makes the following findings and determinations with respect to the Borrower, the Bond to be issued by the

Authority and the facilities financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Bond:

(a) The Borrower is an Illinois not-for-profit corporation organized under the laws of the
State of Illinois and is qualified to do business in the State of Illinois;

(b) The Borrower has properly filed with the Authority its request for assistance in providing
funds to the Borrower which the Borrower will use for the purposes aforesaid;

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 46



The British Home for Retired Men and Women Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bond to Bond and Loan Agreement
Page 4 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

(©) The facilities to be financed or refinanced with the proceeds of the Bond do not include
any property used or to be used for sectarian instruction or as a place of religious worship nor any facility
which is used or to be used primarily in connection with any part of the program of a school or department
of divinity for any religious denomination or the training of ministers, priests, rabbis or other professional
persons in the field of religion; and

(d) The Bond was issued for a valid purpose under and in accordance with the provisions of
the Act.

Section 2. Bond. The Bond shall be amended as provided for in the Authority Document (the
“Amended Bond”).

The Amended Bond shall be executed on behalf of the Authority by the manual or facsimile signature of its
Chairperson, its Vice Chairperson, or its Executive Director and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its
Secretary or any Assistant Secretary, and may have the corporate seal of the Authority impressed manually or
printed by facsimile thereon.

Section 3. Authority Document. The Authority does hereby authorize and approve the execution
by its Executive Director, or any person authorized by a Resolution of the Authority (each an “Authorized Officer”)
and the delivery and use of the Authority Document. The Authority Document shall be substantially in the form on
file with the Authority, or with such changes therein as shall be approved by the Authorized Officer of the Authority
executing the same, with such execution to constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s approval and the
Authority’s approval of any changes or revisions therein from the form of such Authority Document hereby
approved, and to constitute conclusive evidence of such person’s approval and the Authority’s approval of the terms
of the Amended Bond.

Section 4. Authorization and Ratification of Subsequent Acts. The Members, officers, agents
and employees of the Authority are hereby authorized and directed to do all such acts and things and to execute or
accept all such documents (including without limitation the execution and delivery of a document setting forth the
agreement and certification of the parties thereto relating to certain federal tax matters) as may be necessary to carry
out and comply with the provisions of these resolutions, the Authority Document, and all of the acts and doings of
the Members, officers, agents, and employees of the Authority which are in conformity with the intent and purposes
of these resolutions, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be and are hereby authorized, ratified,
confirmed and approved.

Section 5. Approval of Acts. All acts of the officials of the Authority which are in conformity with
the purposes and intent of this Resolution and in furtherance of the Amended Bond, and the same hereby are, in all
respects, approved and confirmed.

Section 6. Severability. The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable and
if any section, phrase or provision shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such declaration shall not affect the

validity of remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions.

Section 7. Repeal of Conflicting Provisions. All resolutions and parts thereof in conflict herewith
are hereby repealed to the extent of such conflict.

Section 8. Full Force and Effect. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately
upon its passage, as by law provided.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 47



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Memorandum
To: IFA Board of Directors
From: Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher
Date:  January 14, 2020
Re: Resolution Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of (i) a First Amendment to Bond and Loan Agreement

Relating to the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2017A (Museum of Science
and Industry) and (ii) a First Amendment to Bond and Loan Agreement Relating to the Illinois Finance
Authority Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2017B (Museum of Science and Industry), in Each Case, to
Provide for Certain Amendments Relating to the Interest Rate Determination and Certain Other Matters;
Authorizing the Execution and Delivery of Any Other Documents Necessary or Appropriate to Effect the
Matters Set Forth in Such First Amendments; and Authorizing and Approving Related Matters

IFA 2017 File Number: 12390

Request:

Museum of Science and Industry, an Illinois not-for-profit corporation (the “Museum” or “Borrower”), and PNC
Bank, N.A. (the “Series 2017A Purchaser”), as well as BMO Harris Bank, N.A. (the “Series 2017B Bond
Purchaser” and, together with the 2017A Purchaser, the “Bond Purchasers”), are requesting approval of a
Resolution to (i) authorize the execution and delivery of the respective First Amendments to the Bond and Loan
Agreement and (ii) approve related documents to effectuate a change in the interest rate formula borne on both the
Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2017A (Museum of Science and Industry) (the “Series
2017A Bond”) and the Illinois Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2017B (Museum of Science and
Industry) (the “Series 2017B Bond”).

On May 30, 2017, the Authority issued its Series 2017A Bond in the original principal amount of $35 million which
was purchased by PNC Bank, N.A. and its Series 2017B Bond in the original principal amount of $25 million which
was purchased by BMO Harris Bank, N.A. Issuance of the Series 2017A Bond and Series 2017B Bond refunded the
following Series 2009 Bonds (as defined herein) which were each secured by a Direct Pay Latter of Credit otherwise
scheduled to expire on September 30, 2017:

@) $14,900,000 Illinois Finance Authority Adjustable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Museum of Science
and Industry, Series 2009A (“Series 2009A Bonds”);

(i1) $14,900,000 Illinois Finance Authority Adjustable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Museum of Science
and Industry, Series 2009B (“Series 2009B Bonds”);

(iii) $14,900,000 Illinois Finance Authority Adjustable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Museum of Science
and Industry, Series 2009C (“Series 2009C Bonds”); and

(iv) $14,900,000 Illinois Finance Authority Adjustable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Museum of Science
and Industry, Series 2009D (“Series 2009D Bonds” and, together with the Series 2009A Bonds, Series
2009B Bonds, and Series 2009C Bonds, collectively the “Series 2009 Bonds™).

Currently, the Series 2017A Bond and Series 2017B Bond are each bearing a variable rate of interest based on
LIBOR for an initial term of approximately 7 years otherwise ending May 1, 2024, with a final maturity date of
December 1, 2039. As of January 1, 2020, the outstanding principal amounts of the Series 2017A Bond and the
Series 2017B Bond were approximately $32,084,000 and $22,916,000, respectively (or $55.0 million combined).

Impact:

Approval of this Resolution will provide consent to changes as agreed to by the Borrower and the applicable Bond
Purchasers concerning the Series 2017A Bond and Series 2017B Bond. Specifically, the Borrower and the Bond
Purchasers desire to decrease the effective interest rate borne on the Series 2017A Bond and Series 2017B Bond by
approximately 9 basis points and 19 basis points, respectively. Furthermore, BMO Harris Bank, N.A. will be
assigning the Series 2017B Bond to its affiliate BMO Harris Investment Company LLC contemporaneously with the
execution and delivery of the First Amendment to Bond and Loan Agreement.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 48



Museum of Science and Industry Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds to Bond and Loan Agreement
Page 2 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

Bond counsel has determined that a new public hearing on the financing (i.e., “TEFRA Hearing” as defined by
Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended) will not be required.

Background:

Proceeds of the Series 2017A Bond and Series 2017B Bond were loaned to the Borrower in order to provide the
Borrower with all or a portion of the funds necessary to (i) refund or provide for the payment of all of the
outstanding Series 2009 Bonds, and (ii) pay all or a portion of the costs of issuing the Series 2017A Bond and Series
2017B Bond.

Proceeds of the Series 2009 Bonds were loaned to the Borrower in order to provide the Borrower with all or a
portion of the funds necessary to (i) refund all of the outstanding (a) Illinois Educational Facilities Authority
Variable Rate Demand Revenue Bonds, Museum of Science and Industry, Series 1985 (the “Series 1985 Bonds™),
(b) the Tllinois Educational Facilities Authority Adjustable Demand Revenue Bonds, Museum of Science and
Industry, Series 1992 (the “Series 1992 Bonds”), and (c) the Illinois Educational Facilities Authority Revenue
Bonds, Museum of Science and Industry, Series 1998 (the “Series 1998 Bonds) (collectively, the “Prior Bonds”), (ii)
refinance the outstanding principal amount of a loan made to the Museum in February, 2006 (the “2006 Cultural
Pool Loan”) from a portion of the proceeds of the sale of the Illinois Educational Facilities Authority Adjustable
Rate Demand Revenue Bonds (Cultural Pooled Financing Program), Series 1985, (iii) refinance all or a portion of
the funds borrowed by the Museum from The Northern Trust Company to finance certain costs relating to its
cultural facilities (the “Northern Taxable Loan™), (iv) finance, refinance or reimburse itself for the costs of
acquiring, constructing, renovating, improving, furnishing and equipping certain cultural facilities owned or
operated, or to be owned or operated, by the Museum including capitalized interest on the Series 2009 Bonds, and
(V) pay certain costs relating to the issuance of the Series 2009 Bonds (including the costs of credit enhancement
thereof), the refunding of the Prior Bonds, the refinancing of the 2006 Cultural Pool Loan and the refinancing of all
or a portion of the Northern Taxable Loan.

All scheduled payments relating to the Series 2017A Bond and the Series 2017B Bond were current as of 1/1/2020
and have been paid as scheduled.

As a conduit bond issue, PNC Bank, N.A. as Bond Purchaser for the Series 2017A Bond and BMO Harris
Investment Company LLC as Bond Purchaser for the Series 2017B Bond are each assuming 100% of the borrower
default risk on the respective series of bonds owned.

Recommendation:

The Project Review Committee recommends approval.

ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

The Board of Trustees provides oversight and establishes policies for the Museum’s governance.

Chairman James S. Crown James A. Gordon
Christopher M. Crane Kent P. Dauten James A. Gray

Anthony B. Davis Catherine P. Greenspon
Trustees Pedro Delesus, Jr. Douglas C. Grissom
William C. Bartholomay Katherine C. Doyle Gregory L. Hyslop
David C. Bohnett Ann M. Drake Justin Ishbia
Matthew J. Boler James J. Drury 111 Rashod R. Johnson, P.E.
Barbara L. Bowles W. James Farrell Edward L. Kaplan
Byron T. Brazier, D.Min. Michael W. Ferro, Jr. Michael P. Krasny
Allan E. Bulley, Jr. David A. Fisher Avis LaVelle
John A. Canning Jr. Ezequiel Flores Eric P. Lefkofsky
Frank M. Clark James J. Fuentes Charles A. Lewis
Michelle L. Collins Matthew R. Gibson H. John Livingston
Douglas M. Cook James T. Glerum, Jr. Robert A. Livingston
Christopher M. Crane William M. Goodyear Christopher B. Lorenzen

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 49



Museum of Science and Industry
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds
Page 2

Barry L. MacLean
Duncan A. MacLean
DG Macpherson
Matthew M. Maloney
Tom McGuinness
Andrew J. McKenna
David R. Mosena
Oscar Munoz

Robert S. Murley
William A. Mynatt, Jr.
Daniela O’Leary-Gill
Robert F. Pasin
Sheila A. Penrose
John F. Podjasek 111
Jason Pritzker
Michael A. Reinsdorf
J. Christopher Reyes
Larry D. Richman
Manuel Sanchez
John F. Sandner

E. Scott Santi

Smita Shah

Ilan J. Shalit

Virginia K. Simmons
Melody A. Spann-Cooper
J. Douglas Sparkman
Byron O. Spruell
Shundrawn A. Thomas
David J. Vitale

Ralph Wanger
Michelle M. Warner
Gregory D. Wasson
Ann C. Williams

Peng Zhao

Elizabeth Ziegler

Life Trustees

Charles K. Bobrinskoy
Peter R. Carney (*)
Lester Crown

Robert J. Darnall
William J. Devers, Jr.
Dennis J. FitzSimons
Jere D. Fluno

Resolution Authorizing First Amendment

to Bond and Loan Agreement
January 14, 2020
Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

J. Ira Harris

Jay L. Henderson
James R. Kackley

John P. Keller
Frederick A. Krehbiel
Leon M. Lederman, Ph.D. (*)
Richard H. Lenny
Edward M. Liddy
Charles S. Locke (*)
Walter E. Massey, Ph.D.
Robert S. Morrison
Terry E. Newman
James J. O'Connor
William A. Osborn
Cindy Pritzker

Louis A. Simpson
James A. Skinner

S. Jay Stewart

Eugene A. Tracy
Arthur R. Velasquez
Arnold R. Weber, Ph.D.
(*) = Deceased

PROFESSIONAL & FINANCIAL

Bond Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL
2017A Bond

Purchaser: PNC Bank, N.A. Chicago, IL
2017B Bond

Purchaser: BMO Harris Bank, N.A. Chicago, IL
Bank Counsel: Chapman and Cutler LLP Chicago, IL
Issuer’s Counsel: Sanchez Daniels & Hoffman LLP Chicago, IL
IFA Financial

Advisor: Acacia Financial Group, Inc. Chicago, IL

Nancy Burke

Barb Fahnstrom
Jon Casiano

Regina Ward
Shawn Sullivan
Carol Thompson
Heather Erickson

Phoebe Selden
Brittany Whelan

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 50



Museum of Science and Industry Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds to Bond and Loan Agreement
Page 2 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

RESOLUTION No. 2020-0114-CF

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF (I) A FIRST
AMENDMENT TO BOND AND LOAN AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE ILLINOIS
FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2017A (MUSEUM OF
SCIENCE AND INDUSTRY) AND (I1) A FIRST AMENDMENT TO BOND AND LOAN
AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE
REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2017B (MUSEUM OF SCIENCE AND INDUSTRY), IN
EACH CASE, TO PROVIDE FOR CERTAIN AMENDMENTS RELATING TO THE INTEREST
RATE DETERMINATION AND CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS; AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ANY OTHER DOCUMENTS NECESSARY OR
APPROPRIATE TO EFFECT THE MATTERS SET FORTH IN SUCH FIRST AMENDMENTS;
AND AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING RELATED MATTERS.

WHEREAS, the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”) has been created by, and exists under, the
[llinois Finance Authority Act, as amended (the “Act”); and

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously issued its $35,000,000 original aggregate principal amount Illinois
Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2017A (Museum of Science and Industry), of which
$32,084,000 remains outstanding (the “Series 2017A Bond”); and

WHEREAS, the Series 2017A Bond was issued pursuant to that certain Bond and Loan Agreement dated as
of May 1, 2017 (the “Original Series 2017A Agreement”), among the Authority, Museum of Science and Industry
(the “Corporation”) and PNC Bank, National Association, a national banking corporation (the “Series 2017A
Purchaser”); and

WHEREAS, the Series 2017A Bond was sold on a private placement basis to the Series 2017A Purchaser
and the proceeds from the sale thereof loaned to the Corporation, all as more fully described in the Original Series
2017A Agreement; and

WHEREAS, the Authority has previously issued its $25,000,000 original aggregate principal amount Illinois
Finance Authority Revenue Refunding Bond, Series 2017B (Museum of Science and Industry), all of which remains
outstanding (the “Series 2017B Bond” and together with the Series 2017A Bond, the “Bonds”); and

WHEREAS, the Series 2017B Bond was issued pursuant to that certain Bond and Loan Agreement dated as
of May 1, 2017 (the “Original Series 2017B Agreement” and together with the Original Series 2017A Agreement,
the “Original Agreements”), among the Authority, the Corporation and BMO Harris Bank N.A, a national banking
association (the “Original Series 2017B Purchaser”); and

WHEREAS, the Original Series 2017B Purchaser is assigning its ownership interests and rights to and under
the Series 2017B Bond, the Original Series 2017B Agreement and other related documents to its affiliate, BMO
Harris Investment Company LLC (the “Series 2017B Purchaser” and, together with the Series 2017A Purchaser, the
“Purchasers”); and

WHEREAS, under the terms of each of the Original Agreements, each of the Bonds bears interest at the
“Index Floating Rate” (as defined in each of the Original Agreements), which is a variable rate of interest
determined based upon an index rate formula; and

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 51



Museum of Science and Industry Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds to Bond and Loan Agreement
Page 3 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

WHEREAS, such formula takes into account changes the statutory rate of federal income tax imposed on
corporations and applicable to the Purchaser (the “Corporate Tax Rate”) such that the Index Floating Rate on each
of the Bonds increases when the Corporate Tax Rate decreases; and

WHEREAS, after the issuance of the Bonds, the Corporate Tax Rate decreased and, as a result, the Index
Floating Rate on each of the Bonds increased; and

WHEREAS, each of the Purchasers and the Corporation desire to amend each of the related Original
Agreements to amend the definitions of Applicable Factor, Applicable Margin and Margin Rate Factor and make
certain other related changes in order to limit the impact of the increase in the Corporate Tax Rate on the calculation
of the Index Floating Rate (such amendments are collectively referred to herein as the “Bond Document
Amendments”); and

WHEREAS, in order to effect such Bond Document Amendments and to evidence the assignment of the
Series 2017B Bond by the Original Series 2017B Purchaser to the Series 2017B Purchaser as described above, the
Corporation has requested that the Authority execute and deliver (i) a First Amendment to Bond and Loan
Agreement (the “Series 2017A First Amendment”) among the Authority, the Corporation and the Series 2017A
Purchaser, supplementing and amending the Original Series 2017A Agreement, (ii) a First Amendment to Bond and
Loan Agreement (the “Series 2017B First Amendment” and, together with the Series 2017A First Amendment, the
“First Amendments”) among the Authority, the Corporation and the Series 2017B Purchaser, supplementing and
amending the Original Series 2017B Agreement, (iii) an amended and restated Series 2017B Bond (the “New Series
2017B Bond”), and (iv) such other documents as may be necessary to effect the Bond Document Amendments; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation has informed the Authority that upon giving effect to the Bond Document
Amendments, the amount of interest on each of the Bonds that is currently payable by the Corporation to each of the
Purchasers, respectively, will decrease; and

WHEREAS, the Corporation has requested that the Authority authorize and approve the Bond Document
Amendments and authorize and approve the execution and delivery of the First Amendments, the New Series 2017B
Bond and any other documentation deemed necessary or appropriate to effect the foregoing; and

WHEREAS, the Authority desires to authorize and approve the Bond Document Amendments and to
authorize and approve the execution and delivery of the First Amendments, the New Series 2017B Bond and any
other documentation deemed necessary or appropriate to effect the foregoing;

Now THEREFORE, Be It Resolved by the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority, as follows:

Section 1.  Approval of Bond Documents Amendments. The Authority hereby authorizes and approves
the Bond Document Amendments.

Section 2. First Amendments. The Authority is hereby authorized to enter into each of the First
Amendments to effect the Bond Document Amendments; the form, terms and provisions of each of the First
Amendments shall be, and hereby are, in all respects approved; each of the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson,
Executive Director or General Counsel (and, for purposes of this Resolution, any person duly appointed to any such
office on an acting or an interim basis or otherwise authorized to act as provided by resolutions of the Authority)
(each, an “Authorized Officer”) shall be, and each of them hereby is, authorized, empowered and directed to execute
and deliver, and the Secretary or any Assistant Secretary of the Authority shall be and each of them hereby is,

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 52



Museum of Science and Industry Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds to Bond and Loan Agreement
Page 4 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

authorized, empowered and directed to attest and to affix the official seal of the Authority to, each of the First
Amendments in the name, for and on behalf of the Authority, such First Amendments to be in substantially the same
form thereof previously provided to and on file with the Authority or with such changes therein as any Authorized
Officer shall approve, the execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval of any and all
changes or revisions therein from such form; and that from and after the execution and delivery of each of the First
Amendments, the officers, employees and agents of the Authority are hereby also authorized, empowered and
directed to do all such acts and things and to execute all such documents as may be necessary to carry out and
comply with the provisions of each of the First Amendments as executed; and that each of the First Amendments
shall constitute, and hereby is made, a part of this Resolution, and a copy of each of the First Amendments shall be
placed in the official records of the Authority and shall be available for public inspection at the office of the
Authority.

Section 3. New Series 2017B Bond. In order to evidence the assignment of the Series 2017B Bond by
the Original Series 2017B Purchaser to the Series 2017B Purchaser, the Authority hereby authorizes and approves
the execution and delivery to the Series 2017B Purchaser of the New Series 2017B Bond, such New Series 2017B
Bond to be in substantially the form attached to the Series 2017B First Amendment as Exhibit A and previously
provided to and on file with the Authority or with such changes therein as any Authorized Officer shall approve, the
execution thereof to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval of any and all changes or revisions therein from
such form; such New Series 2017B Bond shall be executed on behalf of the Authority with the manual or facsimile
signature of its Chairperson, Vice Chairperson or Executive Director (and for purposes of this Resolution, any
person duly appointed to any such office on an acting or an interim basis or otherwise authorized to act as provided
by resolutions of the Authority) and attested by the manual or facsimile signature of its Secretary or any Assistant
Secretary and the seal of the Authority shall be impressed or imprinted thereon; the Authority shall cause the New
Series 2017B Bond, as so executed by the Chairperson, Vice Chairperson, Executive Director or any person duly
appointed to any such office on an acting or an interim basis or otherwise authorized to act as provided by
resolutions of the Authority and attested by the Secretary or Assistant Secretary, to be delivered to the Series 2017B
Purchaser, as bond registrar, for authentication; and when such New Series 2017B Bond is executed on behalf of the
Authority in the manner contemplated by the Original Series 2017B Agreement, as supplemented and amended by
the Series 2017B First Amendment, and this Resolution, it shall represent the approved form of each of such New
Series 2017B Bond.

Section 4.  Other Documents. Each of the Authorized Officers is authorized to (i) execute and deliver
such documents, certificates and undertakings of the Authority to effect the Bond Document Amendments, the
assignment of the Series 2017B Bond and the foregoing described matters (collectively, the “Other Documents”),
(ii) approve the execution and delivery of such other documents, certificates and undertakings of other parties,
including, without limitation, the Corporation and each of the Purchasers, and (iii) take such other actions as may be
necessary or required in connection with carrying out and complying with this Resolution, effecting the Bond
Document Amendments, the assignment of the Series 2017B Bond and the foregoing described matters and/or the
execution, delivery and performance of the First Amendments, the New Series 2017B Bond and the Other
Documents; and all of the acts and doings of the Authorized Officers which are in conformity with the intent and
purposes of this Resolution, whether heretofore or hereafter taken or done, shall be and hereby are authorized,
ratified, approved and confirmed.

Section 5. Other Acts. All acts of the officers, employees and agents of the Authority which are in

conformity with the purposes and intent of this Resolution be, and the same hereby are, in all respects, ratified,
approved and confirmed.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 53



Museum of Science and Industry Resolution Authorizing First Amendment
501(c)(3) Revenue Bonds to Bond and Loan Agreement
Page 5 January 14, 2020

Rich Frampton & Brad R. Fletcher

Section 6. Severability. The provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be separable, and if
any section, phrase or provision hereof shall for any reason be declared to be invalid, such declaration shall not

affect the validity of the remainder of the sections, phrases and provisions of this Resolution.

Section 7. No Conflict. All resolutions and orders, or parts thereof, in conflict herewith are hereby
superseded to the extent of such conflict.

Section 8.  Effective Date. This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its
passage, as by law provided.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 54



160 North LaSalle Street
Suite S-1000

Chicago, IL 60601
312-651-1300
312-651-1350 fax
www.il-fa.com

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

&1

Date: January 14, 2020

To: Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (“Authority”)

From: Chris Meister, Executive Director

Subject: IFA Comments on S&P Global Ratings Proposed Methodology

The Authority took the opportunity to comment on S&P Global Ratings’ Proposed Methodology for U.S.
Rental Housing Bonds, please see the attached letter, dated December 18, 2019.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 55


http://www.il-fa.com/

g I[A

% ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY 160 North LaSalle Street
‘ Suite S-1000
Chicago, IL 60601

‘ 312-651-1300

312-651-1350 fax
www.il-fa.com

Via Electronic Mail December 18, 2019
Ms. Marian Zucker

Housing Sector Lead

S&P Global — Ratings

55 Water Street, 38" Floor

New York, New York 10041

Re:  Illinois Finance Authority Comment on S&P Global Ratings’ Proposed
Methodology for U.S. Rental Housing Bonds

Dear Ms. Zucker:

Thank you for the opportunity for the Illinois Finance Authority (“Authority”’) to comment on
your proposed methodology. Representatives of the Authority did participate in the S&P Global
Ratings webcast on November 7, 2019.

Authority Background

The Illinois Finance Authority (“Authority”) is a body politic and corporate created by State law
and exercises its powers as an essential public function. 20 ILCS 3501/801-15. Among the
General Assembly’s policy declarations with respect to the Authority is the determination:

<

‘. . . that in the absence of direct governmental subsidies the unaided operations of
private enterprise do not provide sufficient resources for residential construction,
rehabilitation, rental or purchase, and that support from housing related commercial
facilities is one means of stimulating residential construction, rehabilitation, rental and
purchase . ..” 20 ILCS 3501/801-5 (h).

The issuance of federally tax-exempt conduit bonds as allowed by the federal tax code and State
law is the Authority’s primary means to fulfill its policy declarations, including Section 801-5
(h) of the Authority Act. See 20 ILCS 3501/801-10(dd). Additionally, fees generated by the
issuance of federally tax-exempt conduit bonds is the Authority’s primary revenue source since
the Authority does not receive State appropriations to support its operations. Importantly, the
Authority, as a conduit issuer, is not a regulator of either the bond issues or the projects financed
with bond proceeds.

Better Housing Foundation Bonds

The Authority served as a federally tax-exempt conduit bond issuer for five separate bond issues
between 2016 and 2018, the proceeds of which were loaned to special purpose affiliates of Better
Housing Foundation, Inc., an Ohio not-for-profit corporation. The Authority understands that
with one exception, each series of bonds issued below was assigned an investment grade rating
by S&P Global Ratings at the time of issuance based upon the Ratings Methodology And

1

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 56



Assumptions For Affordable Multifamily Housing Bonds (June 19, 2014; the “2014
Methodology™):

Illinois Finance Authority - Better Housing Foundation Bond Issues
Project Series PAR S&P Ratings* Issue Date
2016A 11,655,000|BBB 29-Jul-16
Shoreline Portfolio Project 2016B (Taxable) 540,000|Not Rated 29-Jul-16
2016C (Subordinate) 1,365,000(BBB- 29-Jul-16
. . 2017A 45,470,000|A- 22-May-17
Icarus Portfolio Project -

2017B (Subordinate) 6,335,000(BBB 22-May-17
2017A-1 49,630,000|A- 21-Nov-17
Windy City Portfolio Project 2017A-2 (Taxable) 2,355,000|A- 21-Nov-17
2017B (Subordinate) 7,995,000|BBB- 21-Nov-17
2018A-1 15,340,000(A- 8-Mar-18
Ernst Portfolio Project 2018A-2 (Taxable) 620,000|A- 8-Mar-18
2018B (Subordinate) 3,080,000|BBB- 8-Mar-18
2018A-1 19,600,000|BBB+ 29-May-18
Blue Station Project 2018A-2 (Taxable) 2,495,000(BBB+ 29-May-18
2018B (Subordinate) 2,930,000|BBB- 29-May-18

*At time of issuance

Evidently, within a very short time after the closing of each bond transaction, the housing
projects financed by these bonds experienced rapid and significant physical and economic
deterioration that led to defaults, impairments and ratings downgrades, culminating in ratings
withdrawals. These events and their consequences have been well-documented in both local and
trade media. These events have also led to litigation involving the Authority. The Authority has
regularly discussed performance issues concerning Better Housing Foundation’s bonds and
projects at its public meetings. These events have adversely impacted the Authority’s reputation,
exposed bondholders to financial loss and, most importantly, have catastrophically impacted
residents of these projects as well as their adjacent residential properties and neighborhood
communities.

S&P Global Rating Methodology

The Authority lacks direct experience on the specifics of applying the S&P Global Ratings
criteria, processes and forecasting models as the Authority’s conduit borrowers and the
borrower’s financing team are solely responsible for applying for credit ratings, obtaining credit
enhancement, or obtaining other financing commitments necessary to issue a conduit bond.
Given the Authority’s legally limited role as a conduit issuer, we also lack first-hand factual
knowledge of the causes of the physical and economic deterioration regarding the Better
Housing Foundation properties. Accordingly, the Authority is not in a position to comment with
particularity on possible improvements to your criteria, processes or models. However, we
strongly urge S&P Global Ratings to continue your self-evaluation to determine which aspects of
your existing ratings criteria, particularly the 2014 Methodology, require modification to avoid,
to the extent reasonably possible, rapid and catastrophic situations and ratings downgrades
similar to those experienced in connection with the Better Housing Foundation properties.

Some broad elements that you may consider in your evaluation include, but are not limited to:

e Increased debt service coverage on each project;

2
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 57



e Increased reserve funding for each project;

e Increased focus on the management capacity, resources and experience of the borrower,
particularly if operations are being scaled-up;

e Requiring audited financial statements on the underlying properties;

e The extent to which the borrower outsources its project duties; and

e The financial capacity of the borrower to fund unplanned maintenance and operating
expenses in order to avoid adverse consequences to project residents, adjacent residential
properties, neighborhood communities and bondholders.

For the reasons cited above, despite the Authority’s legally limited role as a conduit issuer,
the Better Housing Foundation bonds and the properties these bonds financed remain the
subject of continuing concern to the Authority. If you would like to discuss these matters
further, we remain available to do so.

Sincerely,

Christopher B. Meister
Executive Director
Illinois Finance Authority

3
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 58



160 North LaSalle Street
Suite S-1000

Chicago, IL 60601
312-651-1300
312-651-1350 fax
www.il-fa.com

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

&1

Date: January 14, 2020
To: Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (“Authority”)
From: Sara Perugini, Vice President

Jacob Stuckey, Deputy Executive Director

Subject: Recent Report Regarding Taxable Municipal Bonds in 2020

In follow up to the Authority’s December 10, 2019 meeting agenda item 12, the Members will find of
interest the attached article: “Taxables could account for 20% of municipal bond issuance in 2020” — The
Bond Buyer, January 2, 2020*

At today’s meeting, we will provide a further update.

* This item has been provided on a confidential basis to the Members. At the time of printing of this Authority
Board Book, permission has not yet been obtained to post this item publicly.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 59


http://www.il-fa.com/

Taxables could account for 20% of municipal bond issuance in 2020

By Aaron Weitzman
Published January 02 2020, 3:29pm EST

More in Primary bond market,Secondary bond market, Taxable bonds,State of New York,State of California,State of Texas,Metropolitan Transportation Authority,New York City
Transitional Finance Authority,Pennsylvania Commonwealth Financing Authority

10-Year: MBIS benchmark i~AAi i—0.003

10-Year: MBIS iAAAi i+0.06‘i|
10-Year: MMD AAAi i0.000i

10-Year: US Treasui i—0.0dOi

30-Year: MBIS benchmark i-AAi i+0.012i

30-Year: MBIS (AAA) (+0.020) iAAA) i+0.020i
R L R TR T e B iAAA i i-o.ozoi
30-Year: US Treasury (-0.047) i i—0.047i

MBIS indices are updated hourly on the Bond Buyer Data Workstation

While investors patiently wait until next week for the first new issuance of the year, the muni asset class is well positioned entering 2020

against a compelling backdrop of market technicals and a stable credit outlook.

This will likely bring continued active buyer interest from individuals and mutual funds, according to Jeffrey Lipton, managing director and

head of municipal research and strategy at Oppenheimer.

"Similar to 2019, this unique technical environment with demand as an unwavering constant should be a key driver of performance in 2020
and munis can be expected to outperform U.S. Treasuries with a continuation of net negative supply potentially extending this

performance,” Lipton said.

He added that he believes that 20% of all 2020 issuance will be of the taxable variety, as the taxable muni presence should appeal to
existing tax-efficient investments such retirement accounts seeking alternative investment proxies, as well as to foreign buyers seeking to

add diversification and above-average credit quality to their portfolios against a backdrop of negative yielding global sovereign debt.

"Thus far, we are not concerned that taxable issuance would have a crowding-out effect on traditional tax-exempts as the core buyer base
for each tends to be different,” he said. "However, this may become a larger talking point should the taxable push extend beyond

expectations and we begin to see noted convergence and blurred distinctions among the investor cohorts.”

Secondary market

Munis were mixed on the MBIS benchmark scale, with yields falling by less than one basis point in the 10-year maturity and rising by one
basis point in the 30-year maturity. High-grades were weaker, with yields on MBIS AAA scale increasing six basis points in the 10-year

maturity and by two basis points in the 30-year maturity.

On Refinitiv Municipal Market Data's AAA benchmark scale, the yield on the 10-year of 2030 was unchanged at 1.44%, while the 30-year of
2050 was down two basis points to 2.07%.

The 10-year muni-to-Treasury ratio was calculated at 76.6% while the 30-year muni-to-Treasury ratio stood at 88.5%, according to MMD.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 60



Treasuries were lower while stocks were in the green.
The Dow Jones Industrial Average was up about 0.81%, the S&P 500 Index gained around 0.46% and the Nasdaqg was up about 1.01%.

The Treasury three-month was yielding 1.536%, the two-year was yielding 1.569%, the five-year was yielding 1.673%, the 10-year was
yielding 1.880% and the 30-year was yielding 2.345%.

Municipal bond yields

BondWave

Source: 12/31 close MSRB, Refinitiv; MMD AAA, BVAL AAA callable, IHS AAA,
BondWave AA, MBIS benchmark

Primary market
It has been a few weeks since the muni bond market has seen any kind of big issuance. Despite the fact that there was almost no issuance
for roughly the last two weeks of the year, muni volume still finished the year at $421.69 billion.

As of press time, there were 15 deals scheduled for next week of $100 million or larger — with only four of those negotiated deals.

"There is pent up demand and | would suspect that investors will be ready to pounce all over the new deals next week,” said one New York

trader. "Next week won't be the biggest volume week, but it's better than nothing.”

JPMorgan Securities is expected to price the Arizona Transportation Board's $466.48 million of highway revenue taxable bonds.

RBC Capital Markets is scheduled to price the Commonwealth Financing Authority, Pa.'s $238.82 million of revenue refunding federally

taxable bonds.

Citigroup is slated to run the books on Conroe Independent School District, Texas' $110.8 million of school building bonds.

JPMorgan is also scheduled to price Grant County Public Utility District No. 2, Wash.'s (Aa3/AA/AA) $127.4 million of revenue refunding

taxable bonds.
Topping the competitive slate next week will be the New York Metropolitan Transportation Authority, which is coming to market with
around $2.4 billion of deals composed of about $940 million of green revenue bonds selling on Thursday and $1.5 billion of bond

anticipation notes selling on Monday.

The New York Transitional Finance Authority is also heading to market with a competitive sale of about $109 million of Fiscal 2020 NYC

recovery bonds on Tuesday.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 61



Previous session's activity
The MSRB reported 21,997 trades Tuesday on volume of $4.26 billion. The 30-day average trade summary showed on a par amount basis of

$10.85 million that customers bought $5.75 million, customers sold $3.27 million and interdealer trades totaled $1.82 million.

New York, California and Texas were most traded, with the Empire State taking 15.085% of the market, the Golden State taking 13.786%
and the Lone Star State taking 9.732%.

The most actively traded CUSIP was the State of Texas tax revenue anticipation note 4s of 2020, which traded 4 times on a par amount of

$10.76 million.

Bond Buyer indexes little changed

The weekly average yield to maturity of the Bond Buyer Municipal Bond Index, which is based on 40 long-term bond prices, remained at
3.63% from the week before.

The Bond Buyer's 20-bond GO Index of 20-year general obligation yields dipped to 2.73% from 2.74% the week before.

The 11-bond GO Index of higher-grade 11-year GOs was slipped to 2.26% from 2.27% the prior week.

The Bond Buyer's Revenue Bond Index was down to 3.20% from 3.21% from the previous week.

The yield on the U.S. Treasury's 10-year note was slightly lower to 1.88% from 1.90% the week before, while the yield on the 30-year

Treasury increased to 2.34% from 2.33%.

Treasury auctions bills
The Treasury Department Thursday auctioned $35 billion of four-week bills at a 1.500% high yield, a price of 99.883333. The coupon

equivalent was 1.527%. The bid-to-cover ratio was 3.31.

Tenders at the high rate were allotted 10.44%. The median rate was 1.490%. The low rate was 1.465%.

Treasury also auctioned $35 billion of eight-week bills at a 1.515% high yield, a price of 99.764333. The coupon equivalent was 1.544%. The

bid-to-cover ratio was 3.15.

Tenders at the high rate were allotted 92.73%. The median rate was 1.500%. The low rate was 1.470%.

Treasury auctions announced

The Treasury Department announced these auctions:

+ $16 billion 29-year 10-month 2 3/8% bonds selling on Jan. 9;
+ $24 billion 9-year 10-month 13/4% notes selling on Jan. 8;

+ $38 billion three-year notes selling on Jan. 7;

+ $36 billion 182-day bills selling on Jan. 6; and

+ $42 billion 91-day bills selling on Jan. 6.

Gary E. Siegel contributed to this report.

Data appearing in this article from Municipal Bond Information Services, including the MBIS municipal bond index, is available on The

Bond Buyer Data Workstation.

Updated January 2, 2020 at 4:25PM: Updates with Bond Buyer Indexes

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 62



Aaron Weitzman
L J

For reprint and licensing requests for this article, click here.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 63



160 North LaSalle Street
Suite S-1000

Chicago, IL 60601
312-651-1300
312-651-1350 fax
www.il-fa.com

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

&1

Date: January 14, 2020

To: Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (“Authority”)

From: Sara Perugini, Vice President

Subject: Rules, Regulation and Transparency in the Municipal Securities Market

The Authority, as a conduit issuer, operates in the framework of the municipal securities market
established and regulated by many federal and state agencies. Below is a high level snap shot at how
certain rules are created and changed, and the Authority’s role in connection therewith.

The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board and its Electronic Municipal Market Access System

The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”) is the principal regulator of the municipal
securities market. The MSRB was established by Congress in 1975, and it is authorized to regulate
broker-dealers, banks and municipal advisors that provide advice to municipal entities about the issuance
of bonds and municipal financial products. The MSRB creates rules for dealers and municipal advisors.
The MSRB also protects investors and municipal entities by increasing the transparency and availability
of market information by making such information publically available via its Electronic Municipal
Market Access (“EMMA™) website. Members may find the following article on the MSRB to be of
interest:
e The Role and Jurisdiction of the MSRB (2018). Retrieved from
http://www.msrb.org/msrbl/pdfs/Role-and-Jurisdiction-of-MSRB.pdf.

The Securities and Exchange Commission and the MSRB

The Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) is one of the entities that oversees the MSRB. In

furtherance of the MSRB’s mission to protect the interest of municipal securities investors, issuers and

the public, the MSRB establishes rules, which are generally subject to SEC approval. Members may find

the following article, which details a recent MSRB filing with the SEC regarding a proposed rule change,
to be of interest:

e U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, Release No. 34-87583; File No. SR-MSRB-2019-

13 (November 21, 2019) (available at https://www.sec.gov/rules/sro/msrb/2019/34-87583.pdf

The National Association of Health and Educational Facilities Finance Authorities and the MSRB

The National Association of Health and Educational Facilities Finance Authorities (“NAHEFFA”) is a
national association representing issuers of tax-exempt debt. The Authority is a longstanding member of
NAHEFFA. NAHEFFA provides educational and professional development opportunities for its
members, as well as advocacy and support for issues of importance to conduit issuers. As part of
NAHEFFA’s advocacy and support on behalf of its members, the NAHEFFA President meets with the
MSRB once or twice a year (the Authority’s own Executive Vice President Pam Lenane is a past
NAHEFFA President). NAHEFFA member Barry Fick, Executive Director, Minnesota Higher Education
Facilities Authority, was recently named to a MSRB advisory committee on compliance. The Authority

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 64


http://www.il-fa.com/

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

&1

monitors federal rulemaking and legislation through organizations such as NAHEFFA, and also the
National Association of Bond Lawyers and the Council of Development Finance Agencies. While the
Authority always cooperates with various federal and state regulators and market participants, where
appropriate, either directly or indirectly through larger organizations such as NAHEFFA, we work to have
constructive input on the rulemaking and legislative process. Such input is generally through a comment
process. Through its comments, the Authority may highlight practical or real world implications that the
regulator may not have considered or even been aware of. In NAHEFFA’s December 18, 2019 comments
to the above referenced SEC release, NAHEFFA raises questions and provides recommendations with
respect to the MSRB’s proposed rule changes. The proposed changes and comments are technical in
nature.

e Comments of the National Association of Health and Educational Facilities Finance
Authorities on U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission, Release No. 34-87583; File No.
SR-MSRB-2019-13 (December 18, 2019) (available at https://www.sec.gov/comments/sr-
msrb-2019-13/srmsrb201913-6558778-200956. pdf)

2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 65



Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board

The Role and Jurisdiction
of the MSRB

msrb.org



IMSRB

The Role and Jurisdiction of the MSRB

The MSRB
safeguards the
nearly $4 trillion
municipal securities
market that helps
provide reliable
income for investors
and efficient capital
for communities.

Jurisdiction of the MSRB

The Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (MSRB) was established

by Congress in 1975 and charged with a mandate to protect municipal
securities investors, municipal entities and the public interest.! As a
self-regulatory organization, the MSRB is governed by a Board of
Directors that consists of 21 members with deep expertise in municipal
securities markets, including 11 representatives of the public and 10
representatives of regulated entities.

Congress initially authorized the MSRB to regulate the activities of broker-dealers

and banks that buy, sell and underwrite municipal securities (collectively, “dealers”).
Congress expanded the MSRB's authority in 2010 to include the regulation of
municipal advisors — the firms (and their financial professionals) that provide advice to
state and local governments and other municipal entities about the issuance of bonds
and municipal financial products. Importantly, the MSRB is not authorized to regulate
municipal entities, including state and local government issuers of municipal securities.
The MSRB is overseen by Congress and the Securities and Exchange Commission
(SEC), and MSRB rules generally must be approved by the SEC before becoming
effective.

The MSRB safeguards the nearly $4 trillion municipal securities market that helps
provide reliable income for investors and efficient capital for communities. In support
of its mission, the MSRB:

* Prevents fraud and manipulation, and promotes fair dealing by establishing
rules for municipal securities dealers and municipal advisors;

* Supports equal access to information and market transparency through its
Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA®) website, the official source for
municipal securities data and disclosure documents; and

* Improves market understanding with educational resources for market
stakeholders and objective market analysis.

While the MSRB is the principal regulator of the municipal securities market, the MSRB
does not carry out the enforcement of its rules or conduct compliance examinations.
The MSRB instead provides support to the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority
(FINRA), the SEC and federal bank regulators that share responsibility for enforcement
and compliance examinations. The MSRB also frequently communicates with the
Internal Revenue Service, which enforces tax laws related to municipal securities.

' See Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Section 15B

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 67

© 2018 Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 2 msrb.org


http://www.msrb.org

IMSRB

The Role and Jurisdiction of the MSRB

The MSRB protects
investors and
municipal entities in
the municipal market
by increasing the
transparency and
availability of market
information.

Role of the MSRB

Rules for Dealers and Municipal Advisors

Under its mission to protect investors and municipal entities and the public interest,
the MSRB creates rules governing the conduct of municipal financial professionals.
Core MSRB rules for dealers and municipal advisors include:

* Professional Qualifications. MSRB Rules G-2 and G-3 establish professional
qualification standards for dealer and municipal advisor professionals and outline
requirements regarding continuing education.

¢ Fair Dealing. MSRB Rule G-17 obligates dealers and municipal advisors to deal
fairly with all persons and not engage in any deceptive, dishonest, or unfair

practice in the conduct of their municipal securities and municipal advisory
activities.

¢ Suitability. MSRB Rule G-19 requires a dealer to have reasonable grounds for
believing that a recommendation made to an investor is suitable for the investor.

¢ Standards of Conduct. MSRB Rule G-42 establishes the core standards of
conduct for municipal advisors, including their obligations related to their
fiduciary duty to municipal entity clients.

* Fair Pricing. MSRB Rule G-30 requires prices, commissions and any mark-up or
mark-down (a form of dealer compensation) dealers charge to investors to be
fair and reasonable.

e Best Execution. MSRB Rule G-18 requires dealers to seek the most favorable
terms reasonably available for their retail customers’ transactions.

¢ Dealer Compensation. MSRB Rule G-15 requires dealers to provide customer
confirmations that include information about the transaction, attributes of the
security, the amount of any commission and the amount of any mark-up or mark-
down for certain trades.

¢ Time-of-Trade Disclosure. MSRB Rule G-47 requires dealers to disclose to
customers all material information known (or available from an established
industry source) about a transaction and security at or prior to the time of trade.

Market Transparency

Another way the MSRB protects investors and municipal entities in the municipal
market is by increasing the transparency and availability of market information. The
MSRB provides free access to municipal bond trade data, offering documents (known
as official statements) and continuing disclosures so that investors can understand the
terms, characteristics, potential risks and rewards of a particular municipal security, and
assess the financial health of the issuer over time. These data and documents also help
issuers better evaluate their financing options. Importantly, this information is made
publicly available through the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA®)
website.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 68

© 2018 Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board 3 msrb.org


http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/General/Rule-G-2.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/General/Rule-G-3.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/General/Rule-G-17.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/General/Rule-G-19.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/General/Rule-G-42.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/General/Rule-G-30.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/General/Rule-G-18.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/General/Rule-G-15.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/General/Rule-G-47.aspx
https://emma.msrb.org
https://emma.msrb.org

IMSRB

The Role and Jurisdiction of the MSRB

The MSRB provides
objective municipal
market education,
analysis and data,
and addresses

topics that can have
an impact on the
integrity or efficiency
of the municipal
market.

Dealers generally are required under MSRB Rule G-14 to report all trades in municipal
securities within 15 minutes of the time of trade to the MSRB, which makes the
information available through EMMA. The regulatory framework for issuer disclosures
is established by the SEC under the Exchange Act, which prohibits false or misleading
information in disclosures to investors. Under SEC Rule 15¢2-12, dealers acting

as underwriters generally must contract with issuers to receive official statements
disclosing certain features of the transaction to investors. They also must ensure the
state or local government issuing the bonds enters into an agreement to provide
certain information about the securities, such as annual financial information and
events such as defaults and ratings changes that would be significant to investors,

on an ongoing basis. Official statements and ongoing disclosures are made freely
available to the public through EMMA.

In addition to security-specific information, the EMMA website provides a broader
view of municipal market activity, with statistical data and interactive tools, including
municipal market yield curves and indices, and a calendar of new bond issues
scheduled to come to market.

Educational Resources

Consistent with its mission, the MSRB provides objective municipal market education,
analysis and data, and addresses topics that can have an impact on the integrity or
efficiency of the municipal market. The MSRB develops free educational resources,
available in its online Education Center, to help investors and municipal entities make
informed decisions. The MSRB also offers an online platform called MuniEdPro®, with
courses focused on market activities and MSRB regulations. The MSRB publishes data
reports and other analyses to enhance understanding of the municipal market. As a
self-regulatory organization, the MSRB regularly engages with dealers and municipal
advisors to support their understanding of MSRB rules, inform future rulemaking and
other initiatives, and consider ways to streamline, modernize and update existing rules.

Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board
1300 | Street NW, Suite 1000 Washington, DC 20005 202-838-1500

msrb.org

emma.msrb.ora Twitter: @M MSRB_News



http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/General/Rule-G-14.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/EducationCenter.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Regulated-Entities/MuniEdPro.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Market-Topics.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Market-Topics.aspx

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
(Release No. 34-87583; File No. SR-MSRB-2019-13)

November 21, 2019
Self-Regulatory Organizations; Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board; Notice of Filing of a
Proposed Rule Change to Amend the Information Facility of the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal
Market Access (EMMA®) System

Pursuant to Section 19(b)(1) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (“Act” or “Exchange
Act”)tand Rule 19b-4 thereunder,2 notice is hereby given that on November 19, 2019 the
Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (“MSRB”) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC” or “Commission”) the proposed rule change as described in Items I, II, and
I11 below, which Items have been prepared by the MSRB. The Commission is publishing this
notice to solicit comments on the proposed rule change from interested persons.

l. Self-Requlatory Organization’s Statement of the Terms of Substance of the Proposed
Rule Change

The MSRB filed with the Commission a proposed rule change to amend the information
facility of the MSRB’s Electronic Municipal Market Access (EMMA®) system (the “EMMA

IF”)3 to provide for (1) the automated calculation and static display of the number of days

1 15 U.S.C. 78s(b)(1).
2 17 CFR 240.19b-4.

3 The EMMA IF serves to outline the basic functionality and the high-level parameters by
which the MSRB operates the EMMA system. As further described in the EMMA IF, the
EMMA system consists of the EMMA Primary Market Disclosure Service, the EMMA
Continuing Disclosure Service, the EMMA Trade Price Transparency Service and the
EMMA Short-Term Obligation Rate Transparency Service. See EMMA IF, available at:
http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Inter pretations/ MSRB-R ules/Facilities/EMMA-

Facility.aspx.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 70


http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/Facilities/EMMA-Facility.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/MSRB-Rules/Facilities/EMMA-Facility.aspx

between (i) the annual fiscal period end date for an issuer# or obligated person® and (ii) the date
an annual financial disclosure® is submitted to the EMMA system for such annual fiscal period

(the “Submission Calculator”) and (2) the reconfiguration of certain information shown on the

4 Under 17 CFR 240.15¢c2-12 of the Exchange Act (“Rule 15¢2-12” or the “Rule”), the
Commission has generally defined the term “issuer of municipal securities” to mean any
governmental issuer specified in section 3(a)(29) of the Actand the issuer of any separate
security, including a separate security as defined in rule 3b—5(a) under the Act. See 17
CFR 240.15c2-12(f)(4). The proposed rule change uses the term issuer consistent with
Rule 15¢2-12(f)(4) to mean any such “issuer of municipal securities” submitting
continuing disclosure documents and related information to the EMMA system, whether
on a voluntary basis or pursuant to a contractual undertaking, such as a continuing
disclosure agreement (as hereinafter defined in note 6 infra).

5 Section 15B(e)(10) of the Act defines “obligated person” as “any person, including an
issuer of municipal securities, who is either generally or through an enterprise, fund, or
account of such person, committed by contract or other arrangement to support the
payment of all or part of the obligations on the municipal securities to be sold in an
offering of municipal securities.” 15 U.S.C. 780-4(e)(10). As interpreted by the
Commission in Rule 15¢2-12(f)(10), the term “obligated person” means any person,
including an issuer of municipal securities, who is either generally or through an
enterprise, fund, or account of such person committed by contract or other arrangement to
support payment of all, or part of the obligations on the municipal securities to be sold in
the offering (other than providers of municipal bond insurance, letters of credit, or other
liquidity facilities). See 17 CFR 240.15c2-12(f)(10). The proposed rule change uses the
term obligated person consistent with Rule 15¢2-12(f)(10) to mean any such “obligated
person” submitting continuing disclosure documents and related information to the
EMMA system, whether on a voluntary basis or pursuant to a contractual undertaking,
such as a continuing disclosure agreement.

6 Under Rule 15c2-12, a participating underwriter in an offering of certain municipal
securities must determine that an issuer or obligated person has undertaken in a written
agreement or contract for the benefit of holders of the municipal securities to provide
certain information to the MSRB (a “continuing disclosure agreement’), which includes a
requirement, among others, to provide certain annual financial and operating information
(i.e., “annual financial filings””) and audited financial statements (i.e., “audited financial
filings™), if available (collectively, “annual financial disclosures™). See 17 CFR 240.15c2-

12(b)(5)(i).

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 71



EMMA public website (emma.msrb.org) (the “EMMA Portal”)’ to more prominently display an
issuer’s or obligated person’s annual financial disclosures and related information (the “proposed
rule change”).

The Board is proposing these amendments to the EMMA IF and corresponding
enhancements to the EMMA system to promote greater transparency in the municipal securities
market, including by making financial information more readily apparent to investors, market
professionals, and the general public through the EMMA Portal. The Board believes the
proposed rule change is consistent with the Act. By promoting greater transparency and
awareness of the financial disclosures available in the municipal securities market, the Board
believes the proposed rule change would promote (1) the protection of investors and the public
interest and (2) the prevention of fraudulent and manipulative acts and practices. The Board has
determined to file the proposed rule change under Section 19(b)(2) of the Act and requests that
the proposed rule change become operative on a date to be determined by the MSRB through a
notice published on its website not later than 180 days following the publication of the
Commission’s approval of the proposed rule change in the Federal Register, with such operative
date being not more than one year from the date of such MSRB notice.

The text of the proposed rule change is available on the MSRB’s website at

www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/SEC-Filings/2019-Filings.aspx, at the MSRB’s

principal office, and at the Commission’s Public Reference Room.

! As further defined in the EMMA IF, the EMMA Portal is the functionality for displaying
and otherwise making certain documents and data available to the public without charge.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 72


http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/SEC-Filings/2019-Filings.aspx

1. Self-Regulatory Organization’s Statement of the Purpose of, and Statutory Basis for, the
Proposed Rule Change

Inits filing with the Commission, the MSRB included statements concerning the purpose
of and basis for the proposed rule change and discussed any comments it received on the
proposed rule change. The text of these statements may be examined at the places specified in
Item IV below. The MSRB has prepared summaries, setforth in Sections A, B, and C below, of
the most significant aspects of such statements.

A. Self-Regulatory Organization’s Statement of the Purpose of, and Statutory Basis
for, the Proposed Rule Change

1. Purpose

The proposed rule change consists of amendments to the EMMA IF that would provide
for (1) the development and operation of the Submission Calculator and (2) the reconfiguration
of certain information shown on the EMMA Portal, in order to more prominently display an
issuer’s or obligated person’s annual financial disclosures and related information.

The Collection and Display of Financial Information on the EMMA Portal

The EMMA System and EMMA Portal. The EMMA system consists of several

component functions that process and disseminate market information submitted to the MSRB.
For example, the EMMA Trade Price Transparency Service publishes information on the
EMMA Portal about trading activity in the municipal securities market when such information is
reported by brokers, dealers, and municipal securities dealers (collectively, “dealers™) in
accordance with MSRB Rule G-14, on reports of sales or purchases. Similarly, the EMMA
Primary Market Disclosure Service processes submissions of official statements, preliminary

official statements, and related pre-sale documents for display on the EMMA Portal when such

4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 73



information is submitted voluntarily or in compliance with MSRB Rule G-32, on disclosures in
connection with primary offerings. Consequently, issuers, obligated persons, dealers, investors,
and the general public routinely interact with the EMMA system in order to submit or access
information. The EMMA Portal averages more than 95,000 pageviews per day, which amounts
to over 35 million pageviews in a full year. In this way, the EMMA Portal is relied upon as a free
and credible source of market information and provides unprecedented transparency about the
municipal securities market.8

Rule 15¢2-12 and the EMMA Continuing Disclosure Service. A continuing disclosure

agreement that is entered into consistent with the requirements of Rule 15¢2-12 commits an
issuer or obligated person to provide continuing disclosure documents in conformance with the
process and other requirements prescribed by the MSRB, including the entry of certain

identifying information.® The EMMA Continuing Disclosure Service is the component of the

8 See, e.g., Securities and Exchange Commission, Report on the Municipal Securities
Market, atp. 35 (July 31, 2012) (“2012 Municipal Report”) (stating EMMA
“significantly improved the availability of both primary market and continuing disclosure
documents to investors’), available at
https//www.sec.gov/news/studies/2012/munireport073112.pdf, and Commissioner
Michael S. Piwowar, Remarks at MSRB Dinner to Celebrate Milestones in Municipal
Market Transparency (April 24, 2018) (stating EMMA has “empowered mnvestors with a
level of transparency that was previously unknown in this market and has transformed the
municipal securities industry”), available at https://www.sec.gov/news/speech/speech-
piwowar-20180424.

: See 17 CFR 240.15c2-12(b)(5)(i); see also Release No. 34-59062 (December 5, 2008) 73
FR 76104 (December 15, 2008) (File No. S7-21-08) (the “Sole Repository Release™)
(“The final amendments require a Participating Underwriter to reasonably determine that
the issuer or obligated person has agreed at the time of a primary offering: (1) to provide
the continuing disclosure documents to the MSRB instead of to each NRMSIR and the
appropriate SID, if any; and (2) to provide the continuing disclosure documents in an
electronic format and accompanied by identifying information as prescribed by the

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 74


https://www.sec.gov/news/studies/2012/munireport073112.pdf
https://www.sec.gov/news/speech/speech-piwowar-20180424
https://www.sec.gov/news/speech/speech-piwowar-20180424

EMMA system authorized to receive, process, and disseminate continuing disclosure information
submitted by issuers, obligated persons, and their agents (collectively, “disclosure submitters” or
“submitters”).19 Upon receipt and processing, the EMMA Continuing Disclosure Service
disseminates annual financial disclosures, event notices, and other disclosure documents on the
EMMA Portal, making them publicly available at no cost. The EMMA system uses certain
identifying information provided by submitters to electronically index and systematically display
submissions, which allows external users to more readily find and access disclosure documents
on the EMMA Portal.

Submission Process for Annual Financial Disclosures. In authorizing the EMMA

Continuing Disclosure Service, the Commission granted authority to the MSRB to prescribe the
identifying information collected by the EMMA system for purposes of sorting, categorizing,

and retrieving continuing disclosure submissions.! When receiving the submission of anannual

MSRB.”). As further described herein, the EMMA system uses certain identifying
information provided by a submitter to electronically index a disclosure document.

10 See Release No. 34-59061 (December 5, 2008), 73 FR 75778 (December 12, 2008) (File
No. SR-MSRB-2008-05) (December 8, 2008) (the “Continuing Disclosure Service
Release”) (establishing the EMMA Continuing Disclosure Service “for the receipt of, and
for making available to the public, continuing disclosure documents and related
information to be submitted by issuers, obligated persons and their agents pursuant to
continuing disclosure undertakings entered into consistent with Rule 15¢2-127).

11 See 17 CFR 240.15c2-12(b)(5)(i). See also the Sole Repository Release, supra note 9, 73
FR at 76114 (“We [i.e., the SEC] believe that providing identifying information with
each submitted document will permit the repository to sort and categorize the document
efficiently and accurately. We also anticipate that the inclusion with each submission of
the basic information needed to accurately identify the document will facilitate the ability
of investors, market participants, and others to reliably search for and locate relevant
disclosure documents.”) and the Continuing Disclosure Service Release, supra note 10,
73 FR at 75781, fn. 48 (stating “the commitment by an issuer to provide identifying
information exists only if it were included in a continuing disclosure agreement. As a

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 75



financial disclosure, the MSRB generally requires?? disclosure submitters to enter the following

information:

e Disclosure Category. Submitters identify the appropriate indexing category

for the annual financial disclosure (the “disclosure category”) as being an

annual financial filing and/or audited financial filing.13

o Brief Content Description. Submitters may provide a brief description of the

content of the annual financial filing and/or audited financial filing.

o Fiscal Period Covered. Submitters enter the annual fiscal period covered by

the annual financial disclosure in the date field, including a fiscal year end

date (the “Fiscal Period End Date™).14

result, issuers submitting continuing disclosure documents pursuant to the terms of
undertakings that were entered into prior to the effective date of [the amendments to the
Rule effectuated by the Sole Repository Release] and that did not require identifying
information will be able to submit documents without supplying identifying
information.”)

12 As noted in the Continuing Disclosure Service Release, a continuing disclosure
agreement specifies whether an issuer or obligated persons must provide identifying
information. As a result, issuers and obligated persons submitting continuing disclosure
documents pursuant to the terms of certain continuing disclosure agreements — i.e.,
agreements entered into prior to the effective date of the Commission’s 2008
amendments to the Rule that did not require identifying information — are permitted to
submit documents without supplying such identifying information. See Continuing
Disclosure Release, supra note 10, at 73 FR 75781, fn. 48.

13 Disclosure submitters select the “Annual Financial Information and Operating Data (Rule
15c2-12)” disclosure category field for an annual financial filing and/or the “Audited
Financial Statements or CAFR (Rule 15c2-12)” disclosure category field for an audited
financial filing.

14 The EMMA Dataport Manual for Continuing Disclosure Submissions provides

instructions and other information for issuers, obligated persons, dealers, municipal
advisors, or staff of any other organization submitting to the EMMA Continuing

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 76



Once published by a disclosure submitter, the EMMA Continuing Disclosure Service (1)
timestamps the annual financial disclosure to register the time and date of the submission of the
annual financial disclosure to the EMMA system (the “Posted Date”), (2) processes the
information entered by a submitter to classify and index the annual financial disclosure on the
EMMA Portal, and (3) disseminates the annual financial disclosure document and related
information, such as the fiscal period information, on the EMMA Portal, making the annual
financial disclosure and related information publicly available at no cost.

Concerns Regarding the Timeliness of Annual Financial Disclosures

The timeliness of financial disclosures is often cited as an important factor in their
usefulness to investors and other market participants, and the subject of how to improve the
timeliness of financial disclosures in the municipal securities market has been, and continues to
be, a significant concern of the Commission and various market participants.®

The Commission’s 1994 Interpretive Release and Rule Amendments. The Commission

has emphasized the importance of timely disclosure for decades. As early as its 1994 interpretive
release regarding the disclosure obligations of municipal security issuers and others, the
Commission stated that, “[t]o avoid providing investors with a stale, and therefore potentially

misleading, picture of financial condition and results of operations, issuers and obligors need to

Disclosure Service via the EMMA Dataport web user interface. The manual is published
on the MSRB’s website and is available at:
http://www.msrb.org/~/media/pdfs/msrb I/EM MA/pdfssEMMACD Manual.ashx? la=en.

15 See, €.0., 2012 Municipal Report, supra note 8 atp. 74 (citing Release No. 34-33741,
“Statement of the Commission Regarding Disclosure Obligations of Municipal Securities
Issuers and Others” (March 9, 1994), 59 FR 12748 (March 9, 1994)).

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 77


http://www.msrb.org/~/media/pdfs/msrb1/EMMA/pdfs/EMMACDManual.ashx?la=en

release their annual financial statements as soon as practical.”16 Later in the same year when it
amended Rule 15c2-12 to require continuing disclosure agreements to thereafter incorporate
provisions regarding annual financial disclosures and certain event notices, the Commission
further highlighted the importance of financial information in the secondary market, declaring
that “purchasers in the secondary market need the same level of financial information and
operating data in making investment decisions as purchasers in the underwritten offering.” 1’

The Commission’s 2012 Municipal Report. Building on its prior statements, the

Commission’s 2012 Municipal Report affirmed that, “[t]imely financial reporting, including
timely issuance of audited annual financial information, not only aids market participants in
making informed investment decisions, but is critical to the function of an efficient trading
market.”18 Citing comments from market participants, the 2012 Municipal Report concluded
that, “[t]he major challenge in the secondary market disclosure, according to market participants,
is the timeliness and completeness of filings as well as compliance with continuing disclosure
agreements.” The report also noted certain concerns raised by municipal issuers about the burden

of increased regulation,’® including the concern that mandating a specific timeframe for the

16 Release No. 34-33741, “Statement of the Commission Regarding Disclosure Obligations
of Municipal Securities Issuers and Others” (March 9, 1994), 59 FR 12748, at 12753
(March 9, 1994) (File No. S7-4-94).

17 Release No. 34-34961 (November 10, 1994), 59 FR 59950 (November 17, 1994) (File
No. S7-5-94).

18 2012 Municipal Report, supra note 8, at p. 74.

19 Id., atp. iv (“the Report notes concerns raised by issuers about potential burdens that
could result from increased regulation.”)

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 78



dissemination of financial information may not be feasible for the municipal market.20 In
acknowledgment of the limitations on the regulation of municipal issuers under the existing
regulatory scheme, the 2012 Municipal Report made a series of recommendations involving “a
combination of approaches, including legislative, regulatory and industry-based initiatives.”2
One of those recommendations included the enhancement of the EMMA system, so that “retail
investors have better access to disclosure with respect to municipal securities as soon as

practicable.”?2

20 Id., at p. 80 (citing to the concerns of issuer representatives at certain hearings regarding
“the necessity, or even feasibility, of a mandated shorter timeframe for the dissemination
of financial information” and the possibility that “shorter deadlines could diminish the
value of financial information” by causing governments to adopt a “reduced set of basic
financial statements”).

21 Id., atp. vii (“First, in light of the Commission’s limited regulatory authority, we
recommend a number of potential legislative changes which, if implemented by
Congress, would provide the Commission with additional authority to initiate changes to
improve municipal securities disclosures made by issuers. The legislative changes would
not result, however, in the repeal or modification to the existing proscriptions on the SEC
or the MSRB requiring any presale filing of disclosure documents, known as the ‘Tower
Amendment’ (discussed in more detail in the Report). The legislative recommendations
would nonetheless give the Commission the authority to take regulatory steps that it
determines to be appropriate to meaningfully enhance disclosure practices by municipal
issuers, which could be accomplished in a short period of time.”)

22 Id., atp. 141; see also Recommendation of Market Structure Subcommittee of IAC [i.e.,
the Commission’s Investor Advisory Committee], Select Enhancements to Protect Retail
Investors in Municipal and Corporate Bonds, July 5, 2018, available at
https://www.sec.gov/spotlight/investor-advisory-committee-2012/iac0614 18- market-
structure-subcommittee-recommendation. pdf (recommending the MSRB enhance the
EMMA Portal to highlight to “investors, when they reach an obligor’s landing page, if
the obligor is out of compliance with its continuing disclosure requirements as it relates
to financial reporting”).

10

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 79


https://www.sec.gov/spotlight/investor-advisory-committee-2012/iac061418-market-structure-subcommittee-recommendation.pdf
https://www.sec.gov/spotlight/investor-advisory-committee-2012/iac061418-market-structure-subcommittee-recommendation.pdf

Recent Commission Statements. Echoing the language of the 2012 Municipal Report,

SEC Chairman Jay Clayton stated in December 2018 that, “[t]imely and accurate information is
essential for investors and analysts. Without that, it is challenging to accurately evaluate the
current financial condition of a municipal issuer (or any issuer for that matter).”23 In the same
speech, Chairman Clayton tasked the Commission’s Office of Municipal Securities to work with
the MSRB and other stakeholders to explore potential approaches to improve transparency
around the age and type of financial information.?4 Reiterating his thoughts more recently,
Chairman Clayton stated in July 2019 that “the timeliness of municipal issuer financial reporting
... canand should be improved.”2>

NEMA Letter to the Board. In May 2019, the Board received a letter from the National

Federation of Municipal Analysts (NFMA) that expressed concerns regarding the timing of
financial information in the municipal securities market. The letter asserted that “[u]sers of
EMMA do not have an easy way to determine the currency of financial reporting by an issuer”

and encouraged the Board to “create a counter that would calculate and prominently display the

23 See Chairman Jay Clayton, Opening Remarks at the Municipal Securities Conference,
December 6, 2018, available at https://www.sec.gov/news/public-statement/statement-

clayton-120618.

24 Id (“To be clear: I believe that there are potential steps that the SEC and the MSRB can
take — that would be wholly consistent with the words and spirit of the Tower
Amendment — to improve transparency around the age and type of financial
information.”).

25 See Chairman Jay Clayton, Remarks to the SEC Fixed Income Market Structure
Advisory Committee, July 29, 2019, available at https://www.sec.gov/news/public-
statement/clayton-remarks-fimsac-072919# ftnl.

11

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 80


https://www.sec.gov/news/public-statement/statement-clayton-120618
https://www.sec.gov/news/public-statement/statement-clayton-120618
https://www.sec.gov/news/public-statement/clayton-remarks-fimsac-072919#_ftn1
https://www.sec.gov/news/public-statement/clayton-remarks-fimsac-072919#_ftn1

greater of the number of days since the end of the last fiscal year to the audit filing date or the

number of days since the last fiscal year for which there is not a submitted audit.”26

The Board has developed the proposed rule change cognizant of the historical evolution

of disclosure practices in the municipal securities market2’ and the present concerns of certain

market participants regarding the timing of financial disclosures in the municipal securities

market.28 The Board believes the proposed rule change would further promote transparency and

efficiency in the municipal securities market — primarily by making information about the timing

26

27

28

Letter from Scott Andreson, Chair, National Federation of Municipal Analysts (NFMA),
dated May 3, 2019 (the “NFMA Letter”), available at
https://www.nfma.org/assets/documents/position.stmt/nfmaletterSEC MSRB may3.pdf
(last accessed on October 15, 2019).

In February 2017, the MSRB published a report analyzing the timing of the submission
of annual financial disclosures to the EMMA system between the years 2010 and 2016.
See MSRB: Timing of Annual Financial Disclosures by Issuers of Municipal Securities
(February 2017), available at http://www.msrb.org/msrbl/pdfs/sMSRB-CD-T iming-of-
Annual-Financial-Disc losures-2016.pdf. The Government Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) assessed the timeliness of audited annual financial reports in a 2018 research
memorandum measuring the number of days to the release of audited annual financial
reports broken down by various factors such as size and type of government. See GASB,
Research Memorandum:_Timeliness of Financial Reporting (December 12, 2018),
available at

https://www.gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Document C&cid=1176171975910& d=&pag
ename=GASB%2FDocument C%2FDocumentPage (last accessed on October 15, 2019).

The Board is also aware that the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) has
announced an industry working group to address timely and meaningful disclosures. See
GFOA, Weekly Members News, GFOA Launches Industry Working Group on Municipal
Bond Disclosure (July 25, 2019), available at
http://www.estoregfoa.org/StaticContent/staticpages/NL07252019.html (last accessed on
October 15, 2019); see also Sarah Wynn, New GFOA working group to address timely
disclosure, The Bond Buyer (July 26, 2019), available at
https://www.bondbuyer.com/news/new-gfoa-working-group-to-address-time ly-disc losure
(last accessed on October 15, 2019).

12

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 81


https://www.nfma.org/assets/documents/position.stmt/nfmaLetterSECMSRBmay3.pdf
http://www.msrb.org/msrb1/pdfs/MSRB-CD-Timing-of-Annual-Financial-Disclosures-2016.pdf
http://www.msrb.org/msrb1/pdfs/MSRB-CD-Timing-of-Annual-Financial-Disclosures-2016.pdf
https://www.gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Document_C&cid=1176171975910&d=&pagename=GASB%2FDocument_C%2FDocumentPage
https://www.gasb.org/cs/ContentServer?c=Document_C&cid=1176171975910&d=&pagename=GASB%2FDocument_C%2FDocumentPage
http://www.estoregfoa.org/StaticContent/staticpages/NL07252019.html
https://www.bondbuyer.com/news/new-gfoa-working-group-to-address-timely-disclosure

of annual financial disclosures more prominent on the EMMA Portal, so that market participants
can make more informed decisions — without imposing significant additional burdens on dealers,
municipal issuers, or obligated persons.

The Submission Calculator and llustrative Examples

The Board believes that the Submission Calculator would provide animportant
transparency tool for market participants that would make information reported to the EMMA
system regarding the timing of annual financial disclosures more readily apparent. As discussed
above, the Submission Calculator would automatically calculate and statically display the
elapsed number of days between (1) the Fiscal Period End Date for anissuer or obligated person,
as such date is entered by a submitter through the process of publishing an annual financial
disclosure on the EMMA Portal, and (2) the Posted Date of an annual financial disclosure
submitted to the EMMA system for such annual fiscal period.2® The Submission Calculator
would depend on the existing information required to be provided by a submitter, calculating the
number of days elapsed based solely on the entry of the Fiscal Period End Date and the Posted

Date for an annual financial disclosure.3® The day of the Posted Date would be included in the

2 Both dates are currently visible on the EMMA Portal.

30 Consistent with its current functionality, the EMMA system would continue to intake,
display, and disseminate annual financial disclosures and related information. The
EMMA system would continue to conduct format checks, validate the submitter, and
timestamp annual financial disclosures with a Posted Date; however, there would not be
an evaluative analysis of the documents or information submitted, nor a validation of the
disclosure categories selected by the submitter (e.g., “Other Financial/Operating Data” is
erroneously selected rather than “Annual Financial Information and Operating Data (Rule
15¢c2-12)” or “Audited Financial Statements or CAFR (Rule 15c2-12)”). Nevertheless,
the submission calculator would show as not applicable upon the entry of erroneous
information that would result in negative calculations and, in the future, the EMMA
system may provide soft data checks requesting submitters to confirm entries that are

13

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 82



calculation, as further demonstrated below.3! This number of days elapsed would be displayed on

the EMMA Portal at the individual security details level.32 Importantly, the MSRB would not

evaluate the substantive content of the documents and information submitted, and the

Submission Calculator would not analyze the relevant content to evaluate an issuer’s or obligated

person’s compliance with the terms of an applicable continuing disclosure agreement or any

applicable law, regulation, or other legal obligation.33

The following are illustrative examples of the submission process and resulting

calculations of the Submission Calculator.

31

32

33

likely erroneous. See Release No. 34-84837 (December 17, 2018), 83 FR 65765, at
65767 (November 21, 2018) (File No. SR-MSRB-2018-09) (describing the “ministerial”
functioning of the EMMA system). Accordingly, the submitter would remain responsible
for the content of the documents and information submitted to the EMMA system related
to an annual financial disclosure, including the proper disclosure category (or categories)
of an annual financial disclosure. Moreover, as the resulting calculation performed by the
Submission Calculator would depend on this information, it is imperative that disclosure
submitters make accurate and complete submissions.

Stated differently, the Posted Date would not count as an additional full day toward the
Submission Calculator’s count total. For illustrative purposes, if an issuer submitted an
annual financial disclosure on the same day as the date of the end of its annual fiscal
period, the Submission Calculator would display zero days as the timing of such annual
financial disclosure. Ifan issuer submitted an annual financial disclosure on the day
following the date of the end of its annual fiscal period, the Submission Calculator would
display one day as the timing of such annual financial disclosure, and so on.

The EMMA Portal’s security details pages enable users to access documents and
information associated with a particular municipal security, such as an official statement,
continuing disclosure document, and/or trade report.

Consistent with the EMMA system’s current functionality, if a submitter enters an
erroneous Fiscal Period End Date for an annual financial disclosure, then the Submission

Calculator would perform its calculation based on the erroneous Fiscal Period End Date
entered by the submitter. See also note 30.

14

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 83



e Example One — Single Submission. An issuer submits its audited financial

statements to the EMMA system on December 23, 2020 and identifies3* (1)
the annual financial disclosure as meeting both disclosure categories of an
audited financial filing and annual financial filing3> and (2) the Fiscal Period
End Date for the annual financial disclosure as June 30, 2020. The Submission
Calculator would display the number of days between the Posted Date for the
issuer’s annual financial disclosure and the Fiscal Period End Date of the
issuer’s 2020 annual fiscal period as 176 days.36

Example Two — Second Year Submission. An issuer submits its audited

financial statements to the EMMA system on December 23, 2020 and

34

35

36

A submitter would need to select the appropriate disclosure category (or disclosure
categories) applicable to the submission of an annual financial disclosure for the
Submission Calculator to perform its calculation. For example, if the submitter in this
fact pattern only identified the submission as falling within the disclosure category of
“Other,” then the Submission Calculator would not have the necessary information to
perform or display its calculation. In these circumstances, the Submission Calculator
would display as not applicable on the EMMA Portal for the relevant securities until such
time as the issuer submits a disclosure selected as meeting the disclosure category of an
annual financial disclosure with a Fiscal Period End Date.

Submitters may select multiple disclosure categories for a continuing disclosure filing,
including an annual financial disclosure. The fields currently entitled “Annual Financial
Information and Operating Data (Rule 15¢2-12)” and “Audited Financial Information
Statements or CAFR (Rule 15¢c2-12)” are respectively intended for the submission of
annual financial filings and audited financial filings.

The Submission Calculator would display the calculation available for the annual
financial disclosure with the earliest Posted Date for the most recent Fiscal Period End
Date. The results of a Submission Calculator would show as not applicable on the
EMMA Portal for securities that do not yet have a published annual financial disclosure
submission.

15

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 84



identifies (1) the annual financial disclosure as meeting both disclosure
categories of an audited financial filing and annual financial filing and (2) the
Fiscal Period End Date for the annual financial disclosure as June 30, 2020.
The Submission Calculator would display the number of days between the
Posted Date for the issuer’s latest annual financial disclosure and the Fiscal
Period End Date of the issuer’s 2020 annual fiscal period as 176 days.
Subsequently, the issuer’s next annual fiscal period ends on June 30, 2021. On
January 4, 2022, the issuer submits its audited financial statements to the
EMMA system for its annual fiscal period ending on June 30, 2021. The
issuer identifies (1) the annual financial disclosure as meeting both disclosure
categories of an audited financial filing and annual financial filing and (2) the
Fiscal Period End Date for the annual financial disclosure as June 30, 2021.
Upon processing of the subsequent submission, the Submission Calculator
would refresh to display the number of days between the Posted Date for the
issuer’s latest annual financial disclosure and the Fiscal Period End Date of

the issuer’s 2021 annual fiscal period as 188 days.3’

37

The Submission Calculator would continue to reflect its calculation for the most recent
annual fiscal period until such time as a submitter publishes a new annual financial
disclosure for a subsequent fiscal period, as identified by the Fiscal Period End Date
entered by a submitter. Upon the processing of a new annual financial disclosure for a
subsequent fiscal period, the EMMA system would no longer display the prior
calculation for the preceding annual fiscal period. Using the facts of this example to
illustrate this point, the Submission Calculator would continue to display the number of
days between the issuer’s latest annual financial disclosure and the end of its 2020 annual
fiscal period as 176 days until the second submission is submitted and processed on
January 4, 2022, atwhich time the Submission Calculator would then display the number

16

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 85



e Example Three — Annual Financial Disclosures through Sequential

Submissions for the Same Fiscal Period. An issuer submits its annual financial

information and operating data, which does not include the issuer’s audited
financial statements, to the EMMA system on December 23, 2020. The issuer
identifies (1) the annual financial disclosure as meeting the disclosure
category of an annual financial filing and (2) the Fiscal Period End Date for
the annual financial disclosure as June 30, 2020. The Submission Calculator
would display the number of days between the Posted Date for the issuer’s
annual financial disclosure and the Fiscal Period End Date of the issuer’s 2020
fiscal period as 176 days. Subsequently, the issuer submits its audited
financial statements on January 4, 2021 for the same annual fiscal period and
identifies (1) the annual financial disclosure as meeting the disclosure
category of an audited financial filing and (2) the Fiscal Period End Date as
June 30, 2020. The Submission Calculator would continue to display the
number of days between the Posted Date for the issuer’s annual financial
disclosure and the Fiscal Period End Date of the issuer’s 2020 annual fiscal

period as 176 days, because the Submission Calculator would generate its

of days between the issuer’s latest annual financial disclosure and the Fiscal Period End
Date of its 2021 annual fiscal period as 188 days.

17

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 86



calculation from the earlier Posted Date for the submission of the unaudited

financial information and operating data.38

e Example Four — Annual Financial Disclosures with Sequential Submissions

for Issues with Multiple Obligated Persons with Different Fiscal Periods. An

obligated person for anissue of municipal securities (“Obligated Person One™)
submits its audited financial statements as an annual financial disclosure for
an issue of municipal securities on December 23, 2020. Obligated Person One
identifies (1) the annual financial disclosure as meeting both disclosure
categories of an audited financial filing and annual financial filing and (2) its
Fiscal Period End Date as June 30, 2020. The Submission Calculator would
display the number of days between the Posted Date of the issue’s annual
financial disclosure and the Fiscal Period End Date of Obligated Person One’s
2020 annual fiscal period as 176 days.

Subsequently, another obligated person for the same issue of municipal
securities (“Obligated Person Two) submits its audited financial statements
as an annual financial disclosure for the issue on January 4, 2021. Obligated
Person Two identifies (1) the annual financial disclosure as meeting both
disclosure categories of an audited financial filing and annual financial filing

and (2) its Fiscal Period End Date as June 30, 2020. The Submission

38 The Submission Calculator would apply similar logic in other fact patterns where annual
financial disclosures are published to the EMMA system in a piecemeal method, as
through multiple submissions on different dates. See Example Four.

18

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 87



Calculator would not refresh and continue to display the number of days
between the Posted Date of the issue’s prior annual financial disclosure
submitted by Obligated Person One and the Fiscal Period End Date of
Obligated Person One’s 2020 annual fiscal period as 176 days, because the
Submission Calculator would perform its calculation based on the earliest
Posted Date for an annual financial disclosure with the most recent Fiscal
Period End Date.

Subsequently, a third obligated person for the same issue of municipal
securities (“Obligated Person Three”) submits its audited financial statements
as an annual financial disclosure for the issue on January 5, 2021. Obligated
Person Three identifies (1) the annual financial disclosure as meeting both
disclosure categories of an audited financial filing and annual financial filing
and (2) its Fiscal Period End Date as July 31, 2020. Upon processing, the
Submission Calculator would refresh to display the number of days between
the Posted Date of the issue’s annual financial disclosure submitted by
Obligated Person Three and the Fiscal Period End Date of Obligated Person
Three’s 2020 annual fiscal period as 158 days, because the Submission
Calculator would perform its calculation based on the Posted Date for
Obligated Person Three’s annual financial disclosure, which has the most

recent Fiscal Period End Date.

19

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 88



Enhancement of the EMMA Display

In addition to providing for the development and operation of the Submission Calculator,
the proposed rule change would also provide for the enhancement and reconfiguration of certain
information shown on the EMMA Portal to more prominently display an issuer’s or obligated
person’s annual financial disclosures and related information. More specifically, the revised
EMMA Portal would more prominently display the information reported about an annual
financial disclosure for a municipal security, including the Fiscal Period End Date, the Posted
Date, and the results of the Submission Calculator. The MSRB would also increase the
prominence of the links provided by any issuer through its customized homepage to other
websites containing relevant information.3® With these enhancements to the EMMA Portal and
the implementation of the Submission Calculator, the security details page for a municipal
security generally would provide the information shown in Figure 1 below, which is shown as

processed with the hypothetical facts and resulting calculation from “Example One — Single

Submission” above.

39 The EMMA system allows issuers to enhance the display of their municipal securities
information on EMMA Portal by creating a free custom EMMA issuer homepage. One of
the customizations supported is the ability for an issuer to designate links to independent
websites. See the MSRB’s Customizing an EMMA® Issuer Homepage, available at
http://www.msrb.org/msrbl/EMMA/pdfs/EMMA-Issuer-Homepage-Fact-Sheet-for-

Issuers.pdf.

20

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 89


http://www.msrb.org/msrb1/EMMA/pdfs/EMMA-Issuer-Homepage-Fact-Sheet-for-Issuers.pdf
http://www.msrb.org/msrb1/EMMA/pdfs/EMMA-Issuer-Homepage-Fact-Sheet-for-Issuers.pdf

Figure 1

Timing of Annual Financial Disclosure

Fiscal Period End Date: 06/30/2020
Posted Date: 12/23/2020
Timing of Disclosure: 176 Days

Hyperlink to Disclosure Document PDF(s)
Hyperlink(s) to Other Website(s) if Provided

While each of these data points, other than the Submission Calculator results shown as the
Timing of Disclosure in Figure 1, are currently available on the EMMA Portal, the proposed rule
change is intended to improve users’ awareness of this information. Nothing about this display
would be evaluative of an issuer’s or obligated person’s compliance with the applicable terms of a
continuing disclosure agreement. The proposed rule change would not modify how submitters
provide this information to the EMMA system, nor require submitters to input any new data, but it
would augment the display of information reported to the EMMA system to make it more apparent
to users.

Discussion of Proposed Amendments to the Text of the EMMA |F

The proposed rule change would amend the text of the EMMA IF to provide for the
development and otherwise describe the operation of the Submission Calculator. More
specifically, the proposed rule change would amend the EMMA IF to define the term “EMMA
metrics” to mean the calculations, data, and metrics derived from municipal securities disclosure
documents and related information submitted to the EMMA system. In this way, the calculations,
data, and metrics generated by the Submission Calculator would be included in the term

“EMMA metrics.” This definition is intended to provide greater clarity regarding the various

21

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 90



types of information that may be disseminated by the EMMA system in light of the Submission
Calculator’s new functionality,® including more precisely delineating the distinctions between
disclosure documents, related information, indexing information, and EMMA metrics.4

2. Statutory Basis

The proposed rule change is consistent with the provisions of Section 15B(b)(2)(C) of the

Act,*2 which provides that the MSRB’s rules shall:

... be designed to prevent fraudulent and manipulative acts and practices, to promote just
and equitable principles of trade, to foster cooperation and coordination with persons
engaged in regulating, clearing, settling, processing information with respect to, and
facilitating transactions in municipal securities and municipal financial products, to remove
impediments to and perfect the mechanism of a free and open market in municipal
securities and municipal financial products, and, in general, to protect investors, municipal
entities, obligated persons, and the public interest.

The Board believes the proposed rule change is consistent with the Act because the
proposed rule change would promote (1) the protection of investors and the public interest and (2)
the prevention of fraudulent and manipulative acts and practices, principally by promoting greater

transparency and awareness of the financial disclosures available in the municipal securities

40 Assuming approval of the proposed rule change, on the operative date the EMMA system
would only process the EMMA metrics generated by the Submission Calculator for
dissemination and display on EMMA Portal.

4 For example, the proposed rule change more precisely articulates that the term ‘indexing
information’ 1is a subset of ‘related information’ that includes the disclosure category
fields of “Annual Financial Information and Operating Data (Rule 15¢2-12)” and the
“Audited Financial Statements or CAFR (Rule 15¢2-12)” for purposes of the Submission
Calculator’s functionality. This clarification is important to delineate the Submission
Calculator’s use of indexing information as entered by a submitter from the EMMA
metrics generated by the Submission Calculator.

2 15U.S.C. 780-4(b)(2)(C).

22

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 91



market through the EMMA Portal. The proposed rule change would promote the protection of
investors and the public interest by increasing investors’ and the general public’s awareness of the
type and timing of financial information available in the municipal securities market and,
consequently, enable investors and other market participants to make more informed decisions.
More broadly, the proposed rule change would enable the general public to more readily access
the financial information reported to the EMMA Portal. The proposed rule change would promote
the prevention of fraudulent and manipulative acts and practices by fostering a better
understanding among all market participants of the type and timing of financial information
available in the municipal securities market, including by making the type and timing of financial
information more readily apparent on the EMMA Portal, and, thereby, mitigating some
information asymmetries that may exist in the market, such as between retail investors and
institutional investors. In short, the Board believes that the proposed rule change is consistent with
the Act because it would enhance market transparency regarding existing municipal issuer
financial disclosure practices, including by improving the accessibility and availability of
information displayed on the EMMA Portal and by making the Submission Calculator results
readily apparent to EMMA users.

B. Self-Regulatory Organization’s Statement on Burden on Competition

The Board has conducted an analysis on the proposed rule change to gauge its overall

economic impact and assess its burden on competition.#® For the reasons discussed below, the

43 See “Policy on the Use of Economic Analysis n MSRB Rulemaking,” available at
http://msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/Economic-Analysis-Policy.aspx. In evaluating
the potential burden on competition, the Board was guided by its principles that require
the Board to consider costs and benefits of a rule change, its impact on capital formation,
and the main reasonable alternative regulatory approaches.

23

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 92


http://msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/Economic-Analysis-Policy.aspx

Board has determined that the proposed rule change would not impose any burden on competition
that is not necessary or appropriate in furtherance of the purposes of the Exchange Act.

The Board’s Determinations Regarding the Burden on Competition

Section 15B(b)(2)(C)** of the Exchange Act requires that MSRB rules shall “not be
designed . .. to impose any burden on competition not necessary or appropriate in furtherance of
the purposes of this title.” The Board belicves the proposed rule change is consistent with Section
15B(b)(2)(C)*> because the proposed rule change promotes transparency in the municipal
securities market by (1) calculating and clearly displaying the timing between an issuer’s or
obligated person’s reported Fiscal Period End Date and the Posted Date for the submission of
certain of its annual financial disclosures and (2) making existing information about annual
financial disclosures more readily apparent on the EMMA Portal. Consequently, the Board
believes the proposed rule change would improve the awareness and understanding of market
participants regarding the type and timing of financial information currently available on the
EMMA Portal. Investors and other market participants would benefit from these enhancements by
being able to more readily locate relevant financial information and, thereby, the proposed rule
change would improve overall transparency in the market. Similarly, the calculations displayed by

the Submission Calculator would assist investors in their analysis of a municipal security’s

4 15U..C. 780-4(b)(2)(C).
45 Id.
24

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 93



financial information by clearly and prominently displaying a metric for the standardized measure
of the timing of that information.*6

Burdens on Disclosure Submitters. The Board believes that the proposed rule change does

not create any new compliance or reporting burdens and, thereby, does not impose any burden on
competition that is not necessary or appropriate in furtherance of the purposes of the Exchange
Act. While the information provided to the EMMA Portal by submitters might take on new
prominence by virtue of the manner in which the information would be displayed on the EMMA
Portal under the proposed rule change, the proposed enhancements would not alter the basic
process for submitting annual financial disclosures or change the type of information collected
related to such disclosures.4” Accordingly, the proposed rule change would not alter the burdens
on submitters in publishing annual financial disclosures to the EMMA system in this way, and so

does not result in any new burdens on competition in this regard.

46 Recent economic literature bolsters the statements of market participants that the timing
of financial disclosures is a significant factor in their usefulness. Specifically, academic
research finds that a delay in reporting is likely to convey a negative signal with respect
to issuers and have negative effects on the capital markets, such as higher yield and lower
liquidity. See Henke, Trent S. and John J. Maher, “Government Reporting Timeliness
and Municipal Credit Market Implications,” Journal of Governmental & Nonprofit
Accounting, Vol. 5, No. 1, 2016, and Sherrill, D. Eli and Rustin T. Yerkes, “Municipal
Disclosure Timeliness and the Cost of Debt,” The Financial Review, 53, 2018. At the
same time, the MSRB notes that timing may be one among many significant factors in
the usefulness of a financial disclosure, as for example the timing of a disclosure
generally does not speak to the quality or completeness of a disclosure’s contents.

a7 While the proposed enhancements would not alter the basic process for submitting such
information or change the type of information collected, the MSRB is continually
evaluating how user’s interface with the EMMA system and has ongoing projects to
improve that interface. See, e.g., “MSRB Improves Search Functionality on EMMA”
(May 29, 2019), available at http://www.msrb.org/News-and-Events/Press-
Releases/2019/MSRB-L aunches-Quick-Search.aspx.

25

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 94


http://www.msrb.org/News-and-Events/Press-Releases/2019/MSRB-Launches-Quick-Search.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/News-and-Events/Press-Releases/2019/MSRB-Launches-Quick-Search.aspx

Improvement to Market Transparency. The Board believes that the proposed rule change

would increase the accessibility and understanding of financial disclosures in the municipal
securities market and, thereby, increase overall transparency in the market. The Submission
Calculator would depend entirely on the information entered by a submitter, and the Board is
cognizant of the potential for the Submission Calculator to result in the display of a calculation
generated from erroneous information published by a submitter. To the degree that the
Submission Calculator would provide new prominence to this information, the Board believes
that submitters would have an additional incentive to properly categorize and describe annual
financial disclosures, and so the incidences of submissions with erroneous information would be
expected to marginally decline from current rates.*8 To promote accuracy, the Board would
continue to provide educational resources and other tools to assist submitters in properly
completing the publication process. Similarly, the Board believes that some of the
misperceptions and other information asymmetry that may result from market participants
accessing erroneous information published by submitters can be mitigated through appropriate
investor education. Consequently, the Board believes at this time that the benefits of the
additional awareness and understanding that would result from the adoption of the Submission
Calculator would exceed any potential negative consequences of the display of a calculation

generated from erroneous information published by a submitter.

48 To the degree that submitters exert greater diligence in completing the disclosure
submission process in response to the Submission Calculator’s functionality and the other
enhancements to the display of information on the EMMA Portal, the MSRB believes
that any additional burdens created by this change in market behavior is exceeded by the
benefits of greater market transparency through the improved availability and
understanding of market information currently displayed on the EMMA Portal.

26

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 95



The Board’s Analysis of Alternatives to the Proposed Rule Change

The Board has assessed alternative approaches to the proposed rule change and has
determined that the Submission Calculator and other enhancements to the EMMA Portal are
superior to these alternatives.

Alternative Transparency Tools. The Board has considered various iterations of the

Submission Calculator for the calculation and display of information regarding the timing of
financial disclosures, including various active counters that would sequentially increase each
day. One such alternative is a counter that would update each day to dynamically display the
number of days elapsed between anissuer’s or obligated person’s annual fiscal period end and
the current date. Similarly, the Board has considered a counter that would dynamically display
the number of days elapsing between any financial disclosures submitted by an issuer or
obligated person, including interim financial information, rather than just annual financial
disclosures.

The Board has determined at this time that such alternatives would be inferior to the
proposed rule change’s Submission Calculator. In evaluating these alternative approaches, the
Board determined that (1) limiting the Submission Calculator to evaluating the timing of annual
financial disclosures was most appropriate atthis time, particularly in light of the lack of
uniformity in the disclosure of interim financial information, and (2) displaying a static
calculation would be most easily understood by EMMA users and, thereby, the Submission
Calculator would best promote market transparency at this time. Among other considerations, the
Board evaluated whether dynamic tools might confuse some users who repeatedly return to the

EMMA Portal and misunderstand the increasing display count. Additionally, the Board

27

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 96



considered concerns that, at this time, other approaches with more complex functionality may

require significant alterations to the submission process and/or require disclosure submitters to
provide additional information to the EMMA system. Accordingly, the Board has determined

that, at this time, alternatives that would create new burdens on disclosure submitters would be
inferior to the Submission Calculator.

Rulemaking Alternatives. The Board has also considered new rulemaking initiatives as an

alternative to the proposed rule change. The Board ultimately determined that the MSRB should
focus at this time on the proposed rule change’s transparency efforts to more prominently display
existing financial information on the EMMA Portal and should consider any related rulemaking
initiatives in light of the MSRB’s ongoing retrospective rule review.49

C. Self-Regulatory Organization’s Statement on Comments on the Proposed Rule
Change Received from Members, Participants, or Others

The Board did not solicit written comments on the proposed change. However, as
previously noted above, the Board did receive one written comment directly relevant to the
proposed rule change from NFMA in May 2019.50 Among other recommendations on how to

improve disclosure practices in the municipal securities market, the NFMA Letter encouraged

49 The Board recently prioritized an ongoing effort to review the MSRB’s rules and related
interpretive guidance for dealers and municipal advisors. The purpose of the retrospective
rule review is to help ensure MSRB rules and interpretive guidance are effective in their
principal goal of protecting investors, issuers and the public interest; not overly
burdensome; clear; harmonized with the rules of other regulators, as appropriate; and
reflective of current market practices. Among other criteria, retrospective rulemaking
priorities are evaluated based on whether the benefits of the rule are commensurate with
its burdens. See http//www.msrb.org/Rules-and- I nterpretations/Retrospective-Rule-
Review-Overview.aspx.

50 See NFMA Letter, supra note 26.

28

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 97


http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/Retrospective-Rule-Review-Overview.aspx
http://www.msrb.org/Rules-and-Interpretations/Retrospective-Rule-Review-Overview.aspx

the MSRB to modernize the EMMA system, including to provide greater transparency on the
currency of audit filings.>1 More specifically, NFMA encouraged the MSRB to “create a counter
that would calculate and prominently display the greater of the number of days since the end of
the last fiscal year to the audit filing date or the number of days since the last fiscal year for
which there is not a submitted audit.”>2 While the proposed rule change would not incorporate
such a dynamic counter,53 the MSRB believes that the Submission Calculator and other
enhancements to the EMMA system are responsive to this particular recommendation.

Il. Date of Effectiveness of the Proposed Rule Change and Timing for Commission Action

Within 45 days of the date of publication of this notice in the Federal Register or within

such longer period of up to 90 days (i) as the Commission may designate if it finds such longer
period to be appropriate and publishes its reasons for so finding or (ii) asto which the self-
regulatory organization consents, the Commission will:

(A) by order approve or disapprove such proposed rule change, or

(B) institute proceedings to determine whether the proposed rule change should be

disapproved.

ol Id., atp. 4.

52 1d.

53 The Board did not incorporate this aspect of NFMA’s recommendation into the proposed

rule change because the Board determined at this time that such a dynamic counter would
be inferior to the Submission Calculator, in that the non-static functionality of the
dynamic counter might counterproductively confuse some users who repeatedly return to
the EMMA Portal and misunderstand the dynamic nature of the increasing display count,
among other reasons. See related discussion under The Board’s Analysis of Alternatives
to the Proposed Rule Change.

29

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 98



V. Solicitation of Comments

Interested persons are invited to submit written data, views, and arguments concerning
the foregoing, including whether the proposed rule change is consistent with the Act. Comments
may be submitted by any of the following methods:

Electronic Comments:

e Use the Commission's Internet comment form (http://www.sec.qgov/rules/sro.shtml); or

e Send an e-mail to rule-comments@sec.gov. Please include File Number SR-MSRB-

2019-13 on the subject line.

Paper Comments:

e Send paper comments in triplicate to Secretary, Securities and Exchange Commission,
100 F Street, NE, Washington, DC 20549.
All submissions should refer to File Number SR-MSRB-2019-13. This file number should be
included on the subject line if e-mail is used. To help the Commission process and review your
comments more efficiently, please use only one method. The Commission will post all

comments on the Commission’s Internet website (http//www.sec.gov/rules/sro.shtml). Copies of

the submission, all subsequent amendments, all written statements with respect to the proposed
rule change that are filed with the Commission, and all written communications relating to the
proposed rule change between the Commission and any person, other than those that may be
withheld from the public in accordance with the provisions of 5 U.S.C. 552, will be available for
website viewing and printing in the Commission’s Public Reference Room, 100 F Street, NE,
Washington, DC 20549 on official business days between the hours of 10:00 am and 3:00 pm.

Copies of the filing also will be available for inspection and copying at the principal office of the

30

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 99


http://www.sec.gov/rules/sro.shtml
mailto:rule-comments@sec.gov
http://www.sec.gov/rules/sro.shtml

MSRB. All comments received will be posted without change. Persons submitting comments are
cautioned that we do not redact or edit personal identifying information from comment
submissions. You should submit only information that you wish to make available publicly. All

submissions should refer to File Number SR-MSRB-2019-13 and should be submitted on or

before [insert date 21 days from publication in the Federal Register].

For the Commission, pursuant to delegated authority.>*

Eduardo Aleman
Deputy Secretary

54 17 CFR 200.30-3(a)(12).

31

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 100



e
[ &
/s

Health and Educational
Facilities Finance Authorities

F &

December 18, 2019
SR-MSRB-2019-13, Release No. 34-87583
Comments of the National Association of Health and Educational Facilities
Finance Authorities

The National Association of Health and Educational Facilities Finance Authorities
(“NAHEFFA") is the national association representing conduit issuers of tax-exempt debt
for nonprofit institutions in health care, education, cultural and other charitable

fields. NAHEFFA has been on the forefront of advocacy and support for issues of tax-
exempt financing particularly for health and education providers. We lead and facilitate
national advocacy, support, networking and education on behalf of our members.

NAHEFFA currently has 37 members and one affiliate member representing 32 states
and billions of dollars of financing every year. Several of our members are year after year
among the largest issuers in the country and some of our members have relatively small
issuance portfolios. Our members’ borrowers range from the largest hospitals and
universities in the country to small youth centers, medical clinics and sheltered
workshops.

NAHEFFA appreciates the opportunity to comment on the proposed rule change to
amend the information facility of the MSRB’s EMMA system. MSRB proposes to use
existing information submitted to EMMA to provide for the automated calculation and
static display of the number of days between (i) the annual fiscal year end date for the
issuer or obligated person and (ii) the date an annual fiscal disclosure is submitted to
EMMA for such annual fiscal period. In addition, EMMA would be reconfigured to more
prominently display this information.

NAHEFFA is strongly supportive of maintaining and enhancing the disclosure practices
of our thousands of borrowing charitable institutions, large and small. As individual
authorities and as an association we invest heavily in disclosure educational programs
with our borrowers and have worked closely for decades with MSRB and SEC on these
important issues. For example, we were pleased to work with MSRB in the last
significant revision to EMMA providing input from a conduit financing and borrower’s
point of view, even facilitating borrowing institutions’ interaction with MSRB staff, to
ensure the ease of both inputting and reviewing information. We are participating
actively in the Disclosure Industry Workgroup to provide industry input on measures to

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 101



.',P'g.

NB

/P NAHEFEA

F [/ National Association of
I/ Health and Educational
/ Facilities Finance Authorities

December 18, 2019
SR-MSRB-2019-13-NAHEFFA Comments

enhance the municipal market’s disclosure objectives in order to advance our mutual
goals of quality, timely and meaningful disclosure.

We appreciate the MSRB's stated goal of using existing information submitted by
borrowers and MSRB’s technology to provide more prominently displayed information
to investors. We also appreciate that part of this goal is to avoid more onerous
measures requiring greater resources by issuers and our borrowers. Although we firmly
support good disclosure practices, we are also mindful that the cumulative regulatory
burden of continued federal requirements create incentives for many borrowers,
governmental and nongovernmental, to escape or mitigate the tax and securities
regulatory cost environment and finance their capital needs through other means which
are not ideal in many cases and will result in less public disclosure.

Unfortunately, this seemingly innocuous proposal does not appear to us to be ready for
prime time. As far as we can ascertain, it was developed solely internally within MSRB
without consultation with any stakeholder. Nor are we aware to what extent, if any, it
has been tested in trial or mock disclosures for a variety of issuer and borrower types,
governmental and nongovernmental, including for conduit issuances. The result is
there are questions, uncertainties and potential issues with the quality and
meaningfulness of the disclosures proposed here as compared with undertakings
made in the continuing disclosure agreements, the true essential disclosures.

It is possible that some of these issues can be resolved. But, until then we recommend
that the SEC stay action or that MSRB withdraw its proposal until there has been fuller
consultation with expert industry stakeholders, some piloting or prototyping of the
disclosures in a diversity of circumstances and perhaps even focus groups of a variety
of investors to determine whether this information is of significant value. Is this
proposal a solution in search of a problem? Can we demonstrate that a user of the
information is going to prefer purchasing bonds of a borrower that files this information
earlier after their fiscal year than one that files later? In other words, will this activity
affect purchase decisions?

Below we discuss some of our specific concerns which are more in the nature of
guestions or issue spotting.

How will errors in data input and misuse of the system be corrected and what will the
result be in the quality, utility and non-deceptiveness of the information provided to
investors? The MSRB is clear that neither the quality nor accuracy of submissions of
financial disclosures to EMMA are reviewed, including whether the right online boxes
are checked in the system and spreadsheets are placed in the right place. It seems
inevitable that there will be errors, and it is unclear that these errors can be corrected
and overridden, preventing or changing erroneous information that is being displayed
to the public in a prominent manner. We believe there should be a clear understanding
and protocol developed for these circumstances.

2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 102



.',P'g.

NB

/P NAHEFEA

F [/ National Association of
I/ Health and Educational
/ Facilities Finance Authorities

December 18, 2019
SR-MSRB-2019-13-NAHEFFA Comments

Especially for conduit issuers, will a shortcoming or error attributable to a single
borrower potentially end up being a “contagion” for the conduit issuer as a whole? If
this information exists on a CUSIP by CUSIP basis what is the possibility that some will
aggregate the information at some point and draw conclusions based on an aggregate
result which could be terribly unfair to many other borrowers and an issuer?

Further, what is to prevent possible gaming of the system by mislabeled information,
for example, being submitted as placeholders for annual and other financial
disclosures? Required disclosures may be composed of several items such as audited
financials, operating data, tax revenue, and research receipts which could be entered
for the calculation.

What are the results of errors or intentional acts in undermining confidence in EMMA
and these disclosures as a whole? These issues should be considered before these
particular data points become a heightened focus of disclosure.

Treatment of various financial statements. The MSRB filing is unclear, and we do not
understand the manner in which annual financial disclosure submissions will be
handled versus the date for submission of audited financial statements in terms of what
will be displayed to the public. Typically, in our experience, for our institutions both of
these documents are completed and often submitted at the same time. But if they are
filed separately and only one is displayed in this prominent manner will it provide false
and misleading signals to EMMA users?

Conduit financing scenario. In only one place is there a discussion of conduit
financings. 84 Fed Reg. 65440, example four. It is an obscurely written scenario
relating to annual financial disclosures with multiple obligated persons with different
fiscal periods. We believe that this may refer to pooled financings. If so, we do not
understand how such financings with borrowers who may have different fiscal periods
will be handled without providing significantly misleading information.

It appears, for example, that whichever of a number of obligated persons files the first
financial disclosure will have its information displayed for the entire issue, thereby
perhaps implying that all obligated persons have filed this information. It also appears
that when the next obligated person files that information it will not supplement or
change the calculator. Is it considered irrelevant and of no effect? But, at some point
the incomplete information about the first filing will be supplanted by a subsequent filing
in a manner and rationale which is unclear.

We also wonder if for some reason this example relates to a healthcare system with
multiple hospitals in the obligated group that may have different fiscal year ends than
the parent? We are not sure whether this would apply since most obligated group
systems convert all the hospitals to the same fiscal wide system year-end.

3

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 103



| =

}

/TR
L1 NAHEFFA
A /| National Association of
i Health and Educational

F o Facilities Finance Authorities

December 18, 2019
SR-MSRB-2019-13-NAHEFFA Comments

We will be glad to work with MSRB to sort this out but the guide star here should be
above all do no harm and do not mislead investors by blindly applying an algorithm to a
pooled financing where it just doesn't work very well.

* * *

We raise these issues not to obstruct progress in disclosure. We support taking
advantage of the great data and technology offered by EMMA. Rather, we point out
that what may seem to be a very simple proposal raises a number of questions which
need to be thought through by experts both inside MSRB/SEC and those on the
outside. A badly run program will not work to anyone's advantage and will sour and
deter future disclosure initiatives.

Respectfully submitted

0 ndlon . Japuele—

Chuck Samuels

NAHEFFA General Counsel
Mintz

701 Pa. Av. NW #900
Washington D.C. 20004
202-434-7311
casamuels@mintz.com

cc: David Hodapp, Esq, MSRB

4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 104



160 North LaSalle Street
Suite S-1000

Chicago, IL 60601
312-651-1300
312-651-1350 fax
www.il-fa.com

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

&1

Date: December 10, 2019
To: Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (“Authority”)
From: Chris Meister, Executive Director

William Atwood, Vice President, Institutional Investments and Infrastructure

Subject: Transformation Initiative: Update to Senate Bill (*SB”) 1300

On December 18, 2019, Governor Pritzker signed SB 1300 into law as Public Act 101-0610 (“the Public
Act”). The Public Act is effective as of January 1, 2020.

At today’s meeting, we will provide an update as to developments concerning the Public Act.

Attachments:  Bill Status of SB 1300 [from ilga.gov website]
Governor Pritzker December 18, 2019 Press Release

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 105


http://www.il-fa.com/

1/9/2020 lllinois General Assembly - Bill Status for SB1300

(A neis Genaral Assembly

Bills & Resolutions  Bill Status of SB1300 7107st General Assembly

Compiled Statutes Full Text Votes Witness Slips View All Actions Printer-Friendly Version

Public Acts
Legislative Reports gt Description: PEN CD-COOK COUNTY-FUNDING
IL Constitution

Senate Sponsors

Legislative Guide Sen. Cristina Castro - Linda Holmes

Legislative Glossary
House Sponsors
(Rep. Jay Hoffman - Mark Batinick - Ryan Spain - Michael J. Zalewski, Jonathan Carroll, Karina

Villa, Terra Costa Howard and Diane Pappas)

Search By Number
(example: HB0001)

Last Action

Go | Search Tips

12/18/2019| Senate |PublicAct......... 101-0610

Search By Keyword
Statutes Amended In Order of Appearance

40 ILCS 5/9-169 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 9-169

Go
Search Tips

Synopsis As Introduced

Amends the Cook County Article of the lllinois Pension Code. In a provision concerning employer
contributions to the Fund, provides that the contributions may be taken from any revenue source,
ILLINDIS including, but not limited to, other tax revenue, proceeds of borrowings, or State or federal funds.

Effective immediately.
ALERI

- House Floor Amendment No. 5
Deletes reference to:

Advanced Search

punonL 40 ILCS 5/9-169
E%ﬁ‘“& Adds reference to:
TSR 20 ILCS 3501/801-10

20 1LCS 3501/801-40

20 ILCS 3501/805-20

40 ILCS 5/1-101.6 new

40 ILCS 5/1-109.3

40 ILCS 5/1-113.12

40 ILCS 5/1-160

40 ILCS 5/1A-102

40 ILCS 5/1A-104

40 ILCS 5/1A-109

40 ILCS 5/1A-111

40 ILCS 5/1A-112

40 ILCS 5/1A-113

40 ILCS 5/3-111 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 3-111
40 ILCS 5/3-112 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 3-112

40 1LCS 5/3'124!!3’,3\@%ﬂic Board Book (Version 2), Page 106
www.ilga.gov/legislation/BillStatus.asp?DocNum=1300&GAID=15&DocTypelD=SB&LeglD=117910&SessionID=108&SpecSess=&Session=&GA=101 1/6



http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/fulltext.asp?DocName=&SessionId=108&GA=101&DocTypeId=SB&DocNum=1300&GAID=15&LegID=117910&SpecSess=&Session=
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/votehistory.asp?DocNum=1300&DocTypeID=SB&LegID=117910&GAID=15&SessionID=108&GA=101&SpecSess=
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/witnessslip.asp?DocNum=1300&DocTypeID=SB&LegID=117910&GAID=15&SessionID=108&GA=101&SpecSess=
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/BillStatus_pf.asp?DocNum=1300&DocTypeID=SB&LegID=117910&GAID=15&SessionID=108&GA=101
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/Senator.asp?MemberID=2677
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/Senator.asp?MemberID=2564
http://www.ilga.gov/house/Rep.asp?MemberID=2643
http://www.ilga.gov/house/Rep.asp?MemberID=2653
http://www.ilga.gov/house/Rep.asp?MemberID=2693
http://www.ilga.gov/house/Rep.asp?MemberID=2573
http://www.ilga.gov/house/Rep.asp?MemberID=2701
http://www.ilga.gov/house/Rep.asp?MemberID=2742
http://www.ilga.gov/house/Rep.asp?MemberID=2739
http://www.ilga.gov/house/Rep.asp?MemberID=2738
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=101-0610
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K9-169
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/fulltext.asp?DocName=10100SB1300ham005&GA=101&LegID=117910&SessionId=108&SpecSess=0&DocTypeId=SB&DocNum=1300&GAID=15&Session=
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K9-169
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=002035010K801-10
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=002035010K801-40
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=002035010K805-20
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K1-101.6
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K1-109.3
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K1-113.12
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K1-160
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K1A-102
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K1A-104
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K1A-109
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K1A-111
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K1A-112
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K1A-113
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K3-111
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K3-112
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K3-124.3
http://www.ilga.gov/default.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/
http://www.ilga.gov/house/
http://www.ilga.gov/mylegislation/
http://www.ilga.gov/sitemap.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/default.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/ilcs.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/default.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/reports/default.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/commission/lrb/conmain.htm
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/guide.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/glossary.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/num_look_help.htm
http://www.ilga.gov/search/searchhelp.pdf
http://www.ilga.gov/search/Advanced_Search.asp?site=leg101
http://www.amberillinois.com/
http://www.missingkids.com/

1/9/2020 lllinois General Assembly - Bill Status for SB1300

40 ILCS 5/3-125 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 3-125
40 ILCS 5/3-132 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 3-132
40 ILCS 5/3-132.1 new

40 ILCS 5/4-109 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 4-109
40 ILCS 5/4-114 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 4-114
40 ILCS 5/4-117.2 new

40 ILCS 5/4-118 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 4-118
40 ILCS 5/4-123 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 4-123
40 ILCS 5/4-123.2 new

40 ILCS 5/7-159 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 7-159
40 ILCS 5/14-110 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 14-110
40 ILCS 5/14-152.1

40 ILCS 5/15-120 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 15-120
40 ILCS 5/15-135 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 15-135
40 ILCS 5/15-136 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 15-136
40 ILCS 5/15-159 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 15-159
40 ILCS 5/15-198

40 ILCS 5/16-163 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 16-163
40 ILCS 5/16-164 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 16-164
40 ILCS 5/16-165 from Ch. 108 1/2, par. 16-165

40 ILCS 5/Art. 22B heading new
40 ILCS 5/22B-101 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-102 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-103 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-104 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-105 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-106 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-107 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-108 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-112 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-113 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-114 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-115 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-116 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-117 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-118 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-119 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-120 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-121 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-122 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-123 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-124 new
40 ILCS 5/22B-125 new
40 ILCS 5/Art. 22C heading_new
40 ILCS 5/22C-101 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-102 new

40 ILCS 5/22C- Board Book (Version 2), Page 107

www.ilga.gov/legislation/BillStatus.asp?DocNum=1300&GAID=15&DocTypelD=SB&LeglD=117910&SessionID=108&SpecSess=&Session=&GA=101 2/6



http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K3-125
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K3-132
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K3-132.1
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K4-109
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K4-114
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K4-117.2
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K4-118
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K4-123
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K4-123.2
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K7-159
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K14-110
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K14-152.1
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K15-120
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K15-135
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K15-136
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K15-159
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K15-198
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K16-163
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K16-164
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K16-165
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050HArt.%2022B
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-101
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-102
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-103
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-104
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-105
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-106
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-107
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-108
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-112
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-113
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-114
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-115
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-116
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-117
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-118
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-119
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-120
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-121
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-122
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-123
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-124
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22B-125
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050HArt.%2022C
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-101
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-102
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-103

1/9/2020 lllinois General Assembly - Bill Status for SB1300
40 ILCS 5/22C-104 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-105 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-106 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-107 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-108 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-112 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-113 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-114 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-115 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-116 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-117 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-118 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-119 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-120 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-121 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-122 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-123 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-124 new
40 ILCS 5/22C-125 new
50 ILCS 145/25
625 ILCS 5/2-115 from Ch. 95 1/2, par. 2-115
30 ILCS 805/8.43

Replaces everything after the enacting clause. Amends the lllinois Pension Code. Creates the Police
Officers' Pension Investment Fund and the Firefighters' Pension Investment Fund. Provides for the
transfer of the assets and investment authority of downstate police and downstate firefighter pension
funds to the Police Officers' Pension Investment Fund and the Firefighters' Pension Investment Fund.
Contains provisions concerning the composition of the board of the investment funds; powers and
duties; reporting and recordkeeping; auditing of downstate police and downstate firefighter funds;
management of investments; and rulemaking. Reduces the amount of training required for trustees
under the Downstate Police and Downstate Firefighter Articles. Makes changes to the calculation of
certain survivor's benefits for Tier 2 police and firefighters, the calculation of "final average salary" for
Tier 2 police and firefighters, and to the limitation on salary applicable to Tier 2 police and firefighters.
Makes conforming and other changes. In the lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF) Article,
authorizes certain surviving spouses of annuitants to re-establish rights to a surviving spouse annuity.
In the State Employee Article, provides that the alternative retirement annuity provisions apply to a
Tier 2 conservation police officer, investigator for the Secretary of State, Commerce Commission
police officer, or arson investigator and authorizes those persons to establish up to 8 years of eligible
creditable service for past service. Authorizes a State Policeman to elect to establish up to 5 years of
eligible creditable service under the alternative retirement annuity formula for service as a full-time
law enforcement officer outside of lllinois. In the State Universities Article: makes changes concerning
the retirement age for certain Tier 2 members who have at least 20 years of service as a police officer
or firefighter; and provides that the chairperson of the Board shall be appointed by the Governor from
among the trustees (instead of the Chairperson of the Board of Higher Education acting as
chairperson of the board of trustees). In the Downstate Teacher Article: adds a member of the board
of trustees to be appointed by the Governor; adds a member of the board of trustees who is a teacher
and elected by the contributing members; provides that the president of the board shall be appointed
by the Governor from among the trustees (instead of the Superintendent of Education serving as
president of the board); and provides that not more than 4 of the 5 active teachers elected to the
Board of Trustees may be active members of the same statewide teacher organization. Amends the
Illinois Finance Authority Act. Adds costs incurred in connection with the transition process to the
definition of "public purpose project". Authorizes the lllinois Finance Authority to make loans to the
Police Officers' Pension Investment Fund and the Firefighters' Pension Investment Fund. Makes other
changes. Amends the Local Government Officer Compensation Act. Provides that language reducing
an elected officer's compensation to zero if he or she is receiving specified pension benefits from the
lllinois Municipal Retirement Fund does not apply to a unit of local government that has adopted a
IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 108
www.ilga.gov/legislation/BillStatus.asp?DocNum=1300&GAID=15&DocTypelD=SB&LeglD=117910&SessionID=108&SpecSess=&Session=&GA=101 3/6


http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-104
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-105
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-106
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-107
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-108
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-112
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-113
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-114
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-115
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-116
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-117
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-118
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-119
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-120
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-121
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-122
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-123
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-124
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=004000050K22C-125
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=005001450K25
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=062500050K2-115
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/ilcs/fulltext.asp?DocName=003008050K8.43

1/9/2020

lllinois General Assembly - Bill Status for SB1300

specified ordinance or resolution effective prior to January 1, 2019. Amends tt

Provides that a Capitol Police Investigator (instead of a Capitol Police Investig e

TG T

~

Je.

employment on or after January 1, 2011) may not be retained in service after he or she has reached
65 years of age. Amends the State Mandates Act to require implementation without reimbursement.

Effective January 1, 2020.

House Floor Amendment No. 6

Provides that the Police Officers' Pension Investment Fund (instead of a third party, including the
Police Officers' Pension Investment Fund) shall not have the authority to control, alter, or modify, or

the ability to review or intervene in, the proceedings or decisions of the fund. Provides that the
Firefighters' Pension Investment Fund (instead of a third party, including the Firefighters' Pension
Investment Fund) shall not have the authority to control, alter, or modify, or the ability to review or

intervene in, the proceedings or decisions of the fund.

House Floor Amendment No. 7

In the State Employee Atrticle of the lllinois Pension Code: provides that the alternative retirement

annuity provisions apply to a Tier 2 investigator for the Department of Revenue or the lllinois Gaming
Board and authorizes a Tier 2 investigator for the Department of Revenue or the lllinois Gaming

Board to convert up to 8 years of certain service credit established before the effective date of the

amendatory Act into eligible creditable service upon application and payment of a specified

contribution.
Actions
2/7/2019| Senate |Filed with Secretary by Sen. John G. Mulroe
2/7/2019| Senate |First Reading
2/7/2019| Senate |Referred to Assignments
2/13/2019| Senate |Assigned to Government Accountability and Pensions
3/6/2019| Senate |Postponed - Government Accountability and Pensions
3/13/2019| Senate |Do Pass Government Accountability and Pensions; 009-000-000
3/13/2019| Senate |[Placed on Calendar Order of 2nd Reading March 14, 2019
3/20/2019| Senate |Second Reading
3/20/2019| Senate |[Placed on Calendar Order of 3rd Reading March 21, 2019
3/28/2019| Senate |Third Reading - Passed; 046-000-000
3/28/2019| House |Arrived in House
3/29/2019| House |Chief House Sponsor Rep. Robert Martwick
3/29/2019| House |[First Reading
3/29/2019| House |Referred to Rules Committee
4/9/2019] House |Assigned to Personnel & Pensions Committee
5/9/2019] House |Do Pass / Short Debate Personnel & Pensions Committee; 010-000-000
5/9/2019] House |Placed on Calendar 2nd Reading - Short Debate
5/22/2019| House |[Second Reading - Short Debate
5/22/2019| House |Held on Calendar Order of Second Reading - Short Debate
5/24/2019| House |[Final Action Deadline Extended-9(b) May 31, 2019
5/30/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 1 Filed with Clerk by Rep. Robert Martwick
5/30/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 1 Referred to Rules Committee
5/30/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 2 Filed with Clerk by Rep. Robert Martwick
5/30/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 2 Referred to Rules Committee
5/30/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 3 Filed with Clerk by Rep. Robert Martwick
5/30/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 3 Referred to Rules Committee
5/30/2019| House [House Floor Amendment No. 3 Rules Refers to Personnel & Pensions
Committee
5/30/2019| Senate |Chief Sponsor Changed to Sen. Omar Aquino
IFA Pdblic Board Book (Version 2), Page 109

www.ilga.gov/legislation/BillStatus.asp?DocNum=1300&GAID=15&DocTypelD=SB&LeglD=117910&SessionID=108&SpecSess=&Session=&GA=101

4/6


http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/fulltext.asp?DocName=10100SB1300ham006&GA=101&LegID=117910&SessionId=108&SpecSess=0&DocTypeId=SB&DocNum=1300&GAID=15&Session=
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/fulltext.asp?DocName=10100SB1300ham007&GA=101&LegID=117910&SessionId=108&SpecSess=0&DocTypeId=SB&DocNum=1300&GAID=15&Session=
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/senator.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2586
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2341
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2373
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2373
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2373
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/votehistory.asp?GA=101&DocNum=1300&DocTypeID=SB&GAId=15&LegID=117910&SessionID=108
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2626
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2310
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2310
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2626
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2626
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2626
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2310
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/senator.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2673
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2310

1/9/2020 lllinois General Assembly - Bill Status for SB1300

5/30/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 3 Recommends Be A" * '~ =
Pensions Committee; 006-004-000

5/31/2019| House [Final Action Deadline Extended-9(b) June 30, 2019
6/1/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 4 Filed with Clerk by Rep. Robert Martwick
6/1/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 4 Referred to Rules Committee

6/1/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 4 Recommends Be Adopted Rules
Committee; 005-000-000

6/28/2019| House |Rule 19(a)/ Re-referred to Rules Committee
10/21/2019] House |Alternate Chief Sponsor Changed to Rep. Gregory Harris
10/21/2019| House |Approved for Consideration Rules Committee; 004-000-000
10/21/2019| House [Placed on Calendar 2nd Reading - Short Debate
10/21/2019| House [Final Action Deadline Extended-9(b) November 27, 2019
11/6/2019] House |Added Alternate Chief Co-Sponsor Rep. Mark Batinick
11/6/2019] House |Added Alternate Chief Co-Sponsor Rep. Jay Hoffman
11/6/2019] House |Added Alternate Chief Co-Sponsor Rep. Ryan Spain
11/6/2019] House |Alternate Chief Co-Sponsor Removed Rep. Jay Hoffman
11/11/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 5 Filed with Clerk by Rep. Jay Hoffman
11/11/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 5 Referred to Rules Committee
11/12/2019] House |Added Alternate Co-Sponsor Rep. Jonathan Carroll
11/12/2019| Senate |Chief Sponsor Changed to Sen. Cristina Castro

11/12/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 5 Rules Refers to Personnel & Pensions
Committee

11/12/2019] House |Added Alternate Chief Co-Sponsor Rep. Michael J. Zalewski

11/12/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 5 Recommends Be Adopted Personnel &
Pensions Committee; 007-003-000

11/13/2019] House |Alternate Chief Sponsor Changed to Rep. Jay Hoffman

11/13/2019] Senate |Added as Chief Co-Sponsor Sen. Linda Holmes

11/13/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 6 Filed with Clerk by Rep. Jay Hoffman
11/13/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 6 Referred to Rules Committee

11/13/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 6 Recommends Be Adopted Rules
Committee; 004-000-000

11/13/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 7 Filed with Clerk by Rep. Jay Hoffman
11/13/2019| House |House Floor Amendment No. 7 Referred to Rules Committee

11/13/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 7 Recommends Be Adopted Rules
Committee; 004-000-000

11/13/2019] House |Added Alternate Co-Sponsor Rep. Karina Villa

11/13/2019| House |Added Alternate Co-Sponsor Rep. Terra Costa Howard
11/13/2019] House |Added Alternate Co-Sponsor Rep. Diane Pappas

11/13/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 1 Tabled

11/13/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 2 Tabled

11/13/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 3 Withdrawn by Rep. Jay Hoffman
11/13/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 4 Withdrawn by Rep. Jay Hoffman
11/13/2019]| House |House Floor Amendment No. 5 Adopted

11/13/2019] House |House Floor Amendment No. 6 Adopted

11/13/2019| House [House Floor Amendment No. 7 Adopted

11/13/2019] House |Placed on Calendar Order of 3rd Reading - Short Debate
11/13/2019| House |[3/5 Vote Required

11/13/2019| House |Third Reading - Short Debate - Passed 096-014-003

11/13/2019|  Sengig p|eFsiAN¥RPESkooNEYEeNge House Amendment(s) 5, 6, 7
www.ilga.gov/legislation/BillStatus.asp?DocNum=1300&GAID=15&DocTypelD=SB&LeglD=117910&SessionID=108&SpecSess=&Session=&GA=101 5/6



http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2310
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2626
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2562
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2653
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2643
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2693
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2643
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2643
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2701
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/senator.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2677
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2310
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2573
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2310
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2643
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/senator.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2564
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2643
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2643
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2312
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2742
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2739
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2738
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2643
http://www.ilga.gov/house/rep.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2643
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/votehistory.asp?GA=101&DocNum=1300&DocTypeID=SB&GAId=15&LegID=117910&SessionID=108

1/9/2020 lllinois General Assembly - Bill Status for SB1300

11/13/2019| Senate |Placed on Calendar Order of Concurrence House £
November 13, 2019

Cristina Castro

11/13/2019| Senate |House Floor Amendment No. 5 Motion to Concur Filed with Secretary Sen.

11/13/2019| Senate |House Floor Amendment No. 5 Motion to Concur Referred to Assignments

Cristina Castro

11/13/2019| Senate |House Floor Amendment No. 6 Motion to Concur Filed with Secretary Sen.

11/13/2019| Senate |House Floor Amendment No. 6 Motion to Concur Referred to Assignments

Cristina Castro

11/13/2019| Senate |[House Floor Amendment No. 7 Motion to Concur Filed with Secretary Sen.

11/13/2019| Senate |House Floor Amendment No. 7 Motion to Concur Referred to Assignments

11/13/2019| Senate [House Floor Amendment No. 5 Motion to Concur Be Approved for
Consideration Assignments

11/13/2019| Senate [House Floor Amendment No. 6 Motion to Concur Be Approved for
Consideration Assignments

11/13/2019| Senate [House Floor Amendment No. 7 Motion to Concur Be Approved for
Consideration Assignments

11/14/2019] Senate |3/5 Vote Required

11/14/2019| Senate |House Floor Amendment No. 5 Senate Concurs 042-012-000

11/14/2019| Senate |House Floor Amendment No. 6 Senate Concurs 042-012-000

11/14/2019| Senate |House Floor Amendment No. 7 Senate Concurs 042-012-000

11/14/2019| Senate |Senate Concurs

11/14/2019| Senate |Passed Both Houses

12/4/2019] Senate |Sent to the Governor

12/18/2019| Senate |Governor Approved

12/18/2019| Senate |Effective Date January 1, 2020

12/18/2019| Senate |PublicAct......... 101-0610

Back To Top

Home | Legislation & Laws | House | Senate | My Legislation | Disclaimers | Email

This site is maintained for the lllinois General Assembly by the
- Legislative Information System, 705 Stratton Building, Springfield, lllinois 62706
._LE 217-782-3944 217-782-2050 (TTY)
Leqgisiative

= Information System

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 111
www.ilga.gov/legislation/BillStatus.asp?DocNum=1300&GAID=15&DocTypelD=SB&LeglD=117910&SessionID=108&SpecSess=&Session=&GA=101

6/6


http://www.ilga.gov/senate/senator.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2677
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2341
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/senator.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2677
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2341
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/senator.asp?GA=101&MemberID=2677
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2341
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2341
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2341
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/committees/members.asp?GA=101&committeeID=2341
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/votehistory.asp?GA=101&DocNum=1300&DocTypeID=SB&GAId=15&LegID=117910&SessionID=108
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/votehistory.asp?GA=101&DocNum=1300&DocTypeID=SB&GAId=15&LegID=117910&SessionID=108
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/votehistory.asp?GA=101&DocNum=1300&DocTypeID=SB&GAId=15&LegID=117910&SessionID=108
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/publicacts/fulltext.asp?Name=101-0610
http://www.ilga.gov/
http://www.ilga.gov/legislation/
http://www.ilga.gov/house/default.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/senate/default.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/mylegislation/default.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/disclaimer.asp
http://www.ilga.gov/contact.asp

1/9/2020 lllinois News - lllinois.gov

lllinois.gov (/)

lllinois News

After 70 Years of Failed Attempts, Gov. Pritzker
Enacts Pension Consolidation for First Responders

New Law Consolidates 649 Downstate and Suburban Police and Fire Pension Plans into Two
Statewide Funds
Wednesday, December 18, 2019 - Governor, Office of the

Chicago — After more than 70 years of failed attempts to remedy the patchwork of first responder
pension plans across the state, Governor JB Pritzker signed a new law today to consolidate the 649
downstate and suburban plans into two statewide funds.

"Bipartisanship in this General Assembly has achieved what none of their predecessors have been
able to do: consolidate the 650 downstate and suburban pension funds to just two, amplifying their
investment power and reducing the burden on property taxpayers," said Governor JB Pritzker.
"Working together, we are helping hundreds of cities in lllinois alleviate their spiraling property tax
burdens, and just as importantly, we're showing that lllinois can tackle its most intractable
problems."

The new funds will leverage their collective buying power of $15 billion in assets - $8.7 billion in the
police fund and $6.3 in the fire fund - to increase investment returns and lower management costs.
Helping lower the pressure on local property taxes, the consolidation is estimated to produce greater
returns of $820 million to $2.5 billion over the next five years alone and billions more over the next
20 years.

Created by Gov. Pritzker less than a month into office, the lllinois Pension Consolidation Feasibility
Task Force - led by co-chairs former CBOE Chairman and CEO Bill Brodsky, AFFI President Pat
Devaney and former Senate Republican Leader Christine Radogno - recommended the legislation
after months of deliberation.

Senate Bill 1300 passed in the fall veto session with strong bipartisan majorities and the support of
the Associated Fire Fighters of lllinois, the lllinois Fraternal Order of Police, the lllinois Municipal
League and the countless cities, towns and villages across the state they represent.

"The number one budget issue legislators have been dealing with for decades is the pension crisis,"
said Sen. Cristina Castro (D-Elgin), the Senate sponsor of the measure. "We got a victory today
with this consolidation plan, but there's still a lot of work to be done."

"This is a commonsense proposal that will solidify police and fire pensions throughout the state,"

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 112
https://www2.illinois.gov/Pages/news-item.aspx?ReleaselD=20959 1/3


https://www2.illinois.gov/

1/9/2020 lllinois News - lllinois.gov

said House Assistant Majority Leader Jay Hoffman (D-Swansea), the House sponsor of the
measure. "By combining the investment power of the funds, they will receive an increase in
investment income and will relieve the pressure on local property taxes. The Governor should be
commended for his leadership in this important issue."

"Consolidating these 649 local plans into two statewide funds for investment purposes will reduce
expenses and maximize performance — and most importantly, secure our first responders' futures,"
said Associated Fire Fighters of lllinois President Pat Devaney. "Firefighters deserve to know
their retirement will be there and taxpayers should finally be confident it's being funded in the most
efficient manner, and this new law signed by Gov. Pritzker moves us toward a financially stable
future for every lllinoisan."

"Lawmakers from both parties and Governor Pritzker's office truly listened to police officers'
concerns and put in a lot of hard work to get this final bill right," said lllinois Fraternal of Police
Board Chairman Tim Kobler. "The law will let police officers control the retirement funds for their
fellow officers, and it addresses the root causes of the pension dilemma rather than resorting to the
same old game of just cutting benefits. The end result will benefit taxpayers and officers alike."

"Consolidating the assets of the more than 650 downstate public safety pension funds throughout
lllinois will help provide stronger investment returns for active and retired public safety employees
and reduce redundant administrative costs on lllinois' taxpayers," said lllinois Municipal League
Executive Director Brad Cole. "This is a good first step forward on the complicated and
comprehensive issue of pension reform."

"This legislation represents a balanced approach based on thoughtful discussion and compromise
among the interested parties after decades of underperformance of these many funds," said
William J. Brodsky, former Chairman and CEO of the Chicago Board Options Exchange and
now Chairman of Cedar Street Asset Management, LLC. "The goal was to maximize the returns
for the benefit of the first responders and their families and to minimize the costs to those who fund
the pension plans: the taxpayers of lllinois. The leadership of Governor Pritzker was the catalyst that
allowed this to happen.”

"There is universal agreement that larger pooled investments enjoy lower fees and have more
opportunity to invest in higher earning investments," said former Senate Republican Leader
Christine Radogno. "Consolidation of lllinois' 650 funds into two funds will allow the administrative
and fee savings and better returns to be plowed back into the funds for the benefit of retirees and
taxpayers."

Local pension boards will continue to administer pension benefits, and no assets or liabilities will be
shifted from one local pension plan to another. The new law also brings Tier 2 pensions into
compliance to avoid future additional liabilities, which is estimated to cost $70 to $95 million while
projected investment gains can generate an additional $820 million to $2.5 billion.

Senate Bill 1300 takes effect immediately.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 113
https://www2.illinois.gov/Pages/news-item.aspx?ReleaselD=20959 2/3



160 North LaSalle Street
Suite S-1000

Chicago, IL 60601
312-651-1300
312-651-1350 fax
www.il-fa.com

% ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Date: January 14, 2020

To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman George Obernagel
James J. Fuentes Terrence M. O’Brien
Michael W. Goetz Roger Poole
William Hobert Beth Smoots
Mayor Arlene A. Juracek J. Randal Wexler
Lerry Knox Jeffrey Wright
Lyle McCoy Bradley A. Zeller
Roxanne Nava

From: Ximena Granda, Manager of Finance and Administration

Subject: Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports as of December 31, 2019**

**All information is preliminary and unaudited.

GENERAL OPERATING FUND REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME

a. Total Annual Revenues of $2.6 million were $154 thousand or 6.4% higher than budget primarily
due to higher than expected closing fees. Closing fees year-to-date of $1.6 million are $286 thousand
or 21.9% higher than budget. Annual fees of $120 thousand are $12 thousand higher than budget
while Administrative Service Fees of $55 thousand are lower than budget. Application fees total $31
thousand which is $21 thousand higher than budget. Total accrued interest income from loans in
connection with the former Illinois Rural Bond Bank local government borrowers and other loans
totaled $241 thousand (which has represented a declining asset since 2014). Net investment income
position of $512 thousand for the fiscal year is $17 thousand higher than budget.*

b. In December the Authority recorded closing fees of $495 thousand which was higher than the
monthly budgeted amount of $218 thousand.

c. Total Annual Expenses of $2.1 million were $337 thousand or 14.1% lower than budget, which was
mostly driven by below budget spending on employee related expenses and professional services.
Year-to-date, employee related expenses total $1.2 million or $191 thousand or 13.3% lower than
budget. Professional services expenses total $537 thousand or $122 thousand or 18.6% lower than
budget. Annual occupancy costs of $86 thousand are 4.5% lower than budget, while general and
administrative costs are $188 thousand for the year, which is 8.7% lower than budget. Total
depreciation cost of $9 thousand is 14.3% below budget.

d. In December the Authority recorded operating expenses of $409 thousand, which was higher than the
monthly budgeted amount of $400 thousand. This was mostly attributable to Information Technology
expenditures related to software license renewals for the Authority’s telephone system and software
upgrades for the accounting/human resources and payroll systems.

* Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 31. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting
standards for all investments held by governmental external investment pools. For most other governmental entities, it establishes fair value
standards for investments in (a) participating interest-earning investment contracts, (b) external investment pools, (c) open-end mutual funds,
(d) debt securities, and (e) equity securities, option contracts, stock warrants, and stock rights that have readily determinable fair values.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 114



http://www.il-fa.com/

&I

e.

f.

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Total Monthly Net Income of $256 thousand was driven by higher closing fees.

Total Annual Net Income is $492 thousand. The major driver of the annual positive bottom line is
the level of overall spending at 14.1% below budget, as well as higher than expected closing fees.

2. GENERAL OPERATING FUND-ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

In the General Fund, the Authority continues to maintain a strong balance sheet, with total net position of
$60.1 million. Total assets in the General Fund are $60.4 million (consisting mostly of cash, investments,
and receivables). Unrestricted cash and investments total $46.6 million (with $3.6 million in cash).
Notes receivable from the former lllinois Rural Bond Bank local governments (“IRBB”) total $8.3
million. Participation loans, DACA (pilot medical student loans in exchange for service in medically
underserved areas in Illinois) and other loans receivable are $4.8 million.

3. YEAR-TO-DATE ACTIVITY FORALL OTHER FUNDS

a.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards, the “Other State of Illinois Debt Fund” is
comprised of bond activity for the Illinois Environmental Protection Agency (“IEPA”) and Northern
Illinois University Foundation (“NIUF”). The majority of the activity in this fund derives from the
Clean Water Initiative (“CWI) bonds issued for the benefit of IEPA. At this time, financial
information is not available.

The Locally Held Fire Truck and Ambulance Revolving Loan Funds have total year-to-date receipts
of $159 thousand. Year-to-date loan repayments under the Fire Truck and Ambulance Revolving
Loan Funds are $1.9 million and $280 thousand, respectively. Year-to-date loans issued under the
Fire Truck and Ambulance Revolving Loan Funds are $6.0 million and $2.1 million, respectively.
The Net Position for Fire Truck and Ambulance Revolving Loan Funds on the Authority’s balance
sheet is $24.4 million and $4.4 million, respectively.

The Illinois Agricultural Loan Guarantee Fund and the Illinois Farmer Agribusiness Loan Guarantee
Fund include restricted assets held by the State Treasurer to make payouts of losses in relation to the
Authority’s agricultural loan guarantee programs. As of December 31, 2019, the Agricultural Loan
Guarantee Fund had a Restricted Net Position of $10.6 million and the Agribusiness Fund had a
Restricted Net Position of $8.3 million, with no loss reserves in either fund. However, the Industrial
Revenue Bond Insurance Fund includes restricted assets held locally by the Authority to make
payouts of losses in relation to the Authority’s agricultural loan guarantee programs (please see
Senate Bill 324, Public Act 99-0509). The Restricted Net Position for the Industrial Revenue Bond
Insurance Fund was $12.1 million as of December 31, 2019.

All other nonmajor funds recorded total year-to-date revenues of $344 thousand. Year-to-date
expenses total $6 thousand as of December 31, 2019. Total Net Position in the non-major funds is
$35.5 million.

The Metro East Police District Commission (“Commission”) is reported as an agency/fiduciary fund,
which has total assets of $4 thousand in the custody of the Authority. The Metro East Police District
Act was repealed on December 31, 2019 as provided for in the enabling legislation. The Authority is
currently working with the Commission to properly dissolve the Metro East Police District Fund and
return the remaining assets.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 115



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

&I

f.  The Illinois Finance Authority NFP Development Fund has a total net position of $12 thousand.

4. AUTHORITY AUDITS AND REGULATORY UPDATES

The Illinois Office of the Auditor General (“OAG”) has not yet provided a firm date for the release of the
Authority’s Fiscal Year 2019 Financial Audit (“Financial Audit”). The OAG, which is an independent
state constitutional office reporting to the Legislative Branch of State government rather than the
Executive Branch of state government, has sole control over the release date of the Authority’s annual
Financial Audit.

Typically, the OAG notifies the Authority by email approximately 24 hours before the public release
date. In the event that the OAG does release the Financial Audit in advance of the January 14, 2020
Board meeting, staff will do its best to provide copies of the Financial Audit to the Members at the
January 14, 2020 Board meeting. However, the consideration and acceptance of the Financial Audit, both
by the Audit Plus Committee and the Board, is expected to occur at the February 11, 2020 meeting.

The internal audits for Fiscal Year 2020 remain on track at this time and there is nothing to report.

5. OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Fiscal Year Comparison of Bonds Issued, the Fiscal Year 2020 Bonds Issued, Schedule of Debt, and
Property Assessed Clean Energy (“PACE”) bond issuance report area being presented as supplementary
financial information in your Board book.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Ximena Granda
Manager of Finance and Administration

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 116



STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

GENERAL OPERATING FUND
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019
(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)

YEAR TO YEAR TO BUDGET BUDGET
DATE DATE VARIANCE VARIANCE

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC ACTUAL BUDGET ($) (%)
Operating Revenues:
Closing Fees $ 63,918 128,243 $ 2,600 $ 466,000 $ 437,701 494,818 $ 1,593,280 $ 1,307,202 $ 286,078 21.9%
Annual Fees 20,242 17,983 19,227 18,239 18,225 25,821 119,737 108,000 11,737 10.9%
Administrative Service Fees - 30,000 10,000 12,000 - 3,000 55,000 120,000 (65,000) -54.2%
Application Fees 1,000 16,750 2,450 3,000 5,600 1,750 30,550 10,002 20,548 205.4%
Miscellaneous Fees 114 107 - - 499 - 720 1,002 (282) -28.1%
Interest Income-Loans 40,375 39,864 40,127 42,695 37,558 40,807 241,426 356,940 (115,514) -32.4%
Other Revenue 125 128 123 123 122 121 742 750 8) -1.1%
Total Operating Revenue: $ 125,774 233,075 $ 74,527 $ 542,057 $ 499,705 566,317 $ 2,041,455 $ 1,903,896 $ 137,559 7.2%
Operating Expenses:
Employee Related Expense $ 188,470 203,812 $ 202,650 $ 205,644 $ 220,718 221,466 $ 1,242,760 $ 1,434,210 $ (191,450) -13.3%
Professional Services 53,500 70,140 56,297 71,148 155,912 130,129 537,126 659,502 (122,376) -18.6%
Occupancy Costs 13,146 15,935 12,670 15,583 13,932 14,411 85,677 89,760 (4,083) -4.5%
General & Administrative 28,909 28,106 30,024 29,697 31,884 39,377 187,997 205,998 (18,001) -8.7%
Depreciation and Amortization 1,386 1,437 1,437 1,437 1,437 1,437 8,571 10,002 (1,431) -14.3%
Total Operating Expense $ 285411 319,430 $ 303,078 $ 323,509 $ 423,883 406,820 $ 2,062,131 $ 2,399,472 $ (337,341) -14.1%
Operating Income(Loss) $ (159,637) (86,355) $ (228,551) $ 218,548 $ 75,822 159,497 $ (20,676) $ (495,576) $ 474,900 95.8%
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Miscellaneous Non-Opertg Rev/(Exp) $ - - $ - $ - $ - - $ - $ - n/a
Bad Debt Adjustments (Expense) - - - (20,004) 20,004 -100.0%
Interest and Investment Income 74,257 68,209 89,029 66,575 56,057 97,643 451,770 515,580 (63,810) -12.4%
Realized Gain (Loss) on Sale of Invest (2,678) 1,103 (6,785) 2,569 59 (3,727) (9,459) - (9,459) n/a
Net Appreciation (Depr) in FV of Invesi (9,285) 95,877 (26,422) 42,742 (35,908) 3,056 70,060 - 70,060 n/a
Total Nonoperating Rev (Exp) $ 62,294 165189 $ 55,822 $ 111,886 $ 20,208 96,972 $ 512,371 $ 495,576 $ 16,795 3.4%
Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers $ (97,343) 78,834 $ (172,729) $ 330,434 $ 96,030 256,469 $ 491,695 $ - $ 491,695 n/a
Transfers:
Transfers in from other funds $ - - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - - 0.0%
Transfers out to other funds - - - - - - - - 0.0%
Total Transfers In (Out) $ - -3 - S - S - - S - 3 - $ - 0.0%
Net Income (Loss) $ (97,343) 78,834 $ (172,729) $ 330,434 $ 96,030 256,469 $ 491,695 $ - $ 491,695 n/a

IFA Public Board Boolf Q)/feision 2), Page 117



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

&I

Operating Revenues:
Closing Fees

Annual Fees

Administrative Service Fees
Application Fees
Miscellaneous Fees
Interest Income-Loans
Other Revenue

Total Operating Revenue:

Operating Expenses:
Employee Related Expense
Professional Services
Occupancy Costs

General & Administrative
Interest Expense

Depreciation and Amortization
Total Operating Expense

Operating Income(Loss)

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses):
Miscellaneous non-opertg rev/(exp)
Transfer of funds and program interest from the State of Illi

Interest and invesment income*

Realized Gain (Loss) on sale of investment
Net Appreciation (Depr) in fair value of investments
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

Net Income (Loss) Before Transfers

Transfers:

Transfers in from other funds
Transfers out to other funds
Total Transfers In (Out)

Net Income (Loss)

IFA FUNDS AND CUSTODIAL FUND ACTIVITY

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND NET INCOME

FOR FISCAL YEAR 2020 AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2019

(PRELIMINARY AND UNAUDITED)

FIRE TRUCK AMBULANCE  ALL OTHER TOTAL
GENERAL REV LOAN REV LOAN NON-MAJOR ALL AGENCY
FUND* FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS
1,593,280 -8 -3 - 1,593,280 $ -
119,737 - - - 119,737
55,000 - - - 55,000
30,550 - - - 30,550
720 159,430 - - 160,150
241,426 16,870 1,550 - 250,846
742 - - - 742
2,041,455 176,300 $ 1,550 $ - 2,219,305 §$ -
1,242,760 -8 - 1,242,760 $ -
537,126 2,377 1,668 6,385 547,556
85,677 - - - 85,677
187,997 - - 17 188,014
8,571 - - - 8,571
2,062,131 2377 §$ 1668 $ 6,402 2,072,578 $ -
(20,676) 173,923 $ (118) § (6,402) 146,727 $ -
- -8 - I -
451,770 54,898 21,046 323,000 850,714
(9,459) (3,493) (12,952)
70,060 24,809 94,869
512,371 54,898 $ 21,046 $ 344,316 932,631 $
491,695 228,821 $ 20,928 $ 337,914 1,079,358 $
- -8 -3 - -8 -
- - § - § - - § -
491,695 228,821 $ 20,928 $ 337,914 1,079,358 $

IFA Public Board B%)Bf(){ersion 2), Page 118



% ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Assets and Deferred Outflows:
Current Assets:

Unrestricted:

Cash & cash equivalents
Investments

Accounts receivable, Net

Loans receivables, Net

Accrued interest receivable
Bonds and notes receivable

Due from other funds

Prepaid Expenses

Total Current Unrestricted Assets

Restricted:

Cash & Cash Equivalents

Deposits in transit

Investments

Securities lending collateral equity with the Treasurer
Accrued interest receivable

Due from other funds

Due from primary government

Bonds and notes receivable from State component units
Loans receivables, Net

Total Current Restricted Assets

Total Current Assets

Non-current Assets:

Unrestricted:

Investments

Loans receivables, Net

Bonds and notes receivable

Total Noncurrent Unrestricted Assets

Restricted:

Cash & Cash Equivalents
Investments

Funds in the custody of the Treasurer
Loans receivables, Net

Bonds and notes receivable from primary government
Bonds and notes receivable from State component units

Total Noncurrent Restricted Assets
Capital Assets

Capital Assets

Accumulated Depreciation

Total Capital Assets

Total Noncurrent Assets

Total Assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES:
Deferred loss on debt refunding

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Total Assets & Deferred Inflows of Resources

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
IFA FUNDS AND CUSTODIAL FUND ACTIVITY
December 31, 2019

FIRE TRUCK AMBULANCE ALL OTHER TOTAL METRO EAST

GENERAL REV LOAN REV LOAN NON-MAJOR ALL POLICE DISTRICT
FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS COMMISSION

$ 3,643,669 $ -8 -8 17,838 $ 3,661,507 $ -
28,600,443 - - 3,184,375 31,784,818 -
25,173 - - - 25,173 -

33,348 - - - 33,348 -

464,264 - - 24,914 489,178 -
956,300 - - - 956,300 -

17 - - 17 -

210,078 - - 210,078 -

$ 33,933,292 § - $ - $ 3,227,127 $ 37,160,419 $ -
$ - 2,036,472 $ 1,198,137 $ 65,338 $ 3,299,947 $ 4,463
- - - 8,651,531 8,651,531 -

- 12,874 1,178 62,820 76,872 -

$ - $ 2,049,346 $ 1,199,315 § 8,779,689 $ 12,028,350 $ 4,463
$ 33,933,292 § 2,049,346 $ 1,199,315 § 12,006,816 _$ 49,188,769 $ 4,463
$ 14,321,231 $ -8 -8 1,312,854 $ 15,634,085 $ -
4,797,310 - - - 4,797,310 -
7,349,537 - - - 7,349,537 -

$ 26,468,078 $ - $ - $ 1,312,854 §$ 27,780,932 $ -
$ -8 - 8 - 8 - 8 -8 -
- - - 3,306,230 3,306,230 -

- 2,410,159 282,039 18,923,667 21,615,865 -

- 19,966,330 2,882,991 - 22,849,321 -

$ - $ 22,376,489 $ 3,165,030 §$ 22,229,897 $ 47,771,416 _$ -
$ 761,048 $ - $ - $ - $ 761,048 $ -
(713,957) - - - (713,957) -

$ 47,091 $ - $ - $ - $ 47,091 $ -
$ 26,515,169 _$ 22,376,489 $ 3,165,030 $ 23,542,751 _$ 75,599,439 $ -
$ 60,448,461 $ 24,425,835 $ 4,364,345 $ 35,549,567 _$ 124,788,208 $ 4,463
$ - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 -
$ - 8 - $ - $ - $ - 8 -
$ 60,448,461 $ 24,425,835 $ 4,364,345 § 35,549,567 _$ 124,788,208 $ 4,463

IFA Public Board B%QBKXersion 2), Page 119



X

% ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Liabilities:

Current Liabilities:

Payable from unrestricted current assets:

Accounts payable

Accrued liabilities

Payroll Tax Liability

Due to employees

Due to primary government

Due to other funds

Other liabilities

Unearned revenue, net of accumulated amortization
Total Current Liabilities Payable from Unrestricted Current Assets

Payable from restricted current assets:

Accounts payable

Obligation under securites lending of the State Treasurer
Accrued interest payable

Due to other funds

Due to primary government

Bonds and notes payable from primary government
Bonds and notes payable from State component units
Current portion of long term debt

Other liabilities

Total Current Liabilities Payable from Restricted Current Assets
Total Current Liabilties

Noncurrent Liabilities

Payable from unrestricted noncurrent assets:
Noncurrent payables

Assets

Payable from restricted noncurrent assets:

Bonds and notes payable from primary government

Bonds and notes payable from State component units

Total Noncurrent Liabilities Payable from Restricted Noncurrent

Total Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Net Position:

Net Investment in Capital Assets

Restricted for Locally Held Agricultural Guarantees

Restricted for Public Safety Loans

Restricted for Agricultural Guarantees and Rural Development Loans
Restricted for Low Income Community Investments

Unrestricted

Current Change in Net Position

Total Net Position

Total Liabilities & Net Position

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
IFA FUNDS AND CUSTODIAL FUND ACTIVITY
December 31, 2019

FIRE TRUCK AMBULANCE ALL OTHER TOTAL METRO EAST
GENERAL REV LOAN REV LOAN NON-MAJOR ALL POLICE DISTRICT
FUND FUND FUND FUNDS FUNDS COMMISSION
$ 71,605 $ 500 $ 300 $ 600 $ 73,005 $ -
76,197 - - - 76,197 -

29,605 29,605
116,560 - - - 116,560 -
1 - - - 1 -
- - - - - 4,459
15,676 - - - 15,676 -
$ 300,644_$ 500 _$ 300§ 600 _$ 311,044_$ 4,459
- - - 1,500 1,500 -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
- - - 17 17 -
3 3 - $ -3 1,517_$ 1517_§ -
$ 309,644 _$ 500 _$ 300§ 2,117_$ 312,561_$ 4,459
$ 585 $ - $ - $ - $ 585 % -
$ 585 § - 8 - 8 - 8 585§ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
$ 585§ - S - S - S 585§ -
$ 310,229 § 500§ 300§ 2117_$ 313,146_$ 4,459
$ 47,091 $ -3 -3 -3 47,091 $ -
- - - 11,941,783 11,941,783 -
- 24,196,514 4,343,117 - 28,539,631 -
- - - 18,764,864 18,764,864 -
- - - 11,877 11,877 -
59,599,446 - - 4,491,012 64,090,458 -
491,695 228,821 20,928 337,914 1,079,358 4
$ 60,138,232_$ 24,425,335 _$ 4,364,045 $ 35,547,450 $ 124,475,062 % 4
$ 60,448,461 _$ 24,425835_$ 4,364,345 $ 35,549,567 $ 124,788,208 _$ 4,463

IFA Public Board B(AO&(Xersion 2), Page 120



A

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Bonds Issued - Fiscal Year Comparison
for the Period Ending December 31, 2019

Fiscal Year 2020
# Market Sector

2 Agriculture - Beginner Farmer

3 Education

1 Healthcare - Hospital

4 Healthcare - CCRC

3 Local Government Schools

1 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit

1 Water Facilities

1 Environmental issued under 20
ILCS 3515/9

2 Property Assessed Clean Energy

18

Fiscal Year 2019
# Market Sector

22 Agriculture - Beginner Farmer
10 Education

7 Healthcare - Hospital

2 Healthcare - CCRC

5 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit

1 Local Government

A7

Fiscal Year 2018
Market Sector

Agriculture - Beginner Farmer
Education

Healthcare - Hospital
Healthcare - CCRC

Midwest Disaster Area Bonds
501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit

Local Government

A [
G| NP o0~ OO FH#

Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2020

Principal Issued

475.700
258,780,000 B Aere o
36,752,000 —J s
207,087,000 RS
165,090,000 R
6,595,000 m o3
28,500,000 Total: 100.0%

50,000,000

41,240,000

$794,519,700

Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2019

Principal Issued

5,501,225

253,055,000 - o
914,840,000 W E-PC 12.3%

B HO 44.4%
125,815,000 B CCRC 6.1%

M 501(c)(3) 8.2%
168,995,094 mLGo 28.7%
590,960,000 Total: 100.0%

$2,059,166,319

Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2018

Principal Issued

2,749,725
403,755,000
1,308,930,000 B orc. 1o
388,700,000 B ooRC 13w
20,200,000 B oro® S
288,464,000 e 10000
758,930,000

$ 3,171,728,725

* Powers to issue Bonds under the lllinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act (“IEFFA” 20 ILCS 3515/2 et seq.) and its
predecessor authority date to the early 1970s. In 1984, the powers under this Act became part of the Authority’s predecessor,
Illinois Development Finance Authority, which in turn was consolidated into the Authority in 2004. Under IEFFA, the Authority has
an additional $2.5 billion in bond issuance limit in addition to the $28.15 billion under the Authority Act. This is also reflected in the
Schedule of Debt. Generally, projects under IEFFA are for private companies that access federal tax-exemption through Volume

Cap provided by the federal government th

rough the State. IEFFA-financed pollution control facilities projects are separate and

distinguishable from the generally public projects financed through the State Revolving Fund on behalf of the lllinois Environmental

Protection Agency.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 121



% ILLINDIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Fiscal Year 2020

# Market Sector Principal Issued
2 Agriculture - Beginner Farmer 475,700
3 Education 258,780,000
1 Healthcare - Hospital 36,752,000
4 Healthcare - CCRC 207,087,000
1 501(c)(3) Not-for-Profit 6,595,000
3 Local Gov't-School Districts 165,090,000
1 Water Facilities 28,500,000
1 Environmental issued under 20 50,000,000
ILCS 3515/9
2 Property Assessed Clean Energy 41,240,000
18 $ 794,519,700
Bonds Issued between July 01, 2019 and December 31, 2019
Initial Interest
Bond Issue Date Issued Rate
A-BFB  Beginner Farmer Bond 07/01/2019 Variable
E-PC  Roosevelt University 07/03/2019  Fixed at Schedule
HO  Rush University Medical Center 08/29/2019 Variable
L Elmhurst Community School District 205 08/20/2019  Fixed at Schedule
CCRC  Smith Washington and Jane Smith Community d/b/a Smith Villag ~ 10/25/2019 Variable
CCRC  Smith Washington and Jane Smith Community d/b/a Smith Villag ~ 10/25/2019 Variable
CCRC  Smith Washington and Jane Smith Community d/b/a Smith Villag ~ 10/25/2019 Variable
ENV  Waste Management Inc. 10/30/2019  Fixed at Schedule
PACE RCP Hotel Owner, LLC 11/08/2019  Fixed at Constant
L Maine Township High School District Number 207 11/13/2019  Fixed at Constant
WF  American Water Capital Corp. 11/14/2019  Fixed at Schedule
E-PC  Columbia College Chicago 11/20/2019  Fixed at Schedule
L Township High School District Number 86 12/10/2019  Fixed at Schedule
PACE  Hotel Mannheim Chicago, LLC 12/11/2019  Fixed at Constant
CCRC  Lutheran Life Ministries 12/12/2019  Fixed at Schedule
501(c)(3) Notre Dame College Prep 12/19/2019  Fixed at Schedule
E-PC lliiois Institute of Technology 12/20/2019  Fixed at Schedule
Total Bonds Issued as of December 31, 2019
Legend Fixed Rate Bonds as shown

Bonds Issued
as of December 31, 2019

DP-VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Direct Purchase Bond

VRB = initial interest rate at the time of issuance on a Varigipi\RRigIRRNBOardP Bowk (Wedeion 25! Plagrel PSarrangement.

Beainner Farmer Bonds interest rates are shown in section below.

Bonds Issued in Fiscal Year 2020

H A-BFB 0.1%

MW E-PC 32.6%

M HO 4.6%

I CCRC 26.1%

M sp 20.8%

M 501(c)(3) 0.8%

W wWr 3.6%

ENV 6.3%

5.2%

Total: 100.0%

Bonds

Principal Issued Refunded
475,700 0
117,830,000 117,830,000
36,752,000 0
55,495,000 0
23,608,000 0
25,000,000 25,000,000
5,119,000 5,119,000
50,000,000 0
21,250,000 0
78,120,000 0
28,500,000 28,500,000
18,035,000 0
31,475,000 0
19,990,000 0
153,360,000 111,850,000
6,595,000 6,595,000
122,915,000 122,915,000

$ 794,519,700

$ 417,809,000




Beginner Farmer Bonds Funded between July 01, 2019 and December 31, 2019

Initial
Interest
Date Funded Rate Loan Proceeds Acres County
07/19/2019 5.0 295,700 47 Henry
08/22/2019 45 180,000 32 Charleston
Total Beginner Farmer Bonds Issued ~ $ 475,700 79

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 123



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of Debt 2]

Total debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act which does not constitute a debt of the Authority or the State of Illinois or any political subdivision thereof within the meaning of any provisions of the
Constitution or statutes of the State of Illinois or a pledge of the faith and credit of the Authority or of the State of Illinois or any political subdivision thereof, or grant to the owners thereof any right to have the Authority
or the General Assembly of the State of Illinois levy any taxes or appropriate any funds for the payment of the principal thereof or interest thereon, with the exception of certain debt identified below in Section I (a),
Section | (b), and Section | (c), and is subject to the Authority's $28,150,000,000 total bond limitation [20 ILCS 3501/845-5(a)]:

Section | Principal Outstanding Total Program Total
June 30, 2019 12/31/20119 Limitations Remaining Capacity
Illinois Finance Authority "I1FA™
Agriculture [ $ 53,266,941 $ 53,648,211
Education 4,679,948,609 4,541,701,276
Healthcare 14,180,988,971 14,214,847,733
Industrial Development [includes Recovery Zone/Midwestern Disaster] 807,109,575 800,638,980
Local Government 1,581,555,000 1,850,655,000
Multifamily/Senior/Not-for Profit Housing 275,223,392 273,002,720
501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 1,517,487,613 1,494,145,615
Exempt Facilities Bonds 203,500,000 232,000,000
Student Housing 260,400,000 257,830,000
Total IFA Principal Outstanding 23,559,480,101 23,718,469,535

1llinois Development Finance Authority "IDFA™

Education -
Healthcare 61,400,000 61,400,000
Industrial Development 63,514,196 60,218,136
Local Government 70,385,868 70,385,868
Multifamily/Senior/Not-for Profit Housing 40,104,538 7,902,545
501(c)(3) Not-for Profits 343,257,316 335,362,337
Exempt Facilities Bonds - -
Total IDFA Principal Outstanding 578,661,918 535,268,886
Illinois Rural Bond Bank "IRBB" - -
Illinois Health Facilities Authority “"IHFA™ 98,790,000 91,210,000
Illinois Educational Facilities Authority "IEFA™ 432,507,000 405,495,000
Illinois Farm Development Authority “IFDA™ [?] 8,168,707 8,168,707
Total Illinois Finance Authority Bonded Indebtedness '/ $ 24,677,607,726 $ 24,758,612,128 $  28,150,000,000 '¢! ¢ 3,391,387,872
State Component Unit Bonds Lel
IEPA Clean Water Initiative ! $ 1,479,430,000 $ 1,445,210,000
Northern Illinois University Foundation, Series 2013 770,422 770,422
Total State Component Unit Bonds $ 1,480,200,422 $ 1,445,980,422

Subject to $28.150 billion total bond limitation under Section 845-5(a), certain debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act is further bound by the following categorical limitation [20 ILCS 3501/801-40(w)]:
Section | (a) Principal Outstanding Program Categorical
June 30, 2019 12/31/20119 Limitations Remaining Capacity

General Purpose Moral Obligation Bonds
Total General Moral Obligation Bonds $ - $ - $ 150,000,000 $ 150,000,000

Subject to $28.150 billion total bond limitation under Section 845-5(a), certain debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act is further bound by the following categorical limitation [20 ILCS 3501/825-60]:
Section | (b) Principal Outstanding Program Categorical
June 30, 2019 12/31/20119 Limitations Remaining Capacity

Financially Distressed Cities Moral Obligation Bonds
Total Financially Distressed Cities Bonds $ - $ - $ 50,000,000 $ 50,000,000

Subject to $28.150 billion total bond limitation under Section 845-5(a), certain debt issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act is further bound by the following categorical limitation [20 ILCS 3501/830-25]:

Section | (c) Principal Outstanding Program Categorical State of Illinois
June 30, 2019 12/31/20119 Limitations Remaining Capacity Exposure

Agri-Debt Guarantees [Restructuring Existing Debt]

Total Agri-Debt Guarantees - Fund # 994
Fund Balance $10,606,243 * $ 3,354,831 $ 3,289,630 $ 160,000,000 $ 156,710,370 $ 2,796,185

Agri-Loan Guarantee Program
Agri Industry Loan Guarantee Program - - -

Farm Purchase Guarantee Program 825,743 825,743 701,882

Specialized Livestock Guarantee Program 1,068,066 1,046,708 889,702

Young Farmer Loan Guarantee Program 195,270 187,399 159,289

Total Agri-Loan Guarantees - Fund # 205

Fund Balance $8,317,423 * 2,089,079 2,059,850 225,000,000 222,940,150 1,750,873
Total AG State Guarantees $ 5,443,910 $ 5,349,480 $ 385,000,000 $ 379,650,520 $ 4,547,058

ref: T:\Bond Reports\Bond Issued Reports\Board Reports\Fiscal 2020\0ecéﬁér'§d&9¥8a&%&30ﬁ99'@4&%@%@}2-?1?19.%51\%%& Year 2019 Revised

1/9/2020 3:55 PM Page 1



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
Schedule of Debt 2]

Locally held funds advanced under the lllinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/801-40]:

Section 11 Principal Outstanding
Original Amount June 30, 2019 12/31/20119
Participation Loans
Business & Industry $ 23,020,158 $ 679,501 $ 1,039,223
Agriculture 6,079,859
Participation Loans Excluding Defaults & Allowances 29,100,017 679,501 1,039,223
Plus: Legacy IDFA Loans in Default 3,170 3,170
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 5,165 19,270
Total Participation Loans 677,506 1,023,123
Local Government Direct Loans 1,289,750 1,064,894 930,735
Rural Bond Bank Local Government Notes Receivable** 8,305,837 8,305,837 *
FmHA Loans 963,250 125,515 117,710
Deferred Action for Childhood Arrivals (DACA) 2,339,686 2,709,754 2,709,754
Total Loans Outstanding $ 32,729,453 $ 12,883,506 $ 13,087,159

** |RBB Bonds were defeased and converted into a portfolio of notes receivable with the Authority.

Office of the State Fire Marshal revolving loan funds administered under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/825-80 and 825-85]:

Section 111 Principal Outstanding Cash and Investment
June 30, 2019 12/31/20119 Balance
Fire Truck, Fire Station, and Ambulance Revolving Loans
Fire Truck Revolving Loan Program**  Fund # 572 $ 16,189,730 $ 19,966,330 $ 4,446,631 *
Ambulance Revolving Loan Program** Fund # 334 1,109,320.00 2,882,991 1,480,175 *
Total Revolving Loans $ 17,299,050 $ 22,849,321 $ 5,926,806

** Due to deposits in transit, the Fund Balance at the Comptroller's Office may differ from the Authority General Ledger. In May 2014, Office of Fire Marshal transferred the Fund Balance to an Authority
locally held fund.

Bonds issued under the Illinois Finance Authority Act [20 ILCS 3501/825-65(d)] but not subject to $28.150 billion total bond limitation under Section 845-5(a):

Section IV Principal Outstanding Program
June 30, 2019 12/31/20119 Limitations Remaining Capacity
Clean Coal, Coal, Energy Efficiency, PACE, and Renewable Energy Project
Financing $ 3,000,000,000 $ 3,000,000,000
Property Assessed Clean Energy (PACE) Bonds $ - $ 41,240,000 $ 2,000,000,000 !9 g 1,958,760,000

Bonds issued under the Illinois Power Agency Act [20 ILCS 3855/1-20(a)(3)]:

Section V Principal Outstanding Program
June 30, 2019 12/31/20119 Limitations Remaining Capacity
Hlinois Power Agency Bonds $ - $ - $ 4,000,000,000 $ 4,000,000,000

Bonds issued under the Illinois Environmental Facilities Financing Act [20 ILCS 3515/9]:

Section VI Principal Outstanding Program
June 30, 2019 12/31/20119 Limitations Remaining Capacity
Standard Environmental Facilities Bonds
Issued through IFA $ 54,675,000 $ 103,435,000
Issued through IDFA 47,505,000 30,005,000
Total Standard Environmental Facilities Bonds 102,180,000.00 133,440,000.00 $ 2,425,000,000 $ 2,291,560,000

Small Business Environmental Facilities Bonds
Issued through IFA - -
Total Small Business Environmental Facilities Bonds - - 75,000,000 75,000,000

Total Environmental Facilities Bonds $ 102,180,000 $ 133,440,000 $ 2,500,000,000 $ 2,366,560,000

Bonds issued under the Higher Education Loan Act [110 ILCS 945/10(b)]:

Section VI Principal Outstanding Program
June 30, 2019 12/31/20119 Limitations Remaining Capacity
Student Loan Program Bonds
Midwestern University Foundation $ 15,000,000 $ 23,545,000
Total Student Loan Program Bonds $ 15,000,000 $ 23,545,000 $ 200,000,000 $ 176,455,000

* Balances as of 6/30/2019 are estimated and subject to change.

[a] Preliinary, draft and unaudited; total subject to change; late month payment data may not be included at issuance of report.

[b] Payments in connection with outstanding Beginner Farmer Bonds are only updated annually; amounts inclusive of outstanding Agri-Det Guarantees and Agri-Loan Guarantees

Le] Inclusive of State Component Unit Bonds.

[d] Pursuant to P.A. 98-90 effective 07/15/2013, after giving effect to the financing or refinancing of an out-of-state project, the Authority shall have the ability to issue at least an additional $1 billion of bonds under Section 845-5(a).

Le] Pursuant to GASB Interpretation No. 2, revenue bonds issued for the benefit of other State agencies and component units of the State of Illinois.

[f] Does not include unamortized issuance premium as reported in the Authority's audited financials.

Lol Pursuant to P.A. 100-919 effective 01/01/2019, up to $2 billion may be issued to finance Energy Efficiency Projects, Renewable Energy Projects, and PACE Projects from the available $3 billion bonding authorization.

ref: T:\Bond Reports\Bond Issued Reports\Board Reports\Fiscal 2020\Decé":nérEﬁgpga&%tgoﬁgﬁlg&\!&@img}2-&@19.%51\%?:& Year 2019 Revised

1/9/2020 3:55 PM Page 2



% ILLINOQIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

160 North LaSalle Street
Suite S-1000
Chicago, IL 60601

Date: January 14, 2020

To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman
James J. Fuentes
Michael W. Goetz

312-651-1300
312-651-1350 fax
www.il-fa.com

George Obernagel
Terrence M. O’Brien
Roger Poole

William Hobert Beth Smoots
Mayor Arlene A. Juracek J. Randal Wexler
Lerry Knox Jeffrey Wright
Lyle McCoy Bradley A. Zeller
Roxanne Nava
From: Brad R. Fletcher, Vice President
Subject: Monthly Summary of Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bond Issuance

All within the parameters set forth in a PACE Bond Resolution previously adopted by the Illinois Finance
Authority (the “Authority”), staff has approved certain Property Assessed Clean Energy (“PACE”)
project application(s) as further described on Exhibit A attached hereto and an Authorized Officer has
executed and delivered PACE Bond Documents in connection with the issuance of PACE Bonds for the

month ended December 31, 2019.
Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Brad R. Fletcher
Vice President

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 126



Treasury Report PACE Bond Issuance Summary
Property Assessed Clean Energy Revenue Bonds Month Ended 12/31/2019
Page 2 Brad R. Fletcher

Exhibit A
Project and Financing

Record Owner Hotel Mannheim Chicago, LLC, an Illinois limited liability company, as a single-
purpose entity created for the purpose of developing and owning the Project.

Project Rehabilitation of 365,032 square feet or 8.38 acres located at 6810 Mannheim
Road, Rosemont, IL (the “Property”), including the acquisition and installation
of eligible energy efficiency and water use improvements under the PACE Act
for the Hyatt Place Chicago/O’Hare Airport (occupying 117,855 square feet), the
La Quinta Inn & Suites (occupying 77,058 square feet), the Best Western Premier
(occupying 65,967 square feet) and RMD Restaurant (located between the Hyatt
Place and the Best Western and occupying 26,160 square feet). The Hyatt Place
will occupy the most space (117,855 square feet), followed by the La Quinta Inn
and Suites (77,058 square feet), and then the Best Western Premier (65,967
square feet) (collectively, the “Project”).

Bonds Amount: $19,990,000
Source: Reliance Standard Life Insurance Company ($8 million),
Safety National Casualty Corporation ($8 million), and
Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Company ($3.99 million),
each as Designated Transferees of SFA Partners, LLC, the

Capital Provider
Term: Not to exceed November 1, 2044
Interest: 5.80% Fixed
Security: Special Assessment on the Property
Use of Proceeds:  Project Costs $16,610,000
Capitalized Interest 1,613,526
Cost of Issuance & Fees 1,766,474
Total $19,990,000
Impact* Energy Savings: 2,681,625 kWh and 40,899 therms
Energy Utility Bill Savings: $268,077
Water Savings: 134,167 Gallons
Water Bill Savings: N/A
Job Data 40 full-time equivalent construction jobs (12 months)
Districts U.S. Representative: 5 State Senator: 39 State Representative: 77

* Annual estimates as reported by TruPACE LLC, the Program Administrator for the PACE area.

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 127



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT

BOARD MEETING
January 14, 2020

CONTRACTS/AMENDMENTS EXECUTED

Estimated Not

Action/Proposed Method of

Procurement Type Vendor Initial Term to Exceed Value Procurement Products/Services Provided
Illlinois Procurement Code- Municipal Market 12/09/19- $18,100 Executed Municipal Bond Market
Small Purchases Analytics 12/08/20 Advisor Subscription

Miller Hall & Triggs, LLC 12/16/19- $20,000 Small Purchase in process Legal advice related to Ag
12/15/20 Guaranty
East Bank Storage 12/16/19- $12,792 Executed Documents and Records
12/15/20 Storage
Network Solutions 01-01-20 $119.97 Executed idfa.com domain
12/31/20
Veritext, LLC 01/01/20- 49,411.65 Executed Transcription Services for
12/31/20 Monthly Board Meetings
Go Daddy 1/8/20-1/7/21 $383.76 Executed Firewall License
Illinois Procurement Master Midwest Moving & 11//01/19- $1,584 Continue with State Master Storage
Contracts Storage 06/30/20
CDW 11/18/19- $24,439.24 Executed Microsoft Server Licenses and
11/17/21 CALs
United Parcel Service 12/20/19- $4,000 Continue with State Master Package Delivery Services
6/30/20
lllinois Procurement Code Bloomberg Finance L.P. 08/01/19- $33,490 Executed 1 Shared License for 1 Users
Renewals AnyWhere Services 12/31/20
Bloomberg Finance L.P. 01/02/20- $47,280 Executed 1 Shared License for 6 Users
Terminal Services 10/08/21
lllinois Procurement Code Acacia Financial Group, 01/01/20- $132,000 Executed Financial Advisory Services
Contracts Inc. 09/30-20
Sycamore Advisors, LLC 01/01/20- $132,000 Executed Financial Advisory Services
09/30/20
Catalyst Consulting 04/01/20- $192,000 Executed IT Consulting Services
03/31/22

1

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 128




ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT

BOARD MEETING
January 14, 2020

EXPIRING CONTRACTS

Procurement Type Vendor Expiration Estimated Not Action/Proposed Method of Products/Services Provided
Date to Exceed Value | Procurement
lllinois Procurement Code Small Advanced Digital 1/15/20 $1140.00 Processing Renewal Real —Time streaming of
Purchases Media Legislative Developments
Go Daddy 1/19/20 $551.76 Processing Renewal Malware

EXPIRING CONTRACTS

Procurement Type Vendor Expiration Estimated Not Action/Proposed Method of Products/Services Provided
Date to Exceed Value | Procurement
lllinois Procurement Code Baker and Hostetler 1/9/20 $250,000 Let Expire Anticipation of Cyber Security
Contracts Litigation
Amalgamated Bank 01/31/20 $120,000 6 month extension in process Bank Custodian Services
of Chicago
2

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 129




ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
PROCUREMENT REPORT OF ACTIVITY SINCE PRIOR BOARD REPORT

BOARD MEETING
January 14, 2020

EXPIRING CONTRACTS-OTHER

Procurement Type Vendor Expiration Estimated Not Action/Proposed Method of Products/Services Provided
Date to Exceed Value | Procurement
Credit Card Bank of America- 06/30/20 $300,000 Continue Credit Card
Credit Card
Bank of America- 06/30/20 $400,000 Continue Bank of America Operating
Depository Account
Inter-Governmental Agreements Illinois Department 12/04/19- N/A IGA-Executed Springfield Office Space within
of Commerce and 06/30/21 DCEO
Economic
Opportunity (DCEQ)
University of lllinois 12/20/19 $5,000 TBD Government Research Center
3

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 130




160 North LaSalle Street
Suite S-1000

Chicago, IL 60601
312-651-1300
312-651-1350 fax
www.il-fa.com

% ILLINOQIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

Date: January 14, 2020

Subject: Minutes of the December 10, 2019 Regular Meeting

To: Eric Anderberg, Chairman George Obernagel
James J. Fuentes Terrence M. O’Brien
Michael W. Goetz Roger Poole
William Hobert Beth Smoots
Mayor Arlene A. Juracek Randal Wexler
Lerry Knox Jeffrey Wright
Lyle McCoy Bradley A. Zeller

Roxanne Nava
Dear Members of the Authority:

Please find enclosed the Report of Proceedings prepared by Sullivan Reporting Co. (the “Minutes”) in
connection with the regular meeting of the Members of the Illinois Finance Authority (the “Authority”),
begun and held at the Michael A. Bilandic Building, 160 North LaSalle Street, Suite S-1000, Chicago,
Illinois 60601, on the second Tuesday of December in the year 2019, pursuant to the provisions of
Section 801-25 and Section 801-30 of the Illinois Finance Authority Act, 20 ILCS 3501/801-1 et seq. of
the State of Illinois (the “Act”).

To aid in your review of the Minutes, please reference the following pages and line numbers for
corresponding sections of the respective meeting’s agenda:

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
REGULAR MEETING
DECEMBER 10, 2019

9:30 AM

AGENDA:

L. Call to Order & Roll Call

(page 3, line 1, through page 5, line 12)
1L Approval of Agenda

(page 5, line 13 through page 6, line 3)
I1I. Public Comment

(page 6, lines 3 through 7)

V. Chairman’s Remarks
(page 6, lines 7 through 13)
V. Message from the Executive Director

(page 6, line 14 through page 12, line 19)
VL Committee Reports
(page 12, line 19 through page 13, line 14)
VII.  Presentation and Consideration of New Business Items
(page 13, line 15 through page 41, line 23, and page 50, line 11 through page 55, line 10)

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 131



% ILLINOQIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

VIII.  Presentation and Consideration of Financial Reports
(page 41, line 24 through page 45, line 13)
IX. Monthly Procurement Report
(page 45, line 14 through page 46, line 22)
X. Correction and Approval of Minutes
(page 46, line 23 through page 47, line 15)
XI. Consideration and Action Regarding Whether to Open Closed Session Minutes From September
11,2018, June 11, 2019, and October &, 2019
(page 47,line 16 through page 50, line 10)
XII.  Other Business
(page 55, lines 11 through 14)
XIII.  Adjournment
(page 55, line 15 through page 56, line 21)

The Minutes of the regular meeting of the Authority are further supplemented by a summary of the
respective meeting’s voting record prepared by Authority staff (the “Voting Record”), which is also
enclosed.

Please contact an Assistant Secretary to report any substantive edits to the enclosures.

Respectfully submitted,

/s/ Michael Moss
Associate General Counsel

Enclosures: 1. Minutes of the December 10, 2019 Regular Meeting
2. Voting Record of the December 10, 2019 Regular Meeting

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 132



“paeog 8yl 03 A0SIAPY

1eba7 pue Jasuno) Jeasud “yY3gam H13avzIT3a “SW
UOIIeJISIUIWPY pue ddueuld Jo Jasbeuel “YANVYO YNIWIX ~SW
JUBWAAND0Ad “AVMOTIOH 91VHD ~dIN

JUSPISAUd 9DIA SAIINDAXT “NOLANVHd HOIY ~dW

JuSapISadd 92IA “YIHOLITH avyd "uW

10309410 9AIINISXT “YILSIIN ~d YFHAOLSIYHO ~uW

SY3IANIN 44VLS ALIHOHLNY JONVNI4 SIONITTI

ve

€e

(44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

et

11

ot

LIHOTIM A3d443c

90U8484U0D oIpne BIA “YIIXIM TVANVY
S100WS Hl389

NITH9.0 3FONVHY3L

9JU8.48jU0d oIpne eIA “139YNYIE0 IDY0I9
VAVN 3NNVYXO0d

82U8494U0D oIpne BIA “A0D9N JIAT
XONX Ad4d31

MIDVENC AN THY

14390H AVITTIM

Z1309 3MIN

S3ININd "C S3INVC

"N

=Ll

“SW

“dn

Rl

“SW

Rl

Rl

“SW

=1\l

“dn

TN

OY3gY3IANY O1d3 NVWHIVHO

=S30NVYVY3IddY

“stourp1 ‘ofeoryy “000T-S 931NS

“19941S 9 1eseT YIIoN 09T e “9@o130u 03 uensand

“wTe 0€:6 40 4Anoy 8yl e ‘6TOZ ‘0T A8quadeq

uo A3rJaoyiny aosueuld siouljll 8yl Jo Burlasp

Jegnbay oyl 3e pey SONICIZFOONd 40 LHOd3Y

‘wre 0€:6 3 ‘610 ‘0T J49queded
SY3aNIN IHL 40 ONILIIN dvINO3Y

ALTHOHLNY 3ONVNId4 SIONITTI

9¢

14

ve

€e

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 133



“panoW 0S  IXONM

JA3r1aoyiny aylx jo sarorjod pue smejAq ayl

03 juensand sisanbaua asayl anoadde 03 uorjow
' 249yl SI A0 19Y3GYIANY HIVHO

-uonldaoxa Arrprgesip Jo

ssaupl jeuosaad a8yl ulylIm S|je} ajeuolied
S.91A7 ‘Wwarjuod 031 ISNC  ¥IHOLITH

“sJaa)3euw ssaulsng

03 anp 92US349JU0D OIpne BIA pualle o} ai|
pInom | -aapxam Apuey SI SIYL yIIXIM

-sasodund

JuawAojdwa 031 anp 8oUS43JUOD Olpne

2yl puaile o3 bBurysanbaa w,| -pabeuasqo
9bu099 S1 SIYL “SeA  :139VYNYIF0

“anssi1 jeoipaw jeuosaad e 03

anp 22Ua.49juod olpne eIA pualle o) Burysanbau
osje w,l ~A0JdW ®1AT7 SI SIYL ZAQD9W

“90U8194U0D

olpne BIA puajlle 031 a1] pInom saaquaw Aue

41 >se 01 &I p.l 8wil SIyl Iy

“paINIIISUOD Uda(

sey wooa ayy ul juasauad AppeosrsAyd sasquaw
JO wniaonb e ‘uewarey) “AN  YIHOLI 4

T9J49H  1OYAGYIANY dIVHO

ve

€ec

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

“uewareyy AN Ty3IHOLIH
T949H  IL1H9IUM
“IYBEAM CAN T¥IHOLFTA
"S9®A  S1OOWS
“sjoows “SW tY3IHOL3H
“SJ48H IN3IY¥4d.0
Tuarag.0 CJAN SH3IHOL13T4
“SSA  ZXONM
TXOuy TAN TY3IHOLIA
T9J8H  SHMIoVAENC
“y@deanc "SW IY3HOL3 T4
"948H  I1Y390H
"3A9QOH TJAN  IY3HOL3TH
“9J489H 71309
©Z3909 "IN 1Y3HOL3TH
“®J8H  IS3LIN3INS
“sajuang “Jap
“3sa1) juasaad AppeosrsAyd
saequaw JO JJO4 8yl f1ed 1.1 "w'e g6

S1 awiy ayy A

©}493) 1Y3IHOL3H

“1104 ay1 ped asesapd
A1e3a429s JUeISISSY ay3 J1IM
~49p4o 03 Burlasw syl |ped 01 1|

P.1  -Buruiow poo9 :9YIGYIANY HIVHO

ve

€e

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 134



"pa] weal JAno Jo Juaydlajd pedg eyl Buisopo
puoq ABuasuz uea]) passassy Ardadoad siournfjl
3SJ41) 9yl uo a3Ang puog S,.Aepuop Woay
ao13Jae ue aney am ‘sdijo JanoA uj
“aeak ajgeddewaa e pey sey
A31Joyany ayl 0309410 9AIINISXT By} WOAS
afessaw 8yl ul ylaoj 39S Se “IsulH
“901IA49S ANOA 103 A3pdoyiny ayl Jo saaquaw
8yl 11® dueyl pue yjuow Jsej JeAldte mau
SIY UO 2143 a3epnjeabuod o3 ai] p.1 “ureby
“uewareyd “AN ‘noA ueyl  yILSIIN
“191S19|)| 40399110 9AI3IND9X]
“3eyl yamm asyjoq
1.UpIp | "811 ou ylIm ‘eej] sem | Aym s.1eyl
pue ‘Burudow sIyl uorisneyxa jejruaied pey
1 puy -3eauab Burobh aae sbBuiyl pue yauow 1isej
passiuw | -“A3raoylany ayl dueyil | “saewad
uewareyy "8UON I943gHIANY dIVHO
(-asuodsaua oN)
¢Buruaouw
SIY3} sJaquaw 8yl 404 Juswwod orjgnd Aue auayl
S1 "3 8Aey sake 8yl :943EHIANY dIVHO

(-asuodsaua oN)

¢pasoddo  1943IgYIANY ¥IVHO

ve

€ec

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

(~sake j0 snaoy)d)
¢(A0AR) UL 9SOyl |1V
“PpuUOdSS pue UOIION  943gYIANY dIVHO
TPUOddS  IMIOVINC
“panow 0S 171309
Juollow e yons auayy s|  -epuabe
oyl oanouadde 03 uorjouw e 3sanbaa 031 ai|
p.1 ‘suou BuraesH :9Y3EYIANY HIVHO
(-asuodsaa oN)
Jepuabe s, Aepol 03 SUOIIOSUAU0D
10 S1Ipa ‘suollippe Aue ajeuw 03} ysim auoAue
S$80Q “nOA ueyl :943EYIANV dIVHO
“pped o4 wniaonb peryaul
9yl 01 pappe uaaq aney Japxap pue jabeudadqo
‘A0DON SJoquap “uewdreyd “AN  TYIHOLITA
“11 aney sake
8yl “suou BuraesH :19YIEGYIANY dIVHO
(-asuodsaa oN)
¢pasoddo  19y¥IGYIANY HIVHO
(~sake j0 snaoy)d)
¢A0NR) Ul 3soyl |1V
“puooes
pue uorjow e aAey S\ 1943gY3IANY dIVHO

“puodss 171309

ve

€e

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 135



J93e) ueald a8yl 6T0Z Ul JaljJel -anssi
puoq usauab 3sa1y s,93el1s ayl Buruorjusaw 3snl
“Axewwns ur ‘osjpe isnl uayl puy
“3eyl jnoge palldxa AUSA a4,9Mm OS
“19M0J140Q 8yl 03 ajgejlieAe 11jauag JO junowe
wunwixew syl aq JEIM 848yl eyl os SISod
aAIlealSIUIWPE pue S31S09 Bulsojd Jo junowe
9yl 9onpaJ pue moJadeu 03 SI YdIym JOo wie ayl
“sjusawnoop piaepuels Burdopansp uo sueak Jjo
21dnoo 3se] ayl 4ol Apssajaail Burjaom usayl
pue “Ajquassy jeasauss ayy oy sdiay omy ‘qofl
Jeaub e auop sey Jsaydlajd pedg
“ueoj e u10) A314ndas
ayy se 31 Buryojew Ajpesiseq pue “usai] xel
A3aadoad sy “3deduod A31aN23S UMOUN -] |aMm ®
Jo afejuenpe Buidel aae am Jeyl SsiI paeog siyl
AQ pue Jaouaano9 syl pue Ajquassy Jedausd syl
Aq peziuaoyine pue pajnoaxs pue padojansp useq
sey 11 eyl Aem ayy Ajdwis si 1|
"S3IpaJd
xex orpgnd jo 3a0s Aue ‘spung orjgnd jo 1do0s
Aue “aajueaenb orpgnd jo 3a0s Aue “uorydwaxs
Xxel JOo 340S Aue auainbaa jou saop 11

1Byl S1 30vd 40 AIneaq syl ‘ureby

ve

€ec

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

-3o0afoad
SIU3 Y3 IM UoI3O8uUUoD ul sBulnes aajem
pue sbuines ABaaua ayy ur HBuryedioryaed usaq
aney J18yolaj4 pedg pue Aax3onis qooer jeyl
Maom Aousbe-aauul 8yl JO BWOS YIM JUSISISUOD
Ajauelraodwr Muryy | pue spaaosoad jo asn
ayy “3o09fouad ayly “wasl syl “a3ed 3saialul ayl
‘uorppiw TZ a9n0 isnfl “junowe ayy “3oafoad
077 49umo 19310y dOY 8yl Jo Aaewwns abed-suo
901U AJBA B SI 9ABRY 8M Jeym “Xooq pJaeog
ANOA Ul (el jusawalels Asewwns jerdueuly AnoA
0] UJN3} O3 SUOAIBAS XSE pPInod | 41
“9plese] yanos goZ e SJ00L enly
dol ayx si1 uorzeoo] 1o0afoad syl
“sJamo.d0og 3dwaxa Xel JINPuod jeuoiipedy
ANno puoAaq sJaamodudoq jerluslod jo adAy pue
Jaqunu 8yl spuedxa Ajpeoryeuwedp 1|
“v0. Ul >oeq
UOI3EepPIJOSUOD “pPajeald Sem 31 9dUIS Ulyl
1 uodn palnoaxa AJngssadons sey Arraoyiny
a2yl 3eyl 3onpouad mau 3ISAiy dyl SI SIy}
puy -Bumew ayl ur saeak asayly 4o Bunjew
8yl ul sJeak QT J9yiria sem 31 “BurIuUNOD

94,.9M moy uo Burpuadep -- sem siyl

ve

€e

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 136



0T

49A0 UO pajealuadsuod an.am eyl sburyly aolew
a2yl JO duo ‘paemaoy Burnow uayl
“3Ipne jeroueuly ayy ur sbulpulj piepuels
furaunoooe jusawuianoh Aue aney jou op
am 3ng “Burjurad pue mou ussmiaq abueyd ppnod
sbBuryy urod syl e pue “3oejq a8yl ul 8T0T
AeaA Jedsiy ysiungy ppIm am 3ng -- 3o1paad
03 jueloNngaa w,| ‘paysod pue paysignd
S.31 J1jun ‘urebe ‘pue -- jurod siyl e
1] s3oo] 11 “‘Aeme axe1r Bi1q syl
"8901440
S, Jeaauab aoxipne ayx Aq pasesjad ag JlIm
JIpne erdueuly Jeuly ayl 40 —- SAESI34 |IM
oM s)2am Jo 9jdnod Ixau ayl uryrim Apgeqodd
“Speroueuly 3Jeap PaAISddd dA, M
“3Ipne jerdoueury
S, Jeasuab aoripne aylx jo HBay 3sel ayl ul
94,.9M ING ‘940390 I PIeS aAey am eyl mouy
| “Speroueury 03} 3209dsaa ylim puy
-340daa
JerdouBUL) S,XIS UI Pa3103j4ad S,31Byl pue
“pasod aney asoyl -“sAep Q09 03 Gy ISe] dYl
43A0 Ul BWOD ‘ud}el| uedlJdWy pue juswabeue)

a1sep) “saamodadoq juelaodwr Aaon “abae)

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

AJ1dnA oml pey am 3ng “puewsp ybry ur usaq
Jou aney eade anbrun SIYY Ul SIS S.yony
“0S U0 9pedsp 1SE] 8yl JSA0 JUSWUOA IAUD
91ed 1Saudalul ayl uanib “Ajpes
“yony
oney 01 Addey aua,om pue “01.1910SS IRYMBWOS
SI Me] Xel 3INpuod J10j UDA® eyl eade ue
s1 s1yl -ded awnjon jeaspas Aq paxoeq spuoq
Jdwexa xe3l 3INpuod anssi eyl suoiljeaodaod
o3enrad uo 3aadxs paziuboosa-Ajjeuorieu
e s,9H -uoldwead yory azirubodau
01 1] pynom | ‘urebe “puy
“ueabouad pung BurAjonsy 831el1S
BurlsiIxe s,vd3l 8yl uo ainssauad jeroueury
saonpaJd 31 eyl st weaboad vidim aydr
30 abejuenpe Buidel saamoadoq pund BuiAjonay
a1el1s Burlsixa Jo Ayneaq ayl
“1SsaJ4a3ul passaadxa
osje an,Aayl -obeoryd Jo A31D 8yl yiim
Aepol Burleaw ag o3 Burob aua,.aMm
“38110C 40 A310 8yl ‘vidim a0y Ajdde o3
Juawuaanoh pesol stounppl abaep e Buipensaad
ur ajod Asx e pakejd “31auuog esi] “anbeajjod

Ano “‘pun4 BuiAjoAsy 931BIS/9AITRILIU|

ve

€e

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 137



et

s,.Aepol uo swall ssauisng mau Buimop ol
ayl jenouadde uoj puswwodaa 03} Apsnowrueun
pa1oA pue Buruaow syl Ja1jies 8w
9933 1WWOYH doUeUl4 3INPUO) dYL :SIININA
"sejuand “uay -sjdodad 99331WWOD O uan}
am MON ~noA dueyl :9¥IGYIANY ¥IVHO
“NoA ueyl
“WTe €16 3e panldde sey pue wniaonb
9yl 01 peppe usaq Sey eAeN Jaquap 3091494
pJ10934 3yl 3] 98sedld Y3HOL3Td
TSIAYD “noA dueyl  19y3gY3IANY dIVHO
“wasyl jJo jre
Inoyim paysijdwodde ag Jou ppnod siyl -weal
J3Jel1s ayl Jaoj fnioazeab w,] “‘ureby
"saryiuniioddo orwouoda awos dn anlb
OS|e noA sme] SOIYl® 8yl Japun pue “swil AnoA
dn an1b nopA -A3raoyiny ayl JO siaaquaw ayl
11e 01 [njojeab w,| pue ‘syjuow gT JnIsSSe20ns
Aaan e udaq s,31 “‘urebe ‘puy
"SIyl uo Burnow oa,.8m
aJ1aym uo sniels e Buipinoad aq pIm Aaxonl1s
qooer 40398417 9A13IN2ax3 A3ndag 31ng “jjogni
UelS pue IXSMOMUue) Uedes “‘aueusT ejaued UOOS

“38uuog esi] “‘Aepol ao3e] 340daa aAryisod

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

1T

Aaan e 1006 sey oym “poomiy 1119
"310BUIU0) S9DIAISS JBUOSIAdd
|yl SI Me] 93elS Japun S eyl pasn aA.em eyl
SJ00Y 98Uyl JO dUO OS “93elS N0 JO AJISASAIP
8yl s109]1494 Jeyl Jasuuew anr1xdalqo pue

A1e) © Ul |Je 3Byl auop aney o
“J0oMaWel) UOISS9DINS paysijgelss ue
pue A3raoyzny ayl ul asiaadxa pue SIS mau
‘syzed uoeaed ysijgeirss “JI{s ul Aouepunpad
aansua 03 uejd e 03 Bulp.aodde 31 BUOP BN, S\
“spediourad uewseysyzueiny syl yiim JualSISUOD

SIYyl auop aney am ‘urebe “puy
-JaaquanoN Jo Buruuibaqg
ayl e uebaq eyl wjodjep pue uebo “eurages
uoysia) “anoj Jo 3a0Yod 3yl udyl pue
“AemopjoH Brea) “Aoxonis qooer “3aeApN sajaey)
0S|y ~aueuaT ejaued Joj Buroueury aiedyijesy

JOo ajjuew ayy dn paxord sey oym Bnaad

eJes Buipnpoul ‘syjuow T 3ISe] a9yl AdA0
soaAojdwa mau ybia pappe aney am

-uoryisodouad

anpen JasAojdwayszaakojdws ayeradoadde

ue aAey am jeyl ains Buidew Jadaew

JuawAojdwa 3ybIy © Ul SI Syjuow ZT ISe] a8yl

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 138



1

"yzoq a0 siseq ajgexel 4o jduexs xel e
49U} UO S31J49S dJ0W J0 dUO Ul panssi aq Aeuw
spuog 8yl -“uoljjlw GT$ P99IX9-03-30U Junowe
ue ul AJISISAIUN F|OASS00Y 10} UOIIN]OS3IA
puoq Aaeurwnjaad e 3o penoadde siysanbaua jjeis
-1sanbaa puoq anuanaia (€) (O€0)T0G e SI T wal]
“A3ISUBAIUN 1]9ASS00Y “T wWaxl
“ulaJdayl paureluod
junoue pe9dXxa-03-30U 9Yl Ul UOIINJOSaJ 8yl Jo
Ajuo jenoadde Buraspisuod ade saaquaw ayl “g
‘b ‘e ‘2 ‘T swaly Bumpnpour “epusbe s, Aepol
uo pajuasaad wall SsSaulsng Mau JINPUOD
yoea J0J Jeyl 930U 03 I ppnom | auil siyy
Iy Cuewareyd AN “noA Mueyl INOLAAVYH
~epuabe
JUSSUOD B J8pun “OT ‘6 “8 swal] pue 9 ybnoayl
T SwWal| A3PISUOD JIIM M 3SAl4 ~Ajajeaedss
TT pue / “ON 49pISuod |l.oMm
TIN
‘nok dueyr -~Aed0  :943IGYIANY HIVHO
“uorjoesuedy SIYl ul JOSIApe Jeldueul}
|8yl 404 SMJom oym Jaaqueuw Ajrwel e aney
] @snedaq SWall SSauIsSNg MaU dyl} uo “ade)d

UlJesH 93e00ApY “/ -“ON Wwal| 03 308dsad yiim

ve

€e

[44

1

(014

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

BuI3OA pue suolleaaqijap Woay JI9SAW asndad
03 &{I] pInom | ‘uewareyd :z1309
-A193eaedas a9pIsu0D
03 91| pInom Jaquaw e eyl swall ssaulsng
Mau O1}10ads Aue aJde aaayl Ssajun wall
JenpIAIpul aAl1loadsaa yoea 031 paljdde ajon
papao2aa jusnbasgns a8yl aAey ol pue “TT wal]
104 3dooxa “‘AJaA13109] 02 Swall ssaulsng
MaU 9yl 49pISuU0d 01 Sudaquauw 8yl JO JUISU0D
Jeaauab uoj dse o3 1| pInom |
“epuabe s,Aepol uo TT Wa] SsSaulsng mau
“passnosIp aq JIIM YdIym ‘140309410 dAIIND9XT
9yl 40 juaulzurodde passnosip pue HBuruaouw
SIY} JA91]Jes 313w OS|e 99131WW0) SA1INI3aXT
8yl "noA sueyr :9Y3IEYIANY YIVHO
“juslul jo
uorlnjosaa ded awWNJoA e pue ‘-ouj “8dUeaddasoy
104 UOIINJOSAA “MIAOMISON ©4e) U esH
93e20ApY 10} UOIINJOSaL “abajo) 3Isanyull
10J uoIlnjosay “Ajuno) abedng ‘66 JAaqunn
301431S1Q Jooyds ybBiH A3runuwwo) “Auaagsjp3
sejoyoiN enysor Jaawael Buruuibaq “daad
aba 10D aweq 9430N “493ud) JedIpajy obeoary)n

30 A1ISJ9AIUN BYL “ALISABAIUN 1]9A8S00Y :epusbe

€T

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 139



9T

“AWI3 Yons e UuolIeaapISuod AnoAk
104 3ao0daa pajepdn ue juasauad ppim jjeis v4i
“uoIINJOSal puoq Jeuly Y41 8yl epnjoul Im
UoIym SIUSWND0P puog Se |Jam Se “sjusawndop
Juawaoepd pue Buryramaspun jpe jo Burlrjeap
9191dwoo pue ajerjrul jpim sijuedioryaed
uo13OBSURA) puB JBSUNOD ‘U3 1amiapun
ue S309]9S 1]9NIS00Y A3}V
“119n8so00y Aq
paJandul 8q 0} SSaupalgapul papuoq jeuoilippe
03 JU8su0d 03 A3Ijige 8yl Sey MOJJOH uolSald
‘an1yejuasaadaa aaumo puoq 8yl sy
~sbuipjoy a3else
Jea4 S,.1]19A9S00y uo sabebraow Ag paandas aue
Jeyl spuoq V6TOZ pue d8T0Z “V8TOZ SalJes
v41 Buipuelsino s,3119A8S00Y U0 dAlIYeIUSSaAdaU
J2UMO puoq 8yl SI YoIym ‘sexal “sejled
40 ‘277 “jearded MOJJOH UO1SaUd Se paljiluspl
uaag sey Jaseyoand jeryrul ayl
-Aaessadau aq |IM suoi1ldaoxs
Aorjod ou snyl ‘spuog pajeduou Jo ajes ayl
Burpaebaa sjuswaainbaa Moogpuey puog v41 1l1e
AJs1yes ppnom ajes Jo poylaw siyl

“€E6T JO 10V Sal1lundas syl

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

ST

Japun pauijep SI yoe3g -sa9Ang jeuoilnliisul

paijgipenb uo si0lsanul palipaddde

03 000°00T$ 40 SuOIJeUIWOUdP WNWIUIW Ul PJOS

pue paosejd AjareArad pue ualjramispun ag 03
pajoadxa ade spuoq 8yl jussaad 3y

-1931jeaJayl Jo

020z Aaenaga4 ul palodadxa si yorym Buioueury

8yl JO 24n3onJ3s Jeury ayy bBui

19319p
pue aaxramaspun ue Buibebus aslje paeog v4l
9Ul 01 uJNn3aua 03 S30adxad 1 |9A9S00Y

“spuoq Y41 9yl 30 spssdodd ylim pasueunyad

ag 01 9| 12 9 JIIM SJ9Ul0 UIELIdD YlIMm
Buoge “6T0Z “UITT 4290320 Buruuibag paaandoul

uorlnjosad puoq Aseurwiaad y41 BurAuedwoooe

ayy Jo adods ayj ul paurgap saaniyipuadxa
paxejaa-31o0afoad e Ajbuipaoooy

“9p0o) anuanay

Jeudalul 8yl Aq pezidoylne se “yiTT 8yl 49qold0

‘Aepri4 ag ppnom jeyl -a3ep s,.Aepol

woay sAep 09 03 dn oeq Burob saanyipuadxs

pajejaa-30afoad adoueurjad 03 3|dA3S00Y

apqeus 03 Buroueur} si1yl 4o} A3

1°
JuBWaSANQUISA YSI]Qqe1sa 03 SI UOIINJosald puoq

Adeurwigaad siyy jo asodand ayl

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 140



8T

ur plos ag [IIM pue pajeauou ag |jIMm
Spuoq 0z0zZ So143S 8yl -9aouenssi Jo s3s0d Aed
0} pue Jaamoadoq ayl Jo jJjeysaq uo A3ISaanrun
ayxr Aq panssi Apsnoinaid spuoq g600Z So148S
Burpuelsino ayl Jo uorlyaod € 40 |le puniad

03 pasn aq |1Im spaadouad puog
“uorIW 0S$ Pe9IXe-03-30U Junowe
ue ul Jaa3ua) Jedipajy ofesry)y Jo A3Isiaanlun
8yl J0J UOIINJOSd puoq Jeul) auwil-auo
e Jo Jenouadde sisenboa jjeis -isanbau

puoq anuanaa () (O€2)T0OS © SI Z well
“193ua) JedIpap obedry)y Jo ALISASAIUN BYL

‘2 Wa3l “IXSN U0 BUIAON  INOLdAVYL
(-asuodsaa oN)

£SIUBWWOD 40 suolysanb Aue aney Jaaquaul
Aue saop “1SJa1) 3INg “493e] SIUBWWOD U483J0
11Im Aayl -juswabeuep perrde) erqunjod yiim
S.9H "A3ISJ8AlUN By} 01 JOSIApPe Jeldueuly Si
oym “93IUM JJOC Se [I8am Se “auay A3Isianiun
119A9S00Y JO 1921}30 Jeldueuly Jalyd

9yl “SIJAJBeH MaJpuy "Jaj aAey 3|
“A31SJdAIUN Yyoea JOo spaeoq Buruaanob
an130adsaa pue uoryeonp3 4aybiH Jo paeog

SiIoulll 8yl woay jpenoadde aarnbaa ospe jpIm

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

yorym asbaaw a8yl JO UOIFEUSPISUOD SII J0J

uorssiwwo) Buruies asybiH 8yl o1 pairwgns

usag sey uonledrjdde uy -6TOZ “Z 4990100

uo paosunouue Ajjedrjgnd sem aabasw SEIAAON
34970y 9Nas00y pasodouad ayl

“pem

Se asoyl 3e pasn ag Aew sauanlyipuadxa 3oafoad

“SuO13ed0] XIS Sey SIHI0j 343qoy Ajjerriu]

-3a0daa siyy jJo 1T abed uo dew ayl ur pslou
aJe yoIym Jo suolyedo] ayl ‘sndwed HBanquneyos
S31 pue sndwed obedry) umolumop s,A3ISABAIUN
9yl 1e paljedo] aJe padueuly pue padsueuljad

9q 01 Sa131]1de) Jeuolledonps ayl
"S3S02 92UeNsSSI puoq
BurAed Ajperyuazod “saayy ‘pue ‘suweuaboad pue
JJels Burjeoojad pue “sallijloe) paumo Jdos/pue
pasea] .SIJAJ0) 31900y pue S,3]9A3S00Y 03
sjuawanoadwr Burew “juawdinba pue aanyruang
“saanixiy Burainboe jo s3so0o ayl jJo JusawAed
104 A3ISa8A1UN Byl asanquiaa a0 Aed ‘omy
‘stour il A3ISA9AIUN SEAJAO) 31970y JO SIISSe
urel4ad Burainboe jo 31s0d ayy Jo JuswAed
103 A31SuaaArun ayl asanquiad 4o Aed “auo

‘03 pasn aq |pIm spaadoad puog

LT

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 141



(014

furddinba pue Hurlonalsuod pue sbBurpping
Burysixa Burddinba pue Buraredaa “Buraayje
JO S3S0D ulelaad Aed 03 48pao ul 301A3SIP
aylx Ag panssi spuoq jooyds uorjebijgo pjeiaush
aseyoand o3 pasn aq JlIm spasdoad puoq V0z0Z
S9119S "Sa143S OM} Ul panssi ag |JIM spuoq

2yl “‘parejdwsluod Ajaussaad sy
"000°056°S.$
paedoxa 03 Jou Junowe ue ul “‘Ajuno) abedng
‘66 “ON 10141s1Q Jooyds ybBiH A1runwwod Aoy
uolINjoSal puoq jeulj awil-auo e Jo jenoddde
sysanbaa jje3s -1sanbad puoq anuanad
Juawuasnob jeocol e S1 G wall "sEouljpl
‘A3uno) abedng ‘66 "ON 39143SIQ 100YIS

ubIH A3runuwo) ‘g well  INOLdWVYH
(-asuodsaa oN)

¢S3UBWWoD U0

suoilsanb Aue aney Jaquaw Aue sa0(Q
“uorjoesueal 3INpuod syl 4oj dueq Burseyound

8yl s1 yN “>ueg JoqybiranN IsaiH
"0SZ“/6$ 40 Junowe pPaddxa-03-30uU 3yl Ul
A3uno) aebp3 ul pajedo] puejuael Jo sadoe .z
Burseyound si1 oym Aiaaaqs|3 sejoyoiN enysor

104 puoq Jswdael Buruuibaq e a0y penoadde

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

Burysanbaa uorlINjoSaa puog jeuly Bwil-auo
e S1 { Wa3l ~Auadgs|3 SeJoydIN enysor ‘puod
aawaey Buruuibag ‘v wall  INOLAWvYH
(-asuodsaua oN)
£S3UBWWoD U0
suoilsanb Aue aney Jaquaw Aue ss0(Q
“uorjloesuedl 1INPuUoOd SIYY J04 Mueq
Burseyound ayl si >dueg ISNAIUIMN
~aouenssi
J0 s3s00 Aed 031 pue Jamoduaoq ayl Jo Jjeysq
uo Ayraoyany ayly Aq panssi Apsnoinaad spuoq
6002 S@143s Buipuelsino ayl Jo |Je punjad
03} pasn aq J1Im spaadoud puog

“uo

w /$
pasoxa-03-30u Junowe ue ul dauad abajjo)
aweg 9J430N 404 UOIINJOSdA puoq Jeull auil-auo
e Jo Jenoadde sysenbaa jjeirs -3senbau
puog anuanaa (£)(O)T0S © s1 ¢ wayl -~dauad
aba 0D aweq 84310N ‘€ wall NOLdWVHH
(-asuodsaa oN)

£S3IUBWWOD U0

suoilsanb Aue aney Jaquaw Aue sao0(Q
“sjuawaainbaa

soogpuey puoq 41 BuilIsSIxXa ylim sduepaodde

6T

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 142



[44

“3ybra s.3eyr 171309
“Burprenaad 31seaj 1y IVAVN
-- 3ngq ‘aq
11Im A8yl eyl aajuedenb 3, ussop eyl -abem
Burprenaad Aed 03 aney Asyl :z1309
-abem Burprensaad sae asoyl eyl
uonyeloadxs Aw aq JIIM 31 Y¥3IHOLITH
¢sqofl uorun asoyy
o4y -sqofl uo13ona3suod Qgg s.a48yl ad13jou
1 -uorlsanb >oinb ® aney | :VAVN
£S3UBWWod U0
suorlsanb Aue aney aaquaw Aue saoq
“spuoq 0z0z se14as a8yl o1 Buijyea
awes ayy ubisse pue Burled yy s3I wargje jrim
d®S 8yl eyl sioadxa 30143S1Q dYL
“d®S woual vy Jo Buryea igep
wa93-Buoy S,30143S1Q dYL UO paseq Sa3eldossy
® sawer puowAey Ag paiajjo Ajjpedrjgnd
aq J1IM pue a3ed 3Sau93ul paxi} e Jeaq o1
paloadxa aue spuoq 0z0z So149S 8yl
suepd A3r1j10€4 U931Sew ayl Jo uolldod e

pung 031 6TOZ 4O BUNC UK SPUOQ JO UOKIIIW 67 TS

panssi Ajsnoinaad Axjraoyiny ayl

“100ydS YBIH yINos dA049

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

sJaaumog pue Jooyds YBIH YIION 9A0J9 Ssaaumog
40y uepd A3rjroey Jsisew uorjpIW 9°9ET$
S$.310113S170 9yl JO uoljaod jeurj ayl adueuly
11IM uor3ldesuedy siyl AJan13oagjod
-sasodand A314Nn29S JOOYIS pue UOIFIBAISISUOD
ABasus “A3ajes pue uorjuanaiad aairy a0
ura4ayly usawdinba jpeasur pue aseyoand ol pue

Juawdinba paxijy pue juauewaad pue sbui

1ng
JO0YDS 3ONJISUODSA pue ad3|e 03 pasn

aq 111M spasoouad puoq gozoz So149S
-39V w049y 1G3d S1oulf|l
Byl pue meT] UOIIEIIWET uoISualx3 xel A3aadoad
stourgp| 8yl o3 juensund 000“G8E$ 4O Junouwe

ayewixoadde syl ur spuoq xel pal se

pansst g |1IM sSpuoq g0cog Saldss
-saoeds
Buruaea] Jaoopul aseaudul 03} spaeAlanod
J00p3no ayl 4o 3aed e uo e Buisopous
pue ‘swooasseld |je ul BuruoryIpuod Jre
furppeasur ‘sqgej pue swooasse]d Buijenouau
“30y sarlijigesig Ylim suedorasuy ayl

aapun Ax1 ssaooe HBuiseadour “sjusawanoadwi

A314an2as Burlonalsuod Ag Buipnjoul

S84N30NUYS PISO|OUS pue S3a11I|19e) U00PINO

T

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 143



ve

paxsanbaa usaq sey 11 ‘spuoq 8yl Bururelau
s)ueq 8yl 03 UOIFIPUOD B SY
“spuog syl plroy
03 Burnuijuod sMueq ayl yiyim spuog ayl Jo
A31anyew ayl o3 poraad ajea Xapul a8yl pualIxs
03 peaabe aney spuoq gTOZ Sa148S 8yl Buipjoy
A13Usa4nd sMueq 8yl pue Jaamouiog
“4ogl1 Se umoud 3SIMABYIO0
“91ey paJdajj0 Muegaalu] uUOpuoT 8yl uo paseq
S1 93ed xapul ayl aiaaym poriad ajea xapul
ue ul aJe spuoq zTOZ S91J48S 9yl
“Oul “8doueudasoy JO }1jausq
ayy 104 A3raoyany ayyr Aq panssi Ajsnoinaad
spuoq gzT0Z S@149S pue yZI0zZ S9149S ayl o1
furyegaa uornjosal © S1 8 WA ~Spuog 9zZT0OZ
S91U48S pue YZT0OZ S91J43S “-dU] “92Ueuadasoy 03}
furyegas uorInjosal ‘g WAl NOLAWVYL
“3084400 s.3eyl ¥3HOL3TH
“a9yo3al4 “JN ‘awil 3se] eyl a6 o3
Maom 03 Aa3 03 Burob aaam noA  INI1Y9.0
“noA ueyl -pajou AIng 1¥3IHOLI4
“Aym pueisaspun 3,uop | -3sed ayl
ur asayl paisanbaa aney | -urebe sjuswalels

jeroueuly ou si uorysanb AN :N31Y¥9.0

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

£SUBWWoD U0
suo1lsanb Aue aney uaquaw Aue saoq
-Aaessadau aq
Jou ppIm Burdeay vy-43l MoU B Jeyl paulwialap
sey |asunod puoq ‘pasodoad sy
-a3ep
A31anjew jeury syl o3 saeak Xis Apayewixoadde
uonyeaodiao) abebriao) vAgd Yy im wasl jeriiul
8yl puslxa pue puoq 9T0Z S9118S 8yl uo
auJog 93ed 1S9U93Ul 9AI1309)39 9yl 9Seaddsp 03
48m0410q 8yl 9jQeus JpIM uollNjosald Siyl Jo
uorydopy -uorjeaodiao) abebraop vAagg Ag play
Aj3usaand si puoq 9T0Z S9149S a8yl
“abaj 10D ISAnyuwl3 JO Jjeyaq uo
A31aoyany ayy Aq panssi Ajsnoinaad spuoq 9T0Z
S9118S 9yl UO BuJdoq eNUJIO0} 93ed 3Sadalul
a8yl ur abueyd e 83enlds8jje 03 SIUSBWNI0P
palejad pue jusweeuabe ueo] pue puog 03
Juawpuawe 3SAiy e JO AIDAIL3P pue UOIINIIXd

bu

40oyane uoIINjosad e S1 9 Wway|
~afap 10D 3ISAnywi3 40} Juswaa4be
ueo] pue puog 03 Jusawpusawe Bulziaoyine
UOIINJOS34 © SI 9 W3] ~SUOIRN|OSdU

03 IX3dU U0 BUINOW  INOLAWVYH

€c

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 144



9¢

oM -"dpay 404 payse aney Aayl 0S “310eAIUO0D
S901AI9S Jeuosdad e uapun Ajuaiand si pue
Asuouw Jeuaspaj si1yl aoj parjdde oym suo syl
sem “30e43U0d S3DIAISS Jeuosdad e aspun Si
oym “jjoqgn uels “anbeajjod ano
“uorpiw
08% 03 09% 3Inoge Jo aunl} a8yl 03 Spuny Aanseauy
"S°N BJd SNINWIYS dWos ul pajeulbiio yorym
weaboad ueoy uorjzedrdonjyaed arayl yymm diay
4104 sn 03 3INO payoeau sey 0300
“030d se umouy ospe “Ayjrunjaoddp Sr1wouod3 pue
9o48uWwo) Jo juswiaedsg 8yl yIm SUOISSNOSIP
pue suorjeirjobau Buiziaoylne uorInjosad
8yl s1 QT wal] epudby :¥ILSIIN
(-asuodsaua oN)
£SIUBWWOD U0
suonlsanb Aue aney uaquaw Aue saoq
*020z 4eak

Jepusajed 403 uorjjiw 0ZT$ SI uorynjosaud BurAuedwoooe

2yl 031 juensuand junowe 3sanbaa uoileodojje
deo awnjoA jeryrul s A3raoyiny ayl

“Jaeak aepuajed

Burwoodn syl Jo soueApe ul Jaquadag Yyoea

s309foad puog 8nusAad JerJa3snpul pue puoq

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

Jawaey Buruuibag pung o3 adpao ur ded awnjoa
A31A110€ 93earuad aoj 318b6png pue juswabeueuw
JO 9901JJ0 S,.J40UJdA09H By} 03 AJjenuue

1sanbaa e syiugns A3raoylny ayl
“Buroueury

puog dwaxa Xxel Jao0) alq 12 s3yoafoad yam

sai1uedwod paumo Ajajentuad 31jausaq 03 panssi

spuoq A31A1310e 93eAlad uaoj paainbaa si yorym
deo awnpon puog A3iA13oe ajearad Buruasduod
JUS3UI JO UOIINJOSaUL B SI G Wad]

“uoil

1W 0ZT$ JO Junowe syl

ur ded awnjon puoq A3IAI1OoR 93enlad 0zoz JAeah
Jepusjed Jo uoljedojje jelliul ue Burysanbau
jualul JOo uoIlNjosal ‘g Well  INOLdNVYS
(-asuodsaua oN)
£SUBWWoD U0
suo1lsanb Aue aney uaquaw Aue saoq
-Burobauaoy
8yl 399JJ48 03 Ssaanjusapul puoq Burlsixs
2yl 031 sjuawajddns Jo AUdAISP pue UOIINISXD
9yl saziJdoyine uoiInjosald siyl
"T20Z 30 pus 8yl Agq 3no psseyd
2q 03 pe1oadxa SI Y¥odIl eyl 1oey 8yl o1

anp papualie o YodIT JO UOILIULLAP BUYl 1Byl

14

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 145



=943g43ANY dIVHO

92U9484U0D OIpNE BIA ADIX3M

20U21484U0D OIpne eIA |abeudaqo AN

92U2434U0D o1pne eIA K0DIN

“3A8QOH TAN tH3IHOL3H
"S9A 171309
©Z31809 AN I¥3IHOL3ITA
"S9A  1S3ILIN3INS
“sajusnd TJAN SY3IHOL3IHA
“1104 2y1 ped asesapd
A1e3a429S JUEISISSY B8y J1IMN
“puUODSS B pue UOIJON -9HIFHIANY dIVHO
“puodss 71309
“panow oS IS3IN3NA
Juorjou e yons auayl si
0T ‘6 “8 ‘9 ‘G ‘v ‘g ‘Z ‘T swel]l :swall
ssauisng mau Buimojjol ayy dope pue ssed ol
uorjow e 3sanbaa 01 31| pynom |
“yory “nok jueyl
“SHAY) “noA ueyl  :9d3EYIANY dIVHO
“suoilsanb Aue axexl 1.1
“S90p UOIRNJOSAU
ayl jeym s,jeylr os ‘ppargburads ur asn
om eyl aoeds awos 403 0304 YIIm Juswasabe
JeluswuIan0B-493Ul UB pey dAeYy am Saeak
JO Jaaqunu e 04 AjJed1aolsiy “‘ospy
-djay ey

30 suaa3aueded 8yl wWayl UM INO MA0M O3 Juem

yx4

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 146



o€

JUOIIOW © YoNs auayl S| "L wall
‘Wa3l ssaulsng mau Buimopjol
ayl 3dope pue ssed 03 uoljow e 3sanbaa 03 1]
pInom 1 "yory noA dueyl :943gYIANY ¥1VHO
“noA dueyl -Ae0 :INOLdWvd
(-asuodsaa oN)
£S3UBWWod U0
suoilsanb Aue aney uaquaw Aue saoq
~Burobauoy syl 308448 01
Aaessadau sjuawnoop Jo AJSAILSP pue uoIINIAXd
9yl sazidoyine uoll}njosald syl
~sosodund Xxe3l J10j panssiod se pajeadl
9Qq 031 Spuog JO S9119S Ylog 40 duo asned
Aew suorldo asayl JO aaow 40 duo “Huriaxaewsu
JO awil a8yl e sioej aylx uo Buipuadap eyl
19SUNOD puoqg Wo4} dDIAPe U0 paseq A3r1aoyiny
8yl pawaojul sey Jaamoaaoq ayl
“3UnoJsIp
410 wniwaid e e spuoq 8yl 3aydewsal Jospue
A3ranyew o3 aorad uorydwspaa jeuorrdo aojg
spuog 8yl [Jed 03 3ybra SII SAIem 03 aplosp
Aew Jaamoaaoq ayy “Ajjpeuorlippy
“poruad ayed 3saialul

wa83-Buoy MBU e 03 SPuUOq YONS JO UOISABAUOD

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

pue Builayiewad ayl asned 03 sioadxs
4amoaa0q 8yl ‘uspual Auojepuew o3 3oafgns
SI Spuoq JO SalJas yoea uay
“A1an110adsad 0zoz “2T Adenaged pue
‘020z “‘¥T Aaenuer uo pus Jeyl sporasd sleu
3soua93ul wasy-6uoy ur aj3euaado Ajausaand spuog
Z2-V800¢ S®8148S pue T-v800Z S8l14a8S 8yl
“MJAOMIBN 9J4e) U3 JesH 931ed0ApY pue uoljedoduao)
S|e311dsoH pue yjljesH 93eJ0ApY JO 1i1jauaq
2yl J04 Axraoyiny ayl Aq panssi Apsnoinaad
Spuoq ¢-v800¢ S®81438S pue T-v¥800¢ S8143S 3yl
03 Buryejaua uorInjosad e s1 /. wayj
spuoq
2-V800Z S9148S pue T-vY800Z S8149S “>JI0MIaN
94e) YiJeaH 93ed0Apy 03 Buijejad uoijnjosad
“) WOY] O3 UO BAOW JJ.9M IXSN :NOLJANVYH
woo4
9yl palixa Ssey z31909 Joquep eyl 3o9j4ad
pJ102a4 8yl 33| 8seald :Y¥3HOLIH
“woou a8yl
JIXd 03 23809 “J| dSe 03 1] pInom | ‘. "oN
way] JO UOIJeIdPISUOD 840499
“noA sjueyr  19Y3EYIANY YIVHO

“Sa144ed UOIION  1Y¥3IHOLI T4

6¢

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 147



[49

ur 2T Qgel O3 udn} 8seald ~"1099p ajgexel yiim
Burpungaua aoueApe ‘gl wal] Uo A33oNIS AW
104 3a0daa snjels ayl J9A0 axel J1Im | “paeog

9yl JO suaquel ‘uewareyd “AN  -Y3ILSIAN
“PT ‘€T “CT swall 03 peaye
anou 03 Burob aue am pue “‘peaye dixs ol Burob
aJae am 3dIJdS Uno ul -- paeog ayl dse 01 ai|

pinom | “noA dueyl :9Y3IGYIANY HIVHO
“WOOJd 8yl 03 pauuaniad sey z3909 Jaquap

Jeyl 1091484 pd0odaa 8yl 197 -HY3HOLIH
“ur oeq

71909 “JN  “NOA dueyl :943EYIANY dIVHO

“Sanaaed UoIloN  1Y¥3HOLI T4

"TS9A  19YI9Y3ANY dIVHO

“uewdareyd TN S¥3IHOLITA

“S9A  ILHOIUM

“IYBIAM CAN TYIHOLTTA

TS9A  THIATIXIM

TASIXSM AN T¥3HOL3TH

"S8A  ISL1OOWS

“sjoows “SN Y¥3IHOLIH

“S9A  :T139VNY3H0

spebeuasqo caN ty¥3HOLIH

"S8A  IN3I1Y4.0

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

1€

.cw_gm.o.hz
s
“eneN s
"s9
“AKODOWN ~Ap
s
“Xxouy AW
“SOA
“jaoeang “spy
"SOA
“3A3QOH AN
"SOA
“sajuan4g
“1104 8yl pped
R BEL[]
“sajuand -JapN Aq uorlop
“11o4

Aae1su08s JuelsIssy ayl

pue uorjow e aAey ap 19439y
“puodas

“paAow oS

~43HOL3 T4
OA  IVAVUN
~43HOL3 T4
A =AODJ9N
~43HOL3 T4
OA  “XONM
~43HOL3 4
“M30vanc
~43HOL3 T4
- 14390H
~43HOL3 T4
-S31IN3Nd
N
1.1
H AW Agq puooes
~Y3HOL3 T4
ayy Jed asesald
1nm
“puodss e
ANV d1VHO
= 14390H

=S31N3Nd

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 148



ve

aneb am uoryejussaad ayl uo dn smojjod owsuw
ayl 0T J49quadag pajep J3sAu pue 4032841(
9A11N09X3 8yl WoaJ owdw e uoissassod AnoA
ur aney nop -Buruaow poo9 :QOOMLY
“poomly “JApN 03 pasdoad
pINoYys am Muilyy | "3ead9  YILSIAN
(-asuodsaa oN)
-suoilsanb Aue axex |J.1
“owaw Aaxonls
pue 1uibniad 8yl seop se “spuail asayl
JO Adewwns 3ouUld9ns AJUaA e SaAlb puz asquadag
wo4j ajo134e adAng puog ayL
“Ayraoyany
ayy Jo spung ayl ur dn spus usbuoj ou Jeyy
anuaAad SI 31 pue ‘aweu Jano Jaapun saeadde
48buoj ou 3eyl awnjoA SI eyl
“Ay1aoyany ayy ybnouayy Buinssi
a0 PINOM Jeyl) SJA8moia0q 9g PINom asayl
“mMej Jeaapaj J4apun Aepol ISIXd 03 pPanuiuod
Buipungaua aodsueape j1 asnedaq “Ajraoyiny
9yl JO SJaMOJJ0q 8yl 03 Jeadyl O1Wouodd
ue asod seop ssajaylauou 31 INg “Saemoluaoq
ANO 10j 9SUSS DIWOUO0Dd Saxew SIyL

-sbuines sjed 3seaslul 04

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

s3axJew ajgexel ayl 03 pasodouad usyl pue spuoq
418y3 330 Aed U0 oseagsp SUamoduaog Joyodue

ANO JO J3quNnu e UdS BAeY OM 0S
-Burpungaa adueApe
Se umouy wsiueydsw Buroueurjaa jdwaxa xel

Syl peleulwI|s Jeyl uolle|siba) xel jedspay

/TOZ ©Ul pue JUSWUOAIAUS 93kl ]3Sa493ul MOJ

Appeoraoasiy Burnuijuod “suo daaquny :sbBuryl
OM) JO NS84 32a41p B SI Syl

“1gsp 8ajgexel

yrm A3raoyany ayl Agq panssi 1gsp 31npuod

340 BurAed usaq aney “Sa9M0AA0J JINPUOD

Jdwexa xel 3rjouaduou ‘saemouuoq jeuoriipedy

AN0 94dYyM puadl e si

U1 os
"6T0Z ‘Z J9quedag

uo paysipgnd sem 31 pue ‘uarzej9 aJAY

Ag uorjdwex3 Xel Iun) 403 9sSe) BYI BUIW.IBPUN

Aep woog ajgexel pajliluad ajdi1lae aaAng puog

e s1 919yl sdi]o eipaw 4noA uj

-A830N1S qooer “ua0319941p aA13nNdaxa Axndap

yamm Buoje “ruibniaad eaes “‘BuiAl] J01USS pue

aJ4ed yijeay Jo juapisaad adIA ano Ag pasedaad
Sem jeyl Juswnoop e Ssem sIyjl

“300q pJeog Anok

€€

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 149



9€

01 Buipaoooe Burob si1 Burylkiens eyl aans
ayew 03 4amoauaoq 8yl yIm AJ3sojd >dJom o3
pasu usayl JIIM A31Ja0ylny adueuld 8yl ‘aspusj
apgisuodsaa pue juapnad e Burag ‘Axraoyiny
aoueul4 ayl Aq papiaoad si Buioueulry

9yl pue apew aJe SUeO| a8yl 9duQ
“pawioy Apperliul aq [pIm spJdeoq ayl usym si
yorym “Auenuer ul awilawos sjuswasibe asoyly
ojul J193ud 03 39adxa ppnom am pue ‘pajesud
furag wayl HBuryediorlue aa,9m INg “pajyeaud

usa(g 3. UdAeBY S91313UD MBU YL
-jurod
siyl 3e A3aedasalunod ou s,948yl “9sunod JOo
“ueoj eyl ajelljlidoe) 03} SalIIJUS MBU OMI BYd
pue A3pJaoylny asueuld ayl uU2aMIa] Juswaaibe
jeuswuaanob-aa3ur syl aaedaad o3 jasunod

9pISINO UM dMJom unbBag aney apm
“SWalSAS JuswaAl1IdA MBU OMY

2yl JO yoea 03 uolpIw Z/T /$ 031 dn pusj 03

uorleziioyine aAey am J0 -- pud] 03 aq jIIm Aed ppim
A31a0yany aodueuld ayl eyl ajod 3yl os “ul
S39Sse 8yl 49j)Suedl 0} syiuow QO el j1Im

11 pajedioljue s,1| "S19SSE ou aney ||.Asylr

“pajeadd aJe Sa11IIUS 9S8yl uaym

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

-juswabeuew arayl aspun
s3asse ayl ybnoayl papuni-3Jas ade SwalsAs
JusWaA1Iaa J1jgnNd ~SwalsAs uoisuad omy 8sayl
Jo dn HBurlles aylx Jo pus Juoaly ayy e jeirrded
Buraom apinoad 031 s1 Ayraoyiny ayy Ag pakepd
9J04 Jed13140 e pue uolyelsiba] ayy jo aed
juejaodwi ue jeyl ppedad ybiw noA
-aJae sdals 1xau
ayy 3eym ybnouaylz Buruuepd unbaqg aney ao03dauaiq
an13n29x3 Aandag ayy pue | pue J403d841(Q
aAIIND9X3 a8yl -suibeqg ddom ayy ‘passed
sey uorje|sibal syl eyl mon
“Aiaxr Aybry st yosrym
‘aunjeubIs S,J0UldA09 Byl Ss}leme mou €T |jig
93euas pue ‘gT 03} Zi Sem 31 93BeuaS ayl
ul  "T 01 96 Sem 131 9SNOH 8yl ul -suibaew
ajqeazis Agq Ajquassy [eaauas ayy Jo sasnoy
8yl yroq passed uoryelsibal eyl eyl Aepol
noA 031 3aodaua 03 paseajd Auan w,|
“spung aJ41j pue aoirjod
ueqgiangns pue ajelsumop Jo A3Ijeuorlouny
JUSBWISOAUL Byl 93EepIJoSuod 03 AJquassy
Jedsausg ayl a4ojgaq uorjejsibag ayl sem

yorym ‘g1 119 93eusas Huipaebaa yjuow 3sej

153

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 150



8¢

“s1yl ur jaoddns
pue 3140}J8 JAn0OA 104 NoA dueyl ‘Axraoyiny
8yl JO Jleysaq uo “pasndaa aq
111M noA ybnoyl usA3  :9YIFYIANY dIVHO
“s1ylx Jo 3aed agq o3 pnouad
Jesad -- udaqg S,31 ‘pres | 1] ‘0os “awil bBuoj
‘Buol e u0J 3eD SIY) upys 03 BurAul usseq aney
Asyy pue “3ed 3InoIgyIp AU8A B UDIS 01 yiley
poob ur pajeaado “padaom Muryly | sarjaed
11e —- auam Apjead Asyl puy :QOOMLY
“Apeanjosay  -)3IovENC
“pey Asy1 eyl Ayraonad
ybry Auan e Apaeald si1 siyl ‘snbesj jediodrunu

a8yl pue sperorgjo jediorunu a8yl o diysaspea]

ayl “‘aurod s,a0Aew a8yl 01 puy >dOOMLY

“--0s  -aw yamm sdols Xong 8yl pue ‘spuny
pa3epIjosuod ayy Jo auo ag |IIm A3rjediorunu
Aw asneoaq 3snl jpasAw Buisndoaua ag fpIm |
‘suoljoesued] AUe UO 3JO0A 03 paau ||Im paeog

8yl JusIxa a8yl 01 ‘pres Bureq eyl
-a0Aew se uaddey siyl
Burew ur ajoa jeronrd e Aed 01 ajge sem |
Jeyl pelb w,.1 puy -Burylyr poob Auan e SI SIyl

0S “puny papuny Ajpedidorunw pajepljosuod e

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

SI UoIym ‘pung jusweailay jedioruny sitourjjl
8yl SNSJUaA spuny 0G9 JAno jo sburuies ayy
aaedwod noA J1 “ajgel ayl uo Aep e saejjop
uorpjiw e Burnea] aae am ‘uolepl josuod
84038q Aepol jeyl Muiyl sm pue ‘spunjg
uoisuad uno o) aoejdiadaew ayl uo suanlad
panoadwi 386 031 Jua1d1))ns ssew e axebaubbe
03} 9Jge aJde am ‘spunj asayl Buryeprjosuod
Aq pue “Burdew syl ul saeak usl ueylr
oJaow useg S,3eyl 140349 Ue JO UOIJRUIWEND
® S1 SIYU} NOA ]9 ued | ‘82uUauajuo)d
jediorunpy 3semyiJaoN 8yl Jo juspisaad
3sed pue stoulpjl “399dsodd Junop Jo

10Ae)\ se ‘uol13eAlasqo ue ISNC  IHIOVINC
“suoilsanb Aue uamsue o3 pelb aq “yeyl
ULIM OS “paAJOAUL SA3pJoyaxels SnoldeA ayl
pue Jouaan09 8yl Jo uolerdaadde syl paudes

AA.8M BAda119] | Yy ur ajoua jeyonrd Ajpesa

e pakeld sey A3rJaoylny adsueuld a8yl U0 dJOM
03 109foad 3eaub e usaq sey siIyl

- mou

spuels ssaooad ayl adaym s,3eyl os “juswssabe

JuawAedaa ayy ylim parjsiyes aq JlIm

saryJed yilog eyl ‘pus doeq ayy e pue uepd

L€

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 151



ov

awes ayy Buiney uo Buruuepd si Ayraoyiny
8yl awil SIY3l 3Ie INg ‘38K pajndaxa uasq
JOU 9ABY SUOEISUSIXS MBU 8yl IAINONLS
dreym “saA  ININIY¥L.0
"seA “Bwil SIYY IV AIONLS
¢A103S Byl S.3eym a0 S3IOeAJU0d
Burlsixa ayl Jepun palsixe 31 Se aues ayl 1l
S| ¢Juoryesuadwod 3noge Jeyy :NI1¥9.0
Jsuorlsanb Aue aney ApogAue saoqQ
“30BU3U0D
S901A48S Jeuosaad e uo Burob o3 ssAkojdws
awil-3aed e woay Burob aq p1.9ys
"0Sd mau e aq
11IM Jeyl -UuOISUa]IXd Ue ag JOou [JIM aueua’
elaWed pue ‘Ixsmoduel yedes ‘jjogn uels
‘3auuog esi ‘poomly |ig 40) “sOSd Buimopjos
ayy Buipuaixa ag ppIm A31aoyny ayl “aeaAk
JBOSIJ JU8a4nd 8yl Joj uornjosaa 1abpnq
38Ul JO £ UOILD8S YIIM JUSISISUOD
-uebaq
SAI3EITIUL UOIJBW.IojSued) ayl aduls pasn
9A.9M JBUL SOSd |eJ9N8S papud aA,em Jeyl 99s
ued noA “9duUsluas 3se] 8yl UOo pue “SIOeUIU0D

901A48S Jeuosaad 8yl MOIASA AJauriInod ospe ap

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

©S30BJ3UO0D S3JIAUSS Jeuosaad Buisn ssa20ns
40 301 ® pey sey Ayraoyany oyl
“uo Burag 03 ajge usag aAey am eyl

sjJadxa ayl Jo awos uo HBurag o1 A31

X33

8yl 8Aey 3. UPJNOM 8m “3DeJd3U0D 9DIAUIS
jeuosaad ayy 404 3,.usem 31 J|

“swaay

moadeu Aaan pue axiuly Joj ajdoad uo Burag

03 A3rpi1qge eyl Ayraoyiny ayy santb 0sd 8yl
410 30©J3U0D 991A4SS Jeuosdad ayl

“awi) Jo spordad a31uly 4oy

2ouaraadxa pue juajel paz oads saainbau

A31aoyiny syl “eAllelrliul uoljewiojsuedl
ayl Jo 3aed sy -Buruaow poog I AIMONLS
“Smoduely yedes yiim uorzounfuod ui
Aaxon1s qooer Aq pasedaad sem siyl T "ON
way] Burdel aq ospe 1.1 Iy3LSIANW
(-asuodsaa oN)
¢suorysanb usylo Auy  1QOOMLY
“Aex0  19YIGYIANY HIVHO
-3eyl ajerdaadde os ‘Aue 3,usi adayl
9SIMI9Y10 asnedaq jelrded Buryaom wiasajul
Jeyl apinoad ued A3raoyiny ayi eyl 31oej ayl

o3e1oauadde | “awod|m 84,N0A  IMIDVINC

6€

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 152



f474

“S921AJ3S Jeuolssajoad
03} pue SalduedeA 8yl 03 anp sasuadxa
paxepaa-aakojdwa uo Burpuads 38bpng mojaq
Aq uanrap Ajasow sem yorym “3abpng ueyl aamoj
Juaoaad g-/T 40 000°‘vyE$ o4om uOKIIIW L T$
JO sasuadxa jenuue je3ol anQ
*000°8TZ$ 40 unowe palebpng Ajyluow syl ueys
aaybry sem yorym “000‘8EY$ 40 S99y Buisojo
pajaodea A3raoyiny syl Aaquanon uj
"SUBO] UO QWOODUI UO 3Saaajul
pue seaj 921AJ48S aAljeJlSIulupe palodadxe
ueyl Jaamo] o031 anp Apraewrad si1 siyl -319b6pnq
MOJaq 000°60T$ SI pue uoljiuw 6 T O} SNUBASI
jenuue jejol Jno sbBuraq siyl -38b6png ueyl
19yBIYy 000°2$ o4e pue Q00°‘STv$ Ie a4e sanuanad
furyeaado-uou jenuue jelo0l ANQ
*186png mogaq 000°TTT$ ode

pue uo W G°T$ e auae sanuanaa Buirjeaado

jenuue Jejlol AnQ :ISMojJoJ Se Ss1 6T0Z
“0E J9qWAAON 404 Sjeldueul) ayl
"S18pjod anjg AnoA ul punoj aq ued
s3a0daa Aanseadl 8yl pue Ssjuswalels jeldueuly
8yl -auoAuana “‘Burudow poo IYANVYO

“X1S  -sjaodaa

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

JeIduUBUl} 9y} O3 UO dAOW S,397
“noA sueyr  19Y3EYIANY YIVHO
" pa4.und20
aney Aew eyl sabueyos 4aylo Aue pue sjunoure
0} Se puaeog 8yl 03 >oeq jJodad e aney JlIm

oM -- 3g Jl1.om Aaenuer ur ‘urebe “‘pue “‘sn uaoj}

1003 juejaodwi ue S,31 0S “ApIngsSsadons Auan
spuoq uaaab puny Buinjonsa a3els Buriads aylx paj
ays pue “312edluod SadIAJS8S Jeuosdad e aspun

ur 3ybnoug am osje 3auuog esiT

“paeay 3snl aA,noA “s3a03439 S.|

19 JO SS9820ns
8yl eyl Muryl | pue “Aem asyio Aue ur eyl
op 03 Burbuajpeyd AudA usaq aAey ppnom 11
“S9oUB3SWNOAID 8yl USALB Muiyl |

"310BUIU0D S9DIAIIS
jeuosuaad e Jo Aem Aq sem A3raoyiny ayl Aol
>JOoM 03 poomly A uo Bulug 03 Sjge Susam am
yorym Ag Jsuuew ayl “jool siyl Jo aduezuaodwi

8yl 9409s49pun 03 ISNC  YILSIIN

“noA Mueyl :N3149.0

TS9A  IAIIONLS

ipapuaixa aa,.Aayy uaym :N3IIY9G.0
"310BUIU0D SIDIAIIS

Jeuosaad 8yl Jo suo yoea 4oy uoryesuadwod

114

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 153



144

Jsuorlsanb Aue auaayl auay
-3a0daa 03 Burylou s,aa8yd
QWi SIY} 3B pue >oeal uo Si 0zoz Aeshk
1BOS1) 9yl 404 YIpne jeuaajul ayl
“MOEIASA 119Ul J10) SU0}IPNe Jeulalxs
a2yl 03 papinoad usag sey 49133] [eIlusuedy
|yl JO 3Jeup ISAi) 8yl -493139] SisAjeue pue
uoissnosip juswsbeuew syl Juswsajdwod 03 A8pao
ur ja0dsa jerdoueuly palipne 6T0Z J4esk jeosiy
Syl ylIm 193381 Jelrrwsuedy e Buipngoul
ag 111m A3raoyany ayy awil 3Isaiy syl
104 ">OeJ} U0 uUlewdaJd uoljeulwexs adsueldwod
JeshA-omy 8yl pue 3ipne jeroueury 610z Jeak
1eOS14 9yl “3ipne o3 uo Burnop
“191S19) 40319941Q Ag pauorjuaw Ajsnoinaad
sem 31 Se S)00q pAeog JUnoA ul papnjoul
os|e S1 uoljlodesuedy 3sidij ayl aoj aodad
Aanseall 30ovd 8yl ‘Jepulwed e sy

uorpI1q G vz$ Inoge

40 BurpuelsINo SI 1gsp JUSAAND UNO —- SI
AJ1UB44ND 1gSp JO 8JNPayos anQ
“108p JO 8INpayds Jano pue

JeaA JedSI) JUSAUND Byl Ul Panssi spuoq ayl

JO J1elsp e ‘panssi spuoq jo uosiaedwod aesk

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

Je2S1) N0 Sapnjoul yorym yaodasa Auanseaul ayl
pury p1IMm noA siaapjod angq AnoA uj
cuorpprw €°09¢% Jo

S)18sse |e10} pue uoljlIW 6°65$ JO uorisod 3au

1©303 ® ylim 1988ys adouejeq Buoals e urejuirew
03} S8aNUI3U0D pung Jedausab ung
-38bpng mojaq usoaad z-.T e
Burpuads JJeaano JO JaAd] dyl SI aul] Woloq
aAl111sod jenuue ayl Jo Janrap aofew ayy pue
“000°GEZ$ Ie SI dwodul 38U Jenuue Jelol 4nQ
-saa) Bursolo aaybiy Ag usarap sem 000°‘96$
JO awooul 3au Ajyjuow Jelol 4nQ
“uonjejsiba] uoilepljosuod
uorsuad a4y pue ao1jod siourjpi
ayy Jo Burlgeap syl pue aul] ssaulsng
ABaaua ueao passasse Ajdadouad s,Arraoyiny
a2yl Jo Juawdojanap panurjuod “uoryebiri]
furobuo syl yimm uorlddUUOD ul syjuow aorad
Buranp paiapuaa sad1AddS Jeba] a0} a18quaNoN
30 yjuow ayyx Buranp pred sad10AUl palejnwnooe
031 ajqeanquaile Aj3sow sem s1ylL  ~000°00v$
40 Junowe psalsbpng Ajyauow syl ueylr asybiy
sem yorym “000°‘vev$ 40 sasuadxa Buryeuaado

pop402a4 A3140yIny Byl ASQWBAON U]

4

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 154



o

0] SUOI]D84100 U0 S1IpPa ‘suollippe Aue axeu
031 ysIm duoAue s80Q :>943IGYIANY H1VHO

“noA Mueyl -0z0z J9quaidsas

ybnoayl sIoeUIUOD By} PudIXS 03 3D14J0

Juawaanooad 3aryd ayl Aq jenoadde Aaeurwijaad

pajueab usag aney ap -“ISTE A2qwadaq

uo seardxe 310eaJUOD JUOSIAPE JelIduUBUl) ANO
Jeyl yjuow 3sej pauoljuauw osje |

“1eob jusouaad 0z 8yl 3esuw 03 aaidse

03} 9NUIIUOD dM aansse 03 Wayl yiim 3asu

11.9M pue “"d-3°g ylim puads paumo-uswom pue
A1yjuow Jed1a01S1y JUNo padeys o

"6T. A4 ul juaouad T pue ‘juadoaad Tz juads

oM 8T. Ad Ul ~SWAlJ paumo-uawom pue A3EAoulw
y3mm juaoaad gz juads am 2T. A4 Ul

-poob

300] sJaqunu 8yl pue “‘6T. A4 ybnoauyl .T. Ad

Wo4J SWALJ PBUMO-USBWOM pue A3raoulw yiim
puads Je21.103S1Y ANO Paydaeasad o

“S9SSaUISNQ PaumMo-UBWOM pue salllaoulw Aq

paumo ssaulsng 03} papieme ag SIOEUIUOD 93eIS

JO junowe Jepjop je310l ayl Jo jusduad oz

ueyl ssaj jou jo jeob jeuorjeuardse ue sey

weaboad -"4-3°g ayx “aepnorlaed uj

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

Sy

“ueaboad --4-3-g ayyr pue 38bpng pue Juswabeuew
“901340 Juawainoodd Jaryos ayy aae yosrym
“saoyepnbea Ayaed-paryy Agq psaoadde sq o1
sjuawaanooad A3raoyiny ayly saainbaa mou yorym
“6T0Z ‘T Aaenuer uo 3asuns uonldwaxa jerlaed

s.A3140ylny 9yl eyl pauoiuaw |
“yjuouw 3sej

p 1 wd3l 3a0daa JuswaAnd0ad ASCUBAON dYl UO

a3epdn ue apinoad 03 91| pInom |  ~saaquaul
paeog ‘Buruaow poog AVMOTIOH ~dN
“AemopIoH “ap
“31 9ney seAe 8yl 1943IEYIANY dIVHO
(-asuodsaa oN)
¢pasoddo  Z9Y3gYIANY HIVHO
(-sake jo snaoyd vy)
¢A0ABY Ul 3SOyd IV
“PUODSS pue UOIION  943gHIANV dIVHO
“puodss  IS3LIN3INS
“paAow os 71309
juorjou e
yons a4ayl S| -s3dodaa jeroueury ayy 3daooe
03 uorjow e 3sanbaa 03 I P.l
TXIS “noA ueyl :9439¥IANY ¥IVHO

(-asuodsaa oN)

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 155



8v

SUOISSaS Paso]d 8sayl Jo yoe3
- Kepaalsak
NnoA 01 pajlews OS|e aJ4am Sajnulw ayl
pue Apsnoinaiad 3no passed aiam Jeyl Saapjot
pad 4noA ul punoj og ued ‘jeljuspijuod
aJe yorym “sajnuiw ayy jo sardo)d
“MOIADA
orporaad 3xau ayl JI3uUN pasojd wayl doay
410 sajnulw 8sayl uado 01 Jayleym sulw.iaalap
03 S93NUIW UOISSAS Pasod JO MaIAaa d1poriad
e saJdinbaa 3oy sburyssp uadp ayl
"6T0C ‘8 48703120
pue ‘6TOZ “TT @unc “8TOZ “TT JA8qualrdss
Iselep 994yl 9S8yl Wodj sajnuiuw
UoISSas paso]o ayy uado 03 J3YIaym SI puodas
"6T0Z ‘8 4970390 WO.aj SOINUIW UOISSIS Paso]d
a8yl Jo jenoadde syl s1 ISAI4 “UOIILASPISUOD
10J SJa9)3BeW OM} aJde aJayl
“6T0Z “8 48703190
pue ‘GTOz “TT 8unC “8TOZ ‘TT JA8qualrdss
Wo4J S83NuUIW UOISSAS pPaso]d uado
01 J8ylaym Burpaebaa uorlde pue uOoIIBABPISUOD
“IT wa3| epusabe aonpodjul 03 a4y

W,| “SJA9quap pue uewareyd AN yIgIM

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

1T
wall yrm psadodd NOA  19YIGYIANY dIVHO
é¥eylr yimm paaooad
03 aw a1 noA ppnoj -uolssas uado ul
Quop SI YdIym “Sa3nulll UOISSdS Pasold ayl Jo
uo13edapIsuod ayl JII3S S.949yl  y3gam
- Aepol
uoISSas pasod 4oy BulylzAue aney am anal|aq
J.Uop 1 CIYBEA pIY  19Y3IGYIANY HIVHO
"848y jou sem | 171309
"9J4ay j.usem | “pauleisge | IVAVYN
“311 9ney saAe Byl  19YIEYIANY dIVHO
(-asuodsaa oN)
¢pasoddo  Z9Y3gYIANY HIVHO
(-sake jo snaoyd vy)
¢A0NRY UL BS0UR 11V
“puodas pue UOIJON  9Y3gHYIANY dIVHO
“puodss  ZS3IN3NA
“paAow oS  IM30VINC
Juoljou e yons adayl S| “sajhulw
asoyl anoadde o1 uorjow e 3sanbaua o1 aiI|
ppnom | “suou BuraesH :9Y3GYIANY HI1VHO
(-asuodsaua oN)

¢6TOZ “CT AS9QWSAON Wouaj sajnulw

Ly

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 156



0S

Mau 8yl JOo TT wall sSI siyl ¥3HOLITd
Yoy
“wooua 8yl Burlixa aq JpIM A9ASIBN "IN
eyl jurod SIyy 3e anarjaq |
“aney Aew noA suorisanb
Aue Jsemsue 03 pue ssado4ad uorjeuiwou
2yl uo punouabyoeq jaraq e anib asnl oy
1913n) » uewdey) Jo wAaAry mej ayy yim asuizaed
e -- B UlIM SI pue ‘suajlew adueuaanob
uo Jasunod jeba] spISINO JNO SI OYym “IaWol
Yoy adnpoJjur o3 1] ppnom | 1y3gam
"S9A  19YI9Y3ANY dIVHO
émou TT wayg
03 udniaa 03 1] noA pEnom  y3g3ImM “SW
“11 8ney saAe 8yl  19YIGYIANY dIVHO
(-asuodsaa oN)
¢pasoddo  19y¥AGYIANY dIVHO
(~soAe 3o snaoyd v)
¢A0ABY U 3SOYY 11V 9439d3ANY dIVHO
“puodss  IS3LIN3INS
“panow oS IMIoVINC
"oV
sBuiyes) uadp ayyr Aq paainbaa mainaa d1poriad

IXau 8yl p13un pasold “6TOZ ‘TT 8unC pue 8T0Z

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

6V

“IT J9queldes woajy SaINUIW UOESSIS Pasofd
ayl yam asylabol saznulw asoyl daay 03 pue
‘6T0Z ‘8 4970390 WO.aJ SOINUIW UOISSAS Paso]d

ayl anouadde 031 uorjouw e 3sanbaa 01 ai|
ppnom | ‘suou BuraesH :943GYIANY HI1VHO
(-asuodsaa oN)
£A90ep) Jasuno) Jedasus Aq paqraosep
S93INUIW UOISS3S PasO]d 9yl SSNOSIP 03 UOISSasS
pasojo ojul of 031 aaisap Jaquaw Aue saoq
“yreqezig3 ‘noA dueyl 9YIGYIANY ¥IVHO
Tuewareyy A
“spaemualje

S93INUIW 8yl Uo 930A e Bumel pue ‘uolsses

pasojo pajlIlua S1 yorym ‘€T wal| epuabe

03 eyl Buraiajep pusLWOdaA | “UOISSNOSIP
104 911S9p B S,949Ul J1 “A9NSMOH

“uoIssas

pPaso]o ul BUISSNOSIP 3INOYLIM MBIASA d1poraad

IXau 8yl JI13UN PasOd Ssajnulw ayl daady 03 Mou

BuIIOA puswwodad | “S83nulW 8yl SSnNOSIp 03
saysim Jaquaw ou J1 “Ajburpioodoy

-Burobuo

surewad uoryefiyng eyl -A3rdoyiny ayl

BUIAJOAUT UOI3EBI3I] JO UOISSNOSIP PaAJOAUL

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 157



[4s]

€ aAey pIp aj  943gYIANY dIVHO
“Jeyl wo.aj suolIepuswwodd Aue pue ualfled
UOISS3S 9913 1WWOD BAIINIS8Xd 3Yyly Ssnosip

03 Juem noA JI ‘uewareyd puy y3gam
“yaagezi |3 Jou pue siylx Burjuasaud

W, 1 3eyly uosesd syl si yasrymw -13N0L

“Aex0  19Y3GYIANY ¥IVHO
1909 yregezi |3
pue ua3sisp asydolsiay)y aae suoljeulwou

9yl Jo saweu om3} 8yl :13NOL
“oJae saweu

ay3 oym a3eas 3snl ppnod noAk 3| :y3gam
“Buruaow
s1y3x auop Buraq s.yeym pue ssaosoud ayl
uo aney Aeuw saaquaw ayl Jo Aue eyl suorlsanb
Aue a0j dn 31 uado asnl p1.1 3Byl yim
pue “a213J0 S,a0UldN09 Byl Aq panoadde uaaq
aney Aayl 92ulS Suolleullwou asoyl uo paadouad
03} JUSIDIJINS SI Jlews eyl “3dy ayl Jo

abenbue] syl aapun uorurdo ano uj

“Aepoy aa93e] BUIWOD BQ JIIM UYdIym “Si9339]
asoyy BuiAradaa jJo narj ur a0 Burpuad ssaodoad
8yl yaim paasoad ppnoys Axrdoylny ayl eyl

pue J0u4dn09 ayl Aq pawarjuod pue parouadde

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

u2aQ 9ABY pue PaAlddad 9J49M SUOIJBUILOU 9SOYl
Jeyl 901430 S,A0UNdA09 BYL WOAJ UOoIIedIJi3ou
J1ews panladad sey As8xonis J4o3oeaiqg
an13noax3 AIndag 1ng “ssaooad ur p13s

aJde su91319] 9soyl jurod sIyl 1y
“suoljeulwoU asoyl BulwaIjuod -- 3soyl
ylIm 901JJ0 S,.Jd0UddA09 By} wouay Ajjensn
j1ewd Ag panladad usaq aAey jeyl sa913a] aq

pINOM 848y} 9SJAN0D JEBWJIOU UL puy
©10399.41Q 9A13IN09XT
9yl 40 jusujurodde uaoj 3oe s, A3140UINy
8yl 03 juensund JOUABA09 BYL WOAJ POALISDAU
suoljeulwou aie mou Jybra passauppe Buieq

S1 eyl wall epuabe ayl anarjaq |
“QwEl O3 SwWi} woay swayl jeroads
49U30 pue Suoljloesueldy U0 Jasunod jerdads
pue Jasunod puog se A3140yiny 8yl YIm padiom
sey oym “aajan) » uewdey) yrim asuided e

“18WOL yory w.l “pres yisqezij3 sy
“saaquap “Buruaouw

poog -ylegezip3 ‘nok dueyr :13WOL

“wooJ 8yl} palixe sey ay
Jeyl 309]Jad paodad syl 33| aseald ‘uansia|

410309410 9AI1NI8XF pue swall ssaulsng

18

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 158



S

“sjoows “SW tY3IHOL3TH

"S9A  :T139VNY3H0

spebeuasaqo taN tyIHOLITH

"S8A  IN3JIY¥4.0

“usiig.0 "IN T¥3HOL3TH

"S9A  IVAVWN

“eAeN SN IY3HOLITH

“SSA  ZAODJ9N

“AOQOW AN T¥3IHOLITH

“S9A  ZXONM

TXOuy TN TYIHOLIA

TS9A  IMADVANC

“y@dednc "SW I¥3HOL3d

"S9A  -1439dOH

“3A8C0H CAN tY3IHOLIH

"SeA 171309

©Z3909 "IN 1Y3HOL3TH

"S8A  S3ALN3INS
“sojuand “J|N  “1104 dYy JIed
11.1 “10310941Q 9AI3N29X3 Se 431SIdN S1AY)

jurodde 031 uorjow By} UQ  YIHOLITH
“1104 8yl ppeo asespd

A1e12499S JUEISISSY 9yl 1M

“puooss

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

€9

pue uorjow e aAey sM  I9YIgYIANY dIVHO
TPpUOdaS  IMIOVHINC
“paAow os 71309
Juorjouw e yons aaayy si
©10309.41(Q 9AIINI9XJ Se A9ISIS) SIAYD djeulwou
01 uorlow e 3sanbaa 03 a1 p.l
©10323.41Q 9A131N29X3
30 uorlisod a8yl a0j4 U3ISIBN SIAYD PapusWWOIdd
Alsnowrueun pue Buruiow SIyy} 4aKjaes
JoW 9933 1WWOD SAIRNISAXT Byl
“wa9) Jeak-auo e aoj Ayraoyiny
9yl JO 40398410 9A11IN09X3 JO uoryisod
8yl 404 J0UISAOH BYJ WO Suoljeulwou
OM1 POAId2ad aAey | “A3raoylny aoueuld
SIOUll O3 juensind >943943ANVY dIVHO
TS9A  tH3dam
¢abenbue]
8yl peaJ 01 auW jue) 943dYIANY dIVHO
“uorjow jeyy oxeuw fr.l Z1309
-3eyy jaoddns |
“Aexo s.1eyl :y3gam
“yeqezi3 “‘Aaa0s
“493S18)y SI1AY) JO UOIYBeUlWOU Byl PUBWWOISUA

031 —-- YliM pJemioy of 03 UOIIePUBWWOIDA

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 159



99

(-pauuanofpe sem aaljeuw
anoge ayly uodnaaaym)
“woe Gg:IQT SI 8wil 8yl tY¥3HOLI14
-auoluana “sAeprjoy AddeH
“31 9ney seAe a8yl  19Y3IGYIANY HIVHO
(-asuodsaa oN)
¢pasoddo  19Y3gYIANY HIVHO
(-seAe 30 snaoyd v)
¢A0ARY Ul 8soyl 1Y
“PuUODSS pue UOIION  943gH3IANY dIVHO
“panow oS :1Y3FOH
“panow 0S 171309
Juorjouw e yons auayly s -“uanofpe o3 uorjouw
e 3sanbaa 03 &Il pP.l1 0202 ‘¥ Adenuer
ag 1M Burlasaw pajnpayos Apaepnbaa 3xau ayl
‘auou BuraesH "ON :9YIGYIANY dIVHO
(-asuodsaa oN)
JUOISSaS Pasod Ul UOISSNISIP A0}
Jd913ew Aue aad8yl SI  194IQYIANY ¥IVHO
“yonw AaaA noA dueyl Iy3ILSIIN

“SIAy) “suoryepnieabuo)d

ve

€c

[44

1

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

ct

11

ot

“11 aney soAe 8yl  19YIGYIANY dIVHO
(-osuodsaua ON)
¢pasoddo  19yIGYIANY HIVHO
(-seAe j0 snaoyd v)
¢A0ABY U 3SOYl 11V 9439d3ANY dIVHO
“puodss  IS3LIN3INS
“panAow oS 171309
Juorjow e yons aaayly sy ~Aepoy
a3ediorjied 031 ajgeun siaaquaw JO SaduUdse
8yl 9snoxa 03 uoljow e 3sanbaa 03 axl|
p.1 ‘8uou BuraesH :9Y3EYIANY HIVHO
(-osuodsaua oN)
SbBuruaouw sy
SJaaquall 8yl 9404987 BWOD 03 SSaulsng 48yjo Aue
918yl S| 948y ul oeq siayp 186 s,.397
“noA sueyl  :9Y3IEYIANY YIVHO
“sa1J4ed uoljou
uorjeulwou ayl “‘uewareyy “AN  YIHOLIA
"S9A  19Y3FYIANY HIVHO
“uewdareyy "IN 1Y3HOL3TH
“S9A  ILHOIUM
“IYBIAM CAN TYIHOLTTA
TS9A  tHIATIXIM
TA9IX9M AN TH3HOLITH

"S9A  IS100WS

i)

14

ve

€ec

[44

114

0c

6T

8T

LT

9T

ST

vT

€T

¢t

11

ot

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 160



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

VOICE VOTE
REQUEST TO ATTEND VIA AUDIO CONFERENCE
APPROVED
December 10, 2019
9 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
Y  Fuentes NV  McCoy (via audio Y  Smoots
conference)
Y  Goetz NV Nava NV  Wexler (via audio
conference)
Y  Hobert NV  Obernagel (via audio Y  Wright
conference)
Y  Juracek Y  O’Brien E Zeller
Y  Knox E Poole Y Mr. Chairman

E — Denotes Excused Absence

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 161



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

VOICE VOTE
DECEMBER 10, 2019 AGENDA OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS
APPROVED
December 10, 2019
12 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
Y  Fuentes Y  McCoy (via audio Y  Smoots
conference)
Y  Goetz NV Nava Y  Wexler (via audio
conference)
Y  Hobert Y  Obernagel (via audio Y  Wright
conference)
Y  Juracek Y  O’Brien E Zeller
Y  Knox E Poole Y Mr. Chairman

E — Denotes Excused Absence

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 162



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
ROLL CALL
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1210-CF01

501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND - ROOSEVELT UNIVERSITY

PRELIMINARY
PASSED*

December 10, 2019

13 YEAS 0 NAYS

Y  Fuentes Y  McCoy (via audio Y
conference)

Y  Goetz Y  Nava (added) Y

Y  Hobert Y  Obernagel (via audio Y
conference)

Y  Juracek Y  O’Brien E

Y  Knox E Poole Y

E — Denotes Excused Absence
* Consent Agenda

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 163

0 PRESENT

Smoots

Wexler (via audio
conference)
Wright

Zeller
Mr. Chairman

NO. 01



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

ROLL CALL

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1210-CF02

December 10, 2019

13 YEAS

<< < =< <

Fuentes

Goetz

Hobert

Juracek
Knox

m< < < <

E — Denotes Excused Absence
* Consent Agenda

PASSED*

0 NAYS

McCoy (via audio
conference)
Nava (added)

Obernagel (via audio
conference)

O’Brien

Poole

< < <

<m

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 164

NO. 02

501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND — THE UNIVERSITY OF CHICAGO MEDICAL CENTER
FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION)

0 PRESENT

Smoots

Wexler (via audio
conference)
Wright

Zeller
Mr. Chairman



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
ROLL CALL
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1210-CF03
501(c)(3) REVENUE BOND - NOTRE DAME COLLEGE PREP
FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION)

PASSED*
December 10, 2019
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
Y  Fuentes Y  McCoy (via audio Y  Smoots
conference)
Y  Goetz Y  Nava (added) Y  Wexler (via audio
conference)
Y  Hobert Y  Obernagel (via audio Y  Wright
conference)
Y  Juracek Y  O’Brien E Zeller
Y  Knox E Poole Y Mr. Chairman

E — Denotes Excused Absence
* Consent Agenda

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 165

NO. 03



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
ROLL CALL
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1210-CF04
BEGINNING FARMER REVENUE BOND - JOSHUA NICHOLAS ELSBERRY
FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION)

PASSED*
December 10, 2019
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
Y  Fuentes Y  McCoy (via audio Y  Smoots
conference)
Y  Goetz Y  Nava (added) Y  Wexler (via audio
conference)
Y  Hobert Y  Obernagel (via audio Y  Wright
conference)
Y  Juracek Y  O’Brien E Zeller
Y  Knox E Poole Y Mr. Chairman

E — Denotes Excused Absence
* Consent Agenda

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 166

NO. 04



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
ROLL CALL
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1210-CF05

NO. 05

LOCAL GOVERNMENT REVENUE BOND - COMMUNITY HIGH SCHOOL DISTRICT

December 10, 2019

13 YEAS

<< < < <

Fuentes

Goetz

Hobert

Juracek
Knox

NUMBER 99, DUPAGE COUNTY
FINAL (ONE-TIME CONSIDERATION)
PASSED*

0 NAYS

McCoy (via audio
conference)
Nava (added)

< < <

Obernagel (via audio
conference)

O’Brien

Poole

m< < < <

<m

E — Denotes Excused Absence

* Consent Agenda

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 167

0 PRESENT

Smoots

Wexler (via audio
conference)
Wright

Zeller
Mr. Chairman



NO. 06

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
ROLL CALL
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1210-CF06
RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF A FIRST
AMENDMENT TO BOND AND LOAN AGREEMENT RELATING TO THE ILLINOIS
FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2016 (ELMHURST
COLLEGE) TO PROVIDE FOR CERTAIN AMENDMENTS RELATING TO THE INTEREST
RATE DETERMINATION AND CERTAIN OTHER MATTERS; AUTHORIZING THE
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ANY OTHER DOCUMENTS NECESSARY OR
APPROPRIATE TO EFFECT THE MATTERS SET FORTH IN SUCH FIRST AMENDMENT;
AND AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING RELATED MATTERS

ADOPTED*
December 10, 2019
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
Y  Fuentes Y  McCoy (via audio Y  Smoots
conference)
Y  Goetz Y  Nava (added) Y  Wexler (via audio
conference)
Y  Hobert Y  Obernagel (via audio Y  Wright
conference)
Y  Juracek Y  O’Brien E Zeller
Y  Knox E Poole Y  Mr. Chairman

E — Denotes Excused Absence
* Consent Agenda

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 168



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
ROLL CALL
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1210-CF07

NO. 07

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING CERTAIN DOCUMENTS RELATING
TO THE REMARKETING AND CONVERSION OF TWO SUBSERIES OF THE ILLINOIS
FINANCE AUTHORITY REVENUE BONDS, SERIES 2008A (ADVOCATE HEALTH CARE
NETWORK), INCLUDING THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ONE OR MORE
SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST INDENTURES, ONE OR MORE NEW BONDS, ONE OR MORE
TAX EXEMPTION CERTIFICATES AND AGREEMENTS AND ANY OTHER NECESSARY
DOCUMENTS; AND AUTHORIZING AND APPROVING RELATED MATTERS

ADOPTED
December 10, 2019
12 YEAS 0 NAYS
Y  Fuentes Y  McCoy (via audio Y
conference)
NV Goetz Y  Nava (added) Y
Y  Hobert Y  Obernagel (via audio Y
conference)
Y  Juracek Y  O’Brien E
Y  Knox E Poole Y

E — Denotes Excused Absence

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 169

0 PRESENT

Smoots

Wexler (via audio
conference)
Wright

Zeller
Mr. Chairman



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
ROLL CALL
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1210-CF08

NO. 08

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AMENDMENTS TO THE BOND TRUST INDENTURES
RELATING TO THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY VARIABLE RATE REVENUE
BONDS, SERIES 2012A AND SERIES 2012B (ROSECRANCE, INC.), THE PROCEEDS OF
WHICH WERE LOANED TO ROSECRANCE, INC.

December 10, 2019

13 YEAS

<< < < <

Fuentes

Goetz

Hobert

Juracek
Knox

ADOPTED*

0 NAYS

McCoy (via audio
conference)
Nava (added)

< < <

Obernagel (via audio
conference)

O’Brien

Poole

m< < < <

<m

E — Denotes Excused Absence

* Consent Agenda

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 170

0 PRESENT

Smoots

Wexler (via audio
conference)
Wright

Zeller
Mr. Chairman



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
ROLL CALL
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1210-CF09

RESOLUTION OF INTENT REQUESTING AN INITIAL ALLOCATION OF
PRIVATE ACTIVITY VOLUME CAP IN THE AMOUNT OF $120,000,000

ADOPTED*
December 10, 2019
13 YEAS 0 NAYS
Y  Fuentes Y  McCoy (via audio Y
conference)
Y  Goetz Y  Nava Y
Y  Hobert Y  Obernagel (via audio Y
conference)
Y  Juracek Y  O’Brien E
Y  Knox E Poole Y

E — Denotes Excused Absence
* Consent Agenda

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 171

0 PRESENT

Smoots

Wexler (via audio
conference)
Wright

Zeller
Mr. Chairman

NO. 09



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
ROLL CALL
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1210-DA10

NO. 10

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY TO ASSIST
THE ILLINOIS DEPARTMENT OF COMMERCE AND ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITY IN
CONNECTION WITH THE ADVANTAGE ILLINOIS PROGRAM

December 10, 2019

13 YEAS

<< < < <

Fuentes

Goetz

Hobert

Juracek
Knox

ADOPTED*

0 NAYS

McCoy (via audio
conference)
Nava (added)

< < <

Obernagel (via audio
conference)

O’Brien

Poole

m< < < <

<m

E — Denotes Excused Absence

* Consent Agenda

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 172

0 PRESENT

Smoots

Wexler (via audio
conference)
Wright

Zeller
Mr. Chairman



December 10, 2019

13 YEAS

Fuentes
Goetz
Hobert

Juracek
Knox

<< < < <

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
ROLL CALL
RESOLUTION NO. 2019-1210-EX11

RESOLUTION APPOINTING THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR OF THE ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

ADOPTED

0 NAYS

McCoy (via audio
conference)
Nava (added)

< < <

Obernagel (via audio
conference)

O’Brien

Poole

m< < < <

<m

E — Denotes Excused Absence

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 173

0 PRESENT

Smoots

Wexler (via audio
conference)
Wright

Zeller
Mr. Chairman

NO. 11



December 10, 2019

13 YEAS

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

Fuentes

Goetz

Hobert

Juracek
Knox

ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
VOICE VOTE
FINANCIAL REPORTS
ACCEPTED

0 NAYS

McCoy (via audio
conference
Nava (added)

< < <

Obernagel (via audio
conference)

O’Brien

Poole

m< < < <

<m

E — Denotes Excused Absence

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 174

0 PRESENT

Smoots

Wexler (via audio
conference)
Wright

Zeller
Mr. Chairman



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY

December 10, 2019

12 YEAS

Y
Y
Y
Y
Y

Fuentes

Goetz

Hobert

Juracek
Knox

m< < > <

E — Denotes Excused Absence

VOICE VOTE

APPROVED

0 NAYS

McCoy (via audio
conference
Nava (added)

Obernagel (via audio
conference)

O’Brien

Poole

< < <

<m

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 175

NOVEMBER 12, 2019 MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS

0 PRESENT

Smoots

Wexler (via audio
conference)
Wright

Zeller
Mr. Chairman



ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY
VOICE VOTE
APPROVAL OF THE CLOSED SESSION MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE BOARD
FROM OCTOBER 8, 2019, AND FOR THE CLOSED MINUTES FROM OCTOBER 8, 2019,
SEPTEMBER 11, 2018, AND JUNE 11, 2019 TO REMAIN CLOSED UNTIL THE NEXT
PERIODIC REVIEW REQUIRED BY THE OPEN MEETINGS ACT

APPROVED
December 10, 2019
13 YEAS 0 NAYS 0 PRESENT
Y  Fuentes Y  McCoy (via audio Y  Smoots
conference
Y  Goetz Y  Nava (added) Y  Wexler (via audio
conference)
Y  Hobert Y  Obernagel (via audio Y  Wright
conference)
Y  Juracek Y  O’Brien E Zeller
Y  Knox E Poole Y Mr. Chairman

E — Denotes Excused Absence

IFA Public Board Book (Version 2), Page 176



	AGENDA A 2020-01 (v6)
	AGENDA B 2020-01 (v8) PRINTER ERROR
	AGENDA C 2020-01 (v7)
	Executive Director Msg January 2020 1-8-2020 v5
	01 Waste Management, Inc - PBR - 2020-01-14 (v2)
	02 Roosevelt Univ - FBR (v6) 2020-01-14 CLEAN
	03 NWCH 2020 - Amendment Memo to Board
	04 OSF 2020 (Little Company) -Amendment and Memo to Board
	05 North American Spine Society Amend 2020-01 (v4)
	06 British Home for Retired Men Amend 2020-01 (v4)
	07 Museum of Science & Industry Amend 2020-01 (v4)
	08 IFA Comment on S&P Global Ratings Proposed Methodology Memo
	IFA Comment on SP Global Ratings Methodology Memo Draft 1-8-2020 v2
	IFA Comment on S&P Global Ratings Proposed Methodology for US Rental Housing Bonds Dec 18 2019

	09 Taxable Municipal Bonds in 2020 Memo
	Taxable Municipal Bonds 2020 Trend Memo Draft 1-8-2020 v2
	Taxables Could Account for 20% of Municipal Bond Issuance in 2020

	10 Rules, Regulation and Transparancy in the Municipal Securities Market Memo
	Rules Regulation and Transparency in the Municipal Securities Market Memo January Board Meeting (v2)
	Role-and-Jurisdiction-of-MSRB
	_GoBack

	MSRB 2019-13 34-87583
	SR-MSRB-2019-13 Comments of the National Association of Health and Educa...

	11 Update on Senate Bill 1300 Memo
	SB 1300 Update Draft 1-8-2020 v2
	Illinois General Assembly - Bill Status for SB1300
	Illinois News - Illinois.gov

	FINANCIALS MEMO CLEAN Financial Analysis December 2019 (v2)
	FINANCIALS REPORTS 2019 DECEMBER MONTHLY FINANCIALS Board
	Treasury Report 01- Bonds Issued Fiscal Year Three Year Comparison 12.31.19
	Report

	Treasury Report 02- Bonds Issued by Fiscal Year-Board Book Activity 12.31.19
	Report

	Treasury Report 03 - Schedule of Debt 12-31-19
	Fiscal Year 2019 Revised

	Treasury Report 04 - PACE Update 2020-01 (v2)
	PROCUREMENT BOD monthly Procurement Report January 14 2020-Final
	MINUTES A Cover Memo 12-10-2019 FINAL PDF
	MINUTES B ILLINOIS FINANCE AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING OF THE MEMBERS - 12-10-19 - Corrected NOT YET Approved
	MINUTES C 12-10-19 board-voting-record



